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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of SMIT
Holdings Limited (“SMIT” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am
pleased to announce the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

2018 was a challenging year, yet it was an important year as
the Group progressed forward with planning and external
development in diversifying its business. Notwithstanding the
negative impact on the Group's results caused by changes in
the macro-environment, we have continued to optimize its
business structure and concentrate its resources on developing
integrated circuit (IC) design business. As a result of these
efforts, the Group recorded revenue of US$41.3 million in
2018 versus US$91.8 million in 2017, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 55.0%. Net profit decrease by 88.1% year-
on-year to US$1.3 million. Basic earnings per share for the
year were US0.4 cents (2017: US3.7 cents). To reciprocate
for shareholders’ support, the Board has proposed a final
dividend payment of USO.1 cent with a total dividend payout
of US$402,964.

In 2018, the Group’s management decided to suspend the
Blockchain server business and shift its focus to the application
sector involving the integration of Blockchain technology and
security chipsets. The reasons for this strategic shift included
the sharp increase in the number of players in the existing
Blockchain server industry, difficulty in maintaining the supply
chain and raw materials, significant investment required for the
continuous technology advancement for chipset production,
the potential over-supply in the market and the greater
business risks following the implementation of stricter policies
and regulations in China.

During the year, the Group has made some key investments
and acquisitions to diversify its business and strategically
expand into the IC design sector.
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The Group completed its investment in StorArt Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“StorArt”), a company specializing in IC
design for flash memory control devices. The company is one
of the very few technology companies around the globe with
all-round capability to develop high-end controllers including IC
and intellectual property (IP) for SD/embedded MultiMediaCard/
Universal Flash Storage/solid-state drive applications. Its self-
developed flash controllers represent good value for money
and possess more than 40 scientific firmware IPs and patents.
Besides StorArt, the Group also invested in Sensel Inc.
("Sensel”), a U.S. advanced touch solutions company that has
developed next-generation touch technology. The company
is also working on bringing PressureGrid technology to the
smartphone and laptop markets to incorporate new cutting-
edge user interfaces and enable user experiences.

The Group has also acquired S2C Tech Inc. (“S2C"), a
hardware-based rapid verification system and software supplier.
The acquisition has not only added a new and strategically
important resource to facilitate SMIT's ongoing business
development, but also facilitated the Group’s expansion
into the hardware-based rapid verification industry thereby
diversifying its revenue streams. The acquisition is also in line
with the Group's investment strategy in the high-technology
sector, presenting a good opportunity to tap the world’s
hardware-based rapid verification industry. The Group also
plans to leverage S2C's existing products and technologies and
develop new products to support faster system and software
development.
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Regarding the IC design business, the Group has achieved a
major breakthrough in this area as it received requisite PRC
Central Government approval for the implementation of a
National Science and Technology Major Project with sub-
category title “Development and Application of Full Process
Electronic Design Automation (EDA) System for Chip Design”,
representing a recognition and solid support from the PRC
Central Government on our technological capability in the IC
design sector. EDA technology is the foundation of automation
in chip design and at upstream of the IC design industry, which
plays an indispensable role in the industry chain. The project
has also seen the Group become a key EDA research unit in
China embarking on the development of routing tools and the
building of a digital circuit chip design full-process EDA tool
platform for domestically-produced high-performance low-
power high-end chipsets. Through the R&D of EDA technology,
the Group can further diversify its product lines, enhance its
industry standing in the integrated circuit industry and build up
a solid foundation on a high entry barrier industry for achieving
a sustainable growth in the future.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to develop
technologies related to the IC security segment and
formulate product solutions based on the characteristics and
specifications of its customers so as to strengthen market
penetration of its products. As for the conditional access
module, or CAM, business, in addition to the launch of the
Cl+ 1.4 products with new standards and the new CI Plus ECP
products for integration with Hybrid Broadcast Broadband TV
(HbbTV) for market sales, the Group will also provide DVB+OTT
Hybrid program content solutions to operators, continue to
cooperate with CA Company for product development on USB
dongle, prospect for new customers in Southeast Asia and
the Balkans as well as sell its products to satellite TV broadcast
operator customers elsewhere in Europe. Moreover, it will
speed up local and overseas certification of mobile point-
of sales, or mPOS, products to ensure the standardization of
market entry and raise the financial security functionality and
market competiveness of terminal products. It will also adjust
its product strategies according to market changes and develop
express payment devices such as scanners for mobile codes.
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At the same time, the Group will continue to advance along
the path of IC design by developing more system design tools.
In response to the national policy favorable to development
of ICs, the Group will target the shortcomings in domestic
integrated circuit industry and explore outstanding companies
that have technological edges in software, hardware and chip
design, R&D and production, and that can create synergies
with its business for cooperation or investment, with the aim
to complement and strengthen our technologies, and lay a
foundation for the development of the integrated circuit design
business.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude
to all shareholders, business partners and customers for
their ongoing support and trust to the Group, as well as to
our Board members, management team and staff for their
dedication and contributions over the year. In 2019, we will
continue to expand our business in order to create greater
value for our shareholders.

Chairman
Huang Xueliang
Hong Kong, 28 February 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is committed to developing technologies in the
security-related industries on the basis of the integrated circuit
and is strategically expanding its business in the IC design
sector.

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay-TV broadcasting access and for mobile point-of-sales, or
mPOS, payment systems in China. It designs, develops and sells
security devices primarily for the pay-TV industry worldwide
through sales of conditional access modules, or CAM, products
which provide end users with access to pay-TV content. The
Group also develops and markets mPOS systems for the mobile
payment industry in China, which give consumers flexibility
to conduct credit and debit card transactions anywhere using
their smartphones or tablets rather than a traditional stationary
POS terminal.

In addition, the Group has improved its core technologies
and optimized related products with the help of rapid
FPGA prototyping technology obtained through the recent
acquisition of S2C, a hardware-based rapid verification system
and software provider. S2C's products can quickly construct a
complex system model, to be used in software development
and an array of tests prior to the creation of products, so it
can provide a strategic platform that facilitates the Group’s
penetration into the global hardware-based verification
industry.

CAM

Product prices have remained volatile due to intensifying
competition in the European CAM industry. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded sales revenue
of approximately US$23.1million from CAM, around 37.3%
less than last year, and accounted for around 55.9% of the
Group's total revenue. The European market (excluding Russia)
remained the largest market for the Group’s CAM business,
and made up around 64% of total CAM sales, revenue
generated from European market (excluding Russia) was
approximately 48% less than the previous year. The share of
revenue from Russia and other emerging markets, accounted
for approximately 31% of its total CAM sales, reported a
year-on-year increase of around 14%. The Mainland China
market contributed approximately 5% of its total CAM sales,
representing a decrease of around 44% year-on-year.
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The Group has been enhancing the competitiveness of its
products to keep abreast with the latest industry standards.
To boost product sales, the Group has targeted its product
development at the last stage of analog switch-off (ASO)
and has explored the user replacement market of broadcast
operators. By combining new technologies such as HbbTV and
Cl+ 1.3 OP, the Group can continue to provide more powerful
solutions for existing customers. The Group has also strived to
sell products to satellite TV operators in Europe. Recently, as
an important milestone, the Group’s CAM products obtained
official Cl Plus ECP certification, thus meeting the security
demand of operators of high-value pay-TV programs. As the
first Cl Plus ECP-certified and registered CAM product, the
Group is leveraging first-mover advantage and working closely
with CAS suppliers, operators and IDTV producers in the
industry to facilitate the development of Cl Plus products and
technologies.

In addition to Europe, the Group has been actively developing
emerging markets including the Balkans and India in the year.
The results to date have been outstanding with new customers
contributing approximately 10% of total CAM sales. The
Group has also collaborated with StarTimes, a leading digital
TV operator in Africa, to distribute and promote Cl +1.3 CAM
with an operator profile function in the African market. Using
the ClI Plus operator profile function enables over 16 million
end-users to conveniently enjoy a personalized channel list
customized for StarTimes, which is more efficient and user-
friendly. The partnership creates synergies from the strengths
of both parties and represents a giant leap forward in SMIT’s
development plans in the African market.
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mPOS

Currently, the de-leveraging policy has affected the liquidity of
third-party payment companies, which, coupled with the low
mPOS transaction fees and charges, has resulted in payment
companies continuing to suffer from excessive competition.
The mPOS market has become increasingly saturated, and the
margins have been squeezed within the industry. As a result,
for the year ended 31 December 2018, sales revenues from
mPOS have decreased by approximately 51.2% year-on-year to
approximately US$7.8 million, accounting for around 18.9 %
of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has been strengthening technological development
and product functionality of its mPOS devices, of which the
newly developed mobile payment terminal, mPOS-SM32, has
obtained PCI 5.x certification, the most stringent and top-level
security standard certification in the payment card industry
worldwide. The product uses an independent and secure
microcontroller unit (MCU) to support multiple encryption
algorithms. It features a unique advanced protection
mechanism in addition to anti-intrusion detection and a self-
destruct input (SDI) pin. Attaining the above certification is a
testament to the product’s functionality and security which
meets the strict requirements by customers on payment
terminals.

Moreover, a new generation of mobile payment solutions is
currently under development, including series 29 and series 25
products which are used in mobile and fixed line applications
setting. The series 29 product is currently undergoing
certification by UnionPay, in order to address the business
needs of merchants during transactions. For instance, through
a scan pay function, payments can be received anytime and
anywhere, which meets the fund collection demands of small
and mid-sized merchants.

The Group has achieved progress in developing new customers,
recently entering into framework cooperation agreements with
several third party payment companies. It has also secured a
small volume overseas order from a Korean payment software
integrated circuit (IC) company for terminal products, marking
a significant step forward in penetrating the international
market.

11
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Rapid verification system and software - S2C

In a major strategic advance, the Group has acquired S2C,
a hardware-based rapid verification system and software
company, thereby further diversifying its business and
revenue streams. For the year ended 31 December 2018, S2C
contributed sales revenue of approximately US$0.8 million,
accounting for approximately 1.9 % of total revenue.

S2C principally provides rapid verification system and
software. The system-on-chip (SoC) prototype provided by
S2C includes 1) a hardware- based verification system and
automation software; 2) Prototype Ready™ intellectual
property (IP), interfaces and platforms; 3) system-level design
verification and acceleration tools. The SoC application-specific
integrated circuit (ASIC) developed by S2C helps reduce the
SoC design cycle. With over 400 customers and more than
2,000 systems installed to date, the solution has recorded
strong performance in China, Japan, Korea and Taiwan. S2C’s
products have been widely deployed in consumer electronics,
communications, computing, image processing, data storage,
research, education, automotive, medical and design services
applications and silicon IP.

Blockchain Server

During the year, the Group decided to terminate the sales
of blockchain server in view of the volatile cryptocurrency
market and the tightening government policies over related
industries. During the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
from of sales of blockchain servers was USD9.6 million, around
75.3% less than last year, and accounted for around 23.4%
of the Group’s total revenue. Despite the termination of the
sales of blockchain server, the Group will continue to focus
on the development of the blockchain technology and look
for collaboration opportunity with other businesses within the
Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group generated
revenue of US$41.3 million, representing a decrease of around
55% compared with 2017. The revenue decrease is mainly
attributable to a decrease in revenue from blockchain server
sales. The following table shows revenue breakdown by
business segments:

BE+T-HA=+t—BLEE

Year ended 31 December

—B-N\&F —EF
2018 2017 #g
BEET % H&EZET % Bt
Us$ million % Us$ million % Change in %
I8 18 5 AR 755 25 Blockchain server 9.6 23.3 39.0 425 -75%
BER CAM 23.1 55.9 36.8 40.1 -37%
mPOS mPOS 7.8 18.9 16.0 17.4 -51%
PIRGRFE R a4 Rapid verification
system and software 0.8 1.9 = = =
413 100 91.8 100 -55%
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit amounted to US$13.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, representing a decrease of US$18.8 million
or 57.9% compared with 2017 mainly due to a decrease in the
income for the whole year. Gross profit margin decreased by
2.3% year-on-year to 33.1%, which was mainly attributable to
a decrease in the gross profit margin of mPOS products.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of the Group's research and development staff,
rental and office expenses, CA certification fees, professional
service fees and transportation and lodging. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, research and development expenses
grew from US$7.77 million to US$7.80 million, mainly due to
salary increase for research and development staff.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly include salaries and
benefits of sales and marketing staff, marketing, training and
promotion expenses, travel and entertainment and rental
and office expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
selling and distribution expenses were US$2.7 million, down
by 10.7% compared with 2017, which was mainly due to
the saving in certain variable selling and distribution expenses
alongside with the decrease in the Group’s revenue.

General and Administrative Expenses and Net Impairment
Losses on Financial Assets

General and administrative expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of management, administrative and finance staff,
professional service fees, rental and office expenses, provision
for doubtful debts, and travel and entertainment expenses. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, general and administrative
expenses amounted to US$9.6 million, representing an
increase of 32.7% compared to 2017. The increase was mainly
attributable to an increase in wage and professional service
fees.

Income Tax (Credit)/Expense

Income tax (credit)/expense consists of PRC corporate income
tax and Hong Kong profits tax for PRC and Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Group respectively. Income tax changed
from a US$2.9 million tax expense for the year ended 31
December 2017 to a US$1.6 million tax credit for the year
ended 31 December 2018, mainly due to the tax losses
incurred by certain subsidiaries.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
US$1.3 million, representing a decrease of 88.2% when
compared with 2017. It was mainly attributable to the
termination of the blockchain servers product line and the
decrease in sales of CAM and mPOS.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Debt Structure

The Group continued to maintain a healthy and solid liquidity
position. As at 31 December 2018, total cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to US$55.0 million (as
at 31 December 2017: US$84.1 million) and were mainly
denominated in RMB and US dollars. The Group recorded
net current assets amounting to US$71.0 million (as at 31
December 2017: US$100.3 million) and its current ratio,
calculated by dividing total current assets by total current
liabilities, was 457 % (as at 31 December 2017: 678.0%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank borrowings of
USD5.3 million (2017: nil) which was denominated in USD. A
restricted bank deposit of USD5 million had been pledged for
the bank borrowings. No hedging activity had been carried
out by the Group. Gearing ratio of the Group, as calculated
by dividing total bank borrowings by total equity, was 4.8%
(2017: N/A) as at 31 December 2018. Apart from the above
bank borrowings, the Group had unutilized banking facilities
of RMB100 million (equivalent to USD14.6 million) (as at 31
December 2017: nil) and USD10 million (as at 31 December
2017: nil) in Mainland China and Hong Kong respectively. The
Group did not have any other outstanding indebtedness or
any outstanding or authorised but unissued debt securities,
term loans, other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of
borrowings, acceptance credits, hire purchase commitments,
mortgages and charges, contingent liabilities or guarantees
outstanding.

Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

The aggregate net proceeds raised by the Company from the
Listing through the issue of an aggregate of 75,000,000 new
shares (the “Offer Shares”) at the final offer price of HK$3.78
per Offer Share pursuant to the Global Offering referred to in
the prospectus issued by the Company on 16 March 2016 (the
“Prospectus”), after deduction of underwriting commissions
and expenses directly attributable to the Global Offering, were
approximately HK$251.6 million. Based on the net proceeds
derived from the Global Offering, proposed application of
net proceeds as stated in the Prospectus had been adjusted
according to the principles as specified in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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During the period from 30 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”,
being the date on which dealings in the shares of the Company
first commenced in the Stock Exchange), to the date of this
announcement, the net proceeds raised from the Listing had
been applied as follows:

REBRAREE

Rt EHER R
BRABMFEIERE BLmASEERKRE
BRERMR Use of proceeds RONFEREERAE
FERERD adjusted according Actual use of
REEEALIREER Percentage of to actual gross proceeds from
Business objectives as proceeds as stated proceeds less estimated the Listing Date to
stated in the Prospectus in the Prospectus listing expense the date of this report
BEAER AEER
HKS million HKS million
EmRE kR R Product planning and research and development 40% 100.64 8154
HERMHHEERS Sales and marketing expenditures 30% 75.48 2751
EELL Possible mergers and acquisitions 20% 5032 50.32
REEER—RAFME  Working capital and general corporate purposes 10% 25.16 25.16
100% 251.60 184.53

MHARERMEE  ARBANMGFIRFECKEZTENE
AFEREELPEABOFRRITIERTEFER - ARF]
I 8 IR 2 AR BT 15 SR E R AN R B AR T 3 R & DA SN
R %k e

B

%Z?:* T NFTZA=+—BLFE NEELEEM

TABERBE 2 EARARE ST —+F+A=1T—8:
,m)EJZE?E%1E5KET“?UZ§$J¥GJ§(_§*t¢+:ﬂ ==
H:#\)o

The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong and Mainland
China in accordance with the intention of the Board as
disclosed in the Prospectus. The Company has not utilised and
will not utilise any net proceeds for purposes other than those
disclosed in the Prospectus.

Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any contracted, but not provided for, capital commitments (as
at 31 December 2017: nil) or authorised but not contracted for
capital commitments (as at 31 December 2017: nil).



Smit Holdings Limited @
Annual Report 2018

BEEENWR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EARE BEEWE  HEWBARREEBEQRNA
REXREXAEERENWBEERE

REZB-N\F+_A=1+—"8 AEEAXREREILHTAF
BEBRAERRE - ARRFEAHNR182BEXTHIE
FTHESHERRERRZ - (T2 — L5 :38FAEXT) N
THEAEENEAKRE :

“E-NFZANB ' XREIHBRARBEMIER(EH)ER
Al ([EMESIREEESSensel, Inc.([Sensel |) && 7%
FN—HEREEGE((ERBEHRE]) - TR T ¥ Sensel
H12 BEEITIRE  Sensel 2 — KA E A E b 1948 5o 11l
AR MEBAREEN  ZEMERISAR  BATE
RESEL R R BBIMEE TS - ZIEBEME A% - BN
EREREZEEERZNERRET 288 T &K
Sensel & iBAR 1B S AR AY AT A 5 SRR o

- N\F+—FNB BMESRERZEEHT([BR
WE]) BBEE Sensel NELR(REBE |)iE—PTK
S00BETMIRE - REBERKE @ BMESRE2EEE
R Sensel #99.22% #zs o [ + B Sensel F1TIWH =
- N\FZABBEMEEREN 200 8ET I RERAEER
PR Z B SER B E 5 Sensel OB LR - IRIEEIRE -
MBS RRELZERTHE2BRBEERT
Sensel LAMERE LR -

HE-_Z— ) \F+_A=1+—HLFE > Sensel ERKERE
E% o B AT ' Sensel IEEB N # PressureGrid 5| A% g8 & 55 A
SRAERTES - UF AL IERR Z 5 B R85 m A
FREFER -

Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal
of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies and Future
Plan for Material Investments or Acquisition of Capital
Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had equity securities
investments in a total of four unlisted companies and
investment interests an unlisted fund with an aggregate
fair value of approximately USD18.2 million. (2017: USD3.8
million). Set out below are the significant investments of the
Group:

On 8 February 2018, SMIT Holdings (HK) Limited (“SMIT
HK"), a subsidiary of the Company, completed a USD2 million
investment in Sensel, Inc. (“Sensel”) pursuant to a note
purchase agreement entered into between, among others,
SMIT HK and Sensel (the “Note Purchase Agreement”).
Sensel is an advanced technology company based in the United
States, which owns the pressure grid technology that combines
industry-leading performance and the extra dimension of
control in the form of force sensitivity. Upon completion of the
transaction, SMIT HK subscribed for a USD2 million promissory
note which may be converted into common or preferred
shares of Sensel pursuant to the terms of the Note Purchase
Agreement.

On 9 November 2018, SMIT HK completed a further USD5
million investment by way of preferred stock purchase
(the “Stock Purchase”) in Sensel pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”).
Upon completion of the Stock Purchase, SMIiT HK held
approximately 9.22% interest in Sensel on a fully diluted basis.
Simultaneously, the USD2 million convertible promissory note
issued by Sensel and previously subscribed by SMIT HK in
February 2018 was deemed converted into preferred shares
in Sensel at completion of the Stock Purchase, and the entire
amount owed to SMIT HK under such convertible promissory
note was tendered to Sensel in exchange for preferred stock
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement.

Sensel was on investing stage during the year ended
31 December 2018. It is currently working on bringing
PressureGrid to market in smartphones and laptops, where
they are using this technology to enable new cutting edge user
interfaces and experiences.
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In May 2017, the Group subscribed for a minority interest
in Mainsweb Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
("Mainsweb”), which operates a one-stop cross-border
e-commerce platform in the PRC, with a total consideration
of RMB13.33 million for an approximate 8.89% shareholding
interest in Mainsweb. It was considered by the Directors
that the investment would complement the Group’s goal in
developing smart devices and diversify its product lines, as the
Group, as the strategic investor, became the sole supplier for
Mainsweb’s 020 smart terminals. Due to uncertainty about the
future operating result of Mainsweb, the Group recorded a fair
value loss of approximately USD1.9 million on this investment
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

For further details of the financial assets of the Group, please
refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 29 November 2018, SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, completed its acquisition of S2C
Tech Inc. (“S2C"), a hardware-based verification system
and software company to further diversify its business and
revenue stream. Pursuant to the terms of the related share
purchase agreement, the Group agreed to acquire 19,042,988
ordinary shares representing approximately 94.97% and
86.36% interest in the share capital of S2C on an actual
and fully diluted basis, respectively, at the maximum cash
consideration of USD19,000,000, plus up to USD2,000,000
payment. Goodwill of USD15.9 million and intangible assets of
USD4.6 million arising from the acquisition of S2C have been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements on the date
of acquisition.

The Group will continue to search for prospective targets for
investment, cooperation opportunities and new business.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.
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Currency Risk and Management

The Group's sales are primarily made in Europe, in US dollar-
denominated transactions and the PRC, in RMB-denominated
transactions. Sales of CAM and rapid vertification devices of
the Group were predominantly denominated in US dollars
while sales of mPOS devices and blockchain servers were
denominated in RMB. The Group’s costs of production are
predominantly denominated in RMB.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
enter into any foreign currency forward contracts or use any
derivative contracts to hedge against the risk incurred from
its currency exposure. The Group manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency rates and
may consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group employed
about 282 employees (as at 31 December 2017: 247
employees), of whom 251 were based in Mainland China, 14
in Taiwan, 6 in Hong Kong and 11 in other countries around
the world. For the year ended 31 December 2018, staff costs
(including salaries, social insurance, provident funds and share
incentive plan) amounted to USD11.6 million in aggregate,
representing 28.1% of the total revenue of the Group.

The Group has entered into employment agreements with
all of its full-time employees. In addition, certain senior
management and key research and development personnel
have signed confidentiality agreements and non-competition
agreements with the Group. Each senior executive officer has
agreed to hold, both during and after the effective period of
his or her employment agreement, in strict confidence and
not to use, except as required in the performance of his or her
employment duties, any confidential information, trade secrets
or know-how of the Group or the confidential information of
any third party received by the Group. Additionally, each senior
executive officer has agreed to be bound by non-competition
restrictions for a period of two years following the expiry of his
or her term of employment.
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The Group's success depends on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group’s remuneration policy
and packages for its employees were periodically reviewed.
The Group is also dedicated to the training and development
of employees. Towards that end, the Group leverages on the
resources of its research and development centre, research
laboratories and project management team to ensure that
each employee maintains a current skill-set through continuous
training on topics ranging from technologies, solutions and
services to clients, markets and the industry. The Group
provides introductory training and orientation for all new
employees, as well as on-the- job training to continuously
improve employees’ technical, professional and management
skills.

OUTLOOK

With the continued economic advancement in China and
buttressed by the Chinese government’s strong support, the
IC industry has flourished in China presenting tremendous
development opportunities to the Group’s IC design business
and hardware-based rapid verification business. The Group
intends to leverage its high-end, state-of-the-art and
sophisticated integrated technology to focus on IC design and
will actively seek development opportunities in that field and
related businesses.

As for the CAM business, the Group will continue to push
forward, launching Cl+ 1.4 and Cl+ ECP CAM products and
developing solutions for hybrid content delivered by the
operator DVB+OTT. It will adopt different product strategies
to respond to a variety of customer needs in different regions,
actively explore new opportunities in new geographic and
applications markets, seek customers and opportunities in
South East Asia and the Balkans and sell its products to satellite
TV broadcast operator customers in Europe.

As for the Group’s mPOS devices, on the back of its extensive
industry experience and solid business relationship with its
industry partners and broadcast operator customers, the Group
is confident in exploring further new projects. It will continue
to facilitate the certification of its range of products both
locally and overseas, ensuring their entry to different markets
in compliance with applicable regulations, enhancing financial
security and market competitiveness of its terminal products.
The Group will also closely monitor the market and proactively
adjust its product strategies in accordance with shifting trends,
for example, developing fast payment devices such as scanners
for mobile codes.
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The Group will continue to invest in resources to optimize
the R&D of system design tools such as electronic design
automation (EDA) and field programmable gate arrays
(FPGA) and tap the main trends in technology advances in
IC design verification to broaden the scope of application
and improve the processing speed of its chipsets and their
structural performance. Technical features of the EDA tools
can gradually refine electronic design details and overall
design will be efficiently completed, resulting in a high-level
and fully automated design approach for electronic system
design. FPGAs can analyze every layer of the IC design until
the operational connection between all sub-modules of the
whole system is rationalized and ready for convenient design
creation. These system design tools are widely used in the IC
design industry and have become preferred tools of engineers.
The Group will conduct further optimization of the existing
EDA and FPGA tool templates, with the aim of producing high
performance, high speed, highly flexible and low-cost products
to benefit more IC and SoC design users.

The Group will continue to move forward in the future,
diversifying its business and broadening its revenue stream by
leveraging its position as a leading provider of security devices
used in pay-TV broadcasting access and mPOS payment
systems in China, and expanding its R&D efforts in IC related
technology and all-round applications through strategic
acquisitions. Driven by the rapid development of ICs and
computer technologies, market demand for core components
is also increasing. Given the rigid market demand, SMIT is
highly confident that, with its accumulated industry experience,
it can grasp market opportunities and continuously develop
advanced and sophisticated chipset technology and ultimately
further reinforce its industry leadership. In addition, the
Group will continue to evaluate and seek target technologies
and companies which have investment value and which can
generate synergies with its businesses within the industry and
along the industry chain, with the aim of bringing greater
return to shareholders while expanding its business and
revenue streams.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high level of corporate governance.
The Company has been in compliance with the principles and
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code") under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2018 up to the date of
this report, except the following deviation therefrom:

Code Provision A.2.1

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (CEO) should be separated
and performed by different individuals. During the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this report, the duties of the
Company’s Chairman and CEO were not separated from each
other. Mr. Huang Xueliang has been serving as the Company's
Chairman and CEO during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report.

The Company believes that Mr. Huang Xueliang serving as both
the Chairman and CEO will guarantee us strong and stable
leadership to perform planning and management of the Group
more effectively. In view of his extensive experience in the
industry, personal credentials and key roles in the Group and its
historical development, the Board believes that it is favorable to
the business prospects of the Group for Mr. Huang Xueliang to
serve as our Chairman and CEO on a continuous basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. As at the date of this report, the
Board consists of nine directors (“Directors”) of the Company,
including three executive Directors, three non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Their
biographical details and relationships amongst them (if any) are
set out on pages 48 to 54 of this annual report.
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The Board shall perform the duties of corporate governance,
and its responsibilities are to convene the general meetings
and report its work to the shareholders; to implement the
resolutions of general meetings; to formulate the Company’s
business plans, investment plans and annual budget and final
accounts; to prepare the Company’s profit distribution plan,
loss recovery plan and proposals for increase or reduction of
registered capital.

The Board should meet regularly and board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the Company’s historical financial reports
and operating conditions and approve the Company's budgets
and overall strategies. Notices of no less than fourteen days
are given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. Additional meetings should
be held whenever the Board deems necessary. For other
board meetings and board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members at least three days before the board
meetings or board committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings or board committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and board committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered
by the Board and the board committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and board committee
meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
the Directors.
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BEZERB2NARFZEE RABREAMZEZTENE
HRARBERNBEZE—_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HILFELRE
ARREFENBERMOT

The Directors actively participated in the meetings of the
Company. The members of the Board as at the date of this
report and their participation in the meetings of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

REZEES FMESS EREES
23 23 2% ERESS RRAE

Nomination = Remuneration Audit =
EEpR Committee Committee Committee Regular General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting Board meeting meeting
=HER 11 NER i@ 4/4 11
Huang Xueliang N/A N/A
B2 TEA 1/1 2/2 4/4 171
Zeng Zhijie N/A
&= A TiE A TEA 4/4 11
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen N/A N/A N/A
SRR NE R 11 2/2 4/4 11
Zhang Junjie N/A
LEER A 171 T 2/2 4/4 171
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond N/A
TEE 171 11 TiEA 4/4 171
Jin Yufeng N/A
BVAL T NE R NER & R 4/4 11
Shuai Hongyu N/A N/A N/A
BESCBL TEA TNEM TiE 4/4 171
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun N/A N/A N/A
=BINE NEH TNE TiE B 4/4 171
Gao Songtao N/A N/A N/A

RBE-Z-—N\F+-A=+—HILFE BEFERTEKX
R - ARRBRTETEEE AT - HRIGEE L
REERTEDIARESTERRERZ -BE_FT—/\F1=
A=1T—HIEFE  ARRFTERBRAE -

RARRFIRT - EFZRLERS - £ RkHEME
R/TEREE -

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2018. The Company is obliged to comply with the
CG Code and will take appropriate arrangements for holding
at least 4 regular Board meetings in the forthcoming year.
General meeting has been held once during the year ended 31
December 2018.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/connected relationship
among the Directors.
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Committees of the Board

There are Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee under the Board to help fully perform the
duties of corporate governance. Each committee of the Board
has the right to obtain any complete and reliable information
required by it from the management. The committees shall, if
necessary, seek independent professional advices to perform
their duties at the expense of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors have the recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to
access and to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to
any significant transactions entered into by the management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, number of members and composition
(including skillsets, knowledge, experience and qualifications)
of the Board, providing recommendations to the Board
on candidates for any Directors and senior management
members, determining the policy for the nomination of
directors, exploring a Board diversity policy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and
ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting to conduct annual review of the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and discuss the Board diversity policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
advising on the remuneration policy and structure for all the
Directors and senior management members of the Company;
assessing performance of executive directors and approving
terms of executive directors’ service contracts; and developing
a set of standardised and transparent procedures for making
the remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee is
designated to determine the remuneration packages of certain
executive Directors and senior management members.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting to review the remuneration policy
and structure and determine the annual remunerations of the
Directors and senior management members as well as other
related matters.
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Audit Committee

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1.  to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity under applicable standards,
and to assess the efficacy of their audit procedures;

3. to review the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, accounts and interim reports,
and to review the significant opinions in relation to the
financial reporting contained therein;

4. to supervise the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, and advise the Board on matters
relating to corporate governance; and

5. to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
the Company’s whistleblowing policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to fulfill the above duties.

Director Training

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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TRESUSMEBFESEYEE  UEBEREKENSE 2M#HHE All Directors participated in continuous professional
e - RIBESEEMREROLS  2BESFTREZNE development to develop and update their knowledge and
Ol skills. According to the records provided by the Directors, the
training programmes received by each Director during the year
are as follows:
HEMHER
HM{T3E8
Seminars or
EEpR EEHBN other industry
Name of Director Director title events attended
=ER IE BOTESERERNTE \
Huang Xueliang Chairman, executive Director & CEO
T2 FEHMITES v
Zeng Zhijie Non-executive Director
BER FEMITES \
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen Non-executive Director
SRIZ A B IFMITES \/
Zhang Junjie Independent non-executive Director
LEERS BIUFRTEE V
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond Independent non-executive Director
eFE BIIERITES \
Jin Yufeng Independent non-executive Director
BVAL T BWITES \
Shuai Hongyu Executive Director
BESCBR WITEE V
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun Executive Director
SN FEMITES v

Gao Songtao

IFERERHITE

RBE-Z-—N\F+-_A=+T—BIFERRAREEH
EERAERTIIFRERNTERY  AEASEERER

BEARE R EBEEEREE -

FHTES

FRTER(BERBUINTES) RESSHREZITEN
AR ER  MREXENARBIALE  BBE2REFEERE
T HFEESERUFHAREMER - HARREE T
REBRGEE -

Non-executive Director

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at the date
of this report, Mr. Huang Xueliang served as the Chairman and
CEO to take charge of the Group’s overall strategic planning
and supervise the overall management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) empower the Board with extensive industry
knowledge and experience, financial expertise and independent
judgments. They make effective recommendations on the
Company's strategies and policies through engagement in
committees of the Board, participation in Board meetings and
review of the Company'’s relevant reports.
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During the year, the Board had at least three independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has provided with
the Company an annual confirmation of his independence.
The Company considers that Mr. Zhang Junjie, Mr. Jin Yufeng
and Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond are independent in terms of
identity and judgment, which is in compliance with the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELATED INDIVIDUALS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
After specific inquiries, it is confirmed that all the Directors
fully complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Code of Conduct applies to all the individuals who may
have access to inside information about the Company or its
securities as a result of their respective positions or duties as
defined by the CG Code, including employees of the Company
or directors or employees of the Company’s subsidiaries or
parent company.
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BERZEGEREARRRIXEME B KBRARL B
HEREBIEA KT - LB RBUOKERERBBERM(A) M
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee has received a letter from the Company’s
current auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers confirming its
independence and objectivity. The remuneration paid for the
services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliates (if
any) is as follows:

—E-N\F —TtF
2018 2017
FET FET
REMHE Nature of service UsD’000 UsD’000
Bz R EHRE Audit and review services 457 390
IR (B IER R AT & Non-audit services (including risk assessment
A ERE Il 55 s AR A and internal control consulting services, legal,
AR BT - BISEBEERS © finandial, tax due diligence services, transactional
R 5= R MoAEBRE RS ) support services and legal retainer services) 697 200
1,154 590

EXQEBERZESLHEE B - FRIBIBINEZEED
VWEA—HER - EFALTAB(EM B BRI L H KRR RHF
BREENBREATEZENIBERZERTHAREE -

ESHMBHRRAAEZERE

EERABEAREIABEAVBREERRGEMBRE - UE
BERAFHBEAEE 2N - EFW FANEBAEFERBARE
HASBERSECEEERBELENNELEARENSE
HRGEHNERTHERER - EEECREFTSRUSEN
MENEN FEESRURETESSRENTRRNE
RRETHEH G - ARRCAEFTS K ERIEH
ARRRR - RARAZNEAEHER -

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, dismissal or removal
of the external auditor. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or situations which
may have material impacts on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for each financial year to
give a true and fair view of the conditions of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company's performance, positions and prospects.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Directors consider that in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies consistently and follows all applicable accounting
standards.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Group and enable the Group to
prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board believes that a comprehensive set of risk
management and internal control systems plays an essential
role in achieving the Company's strategic goals and has
therefore acknowledged its responsibilities annually to maintain
such systems, as well as review their effectiveness to protect
the investment of shareholders and safeguard the assets of
Company.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems, while the
management is accountable for setting up and maintaining
those systems as well as providing a confirmation on their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

With an aim to improve the Company’s risk management
system while enhancing its controls of risks and the ability to
mitigate risks, the Board established its own organizational
structure, and is continuously improving risk management
system and maintains risk management structure. The risk
management organizational structure is a 3-tier framework,
comprising of the Board and its Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, as well as Risk Management
Executives. The Company has also defined the direct
management responsibility of each tier and the reporting line
between them.

Risk Management Structure

Board

Audit Committee

Risk Management Risk Management
Committee Coordinator

[9A97 Auedwod

Department Head
Business Process
Principal
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TRERRBREEEBENSESMEENASR Roles performed by parties at all levels within the risk
management structure are set out in the tables below:

Exg

Board

\ R EIE 5 R MRS
Approve plans and reports on risk management

\ ETERXARNERER - BEIEREARERRS - WETRROA RS 0 &
Conduct risk management of material decisions, including approving related risk management reports
and determining effective controls to the risks; and

v hnse E kR E R XL A
Strengthen the cultivation of risk management culture

EREER

Audit Committee

\ R EREEZSENER  BEREREREHE &
Review the setups of the Risk Management Committee and its job description, as well as the fundamental
management policies; and

! EHEREART GRS RSERRERRE
Review assessment reports on material risks and various risk management reports

EREEEZESE

Risk Management Committee

v HBEREERFGER  BERREBARBUERERARSE
Promote the formulation of risk management system and define the structure and responsibilities of risk
management organisation

v EHEZARARRERRBEOEE  HENEEERSRN
Regularly review the risk management policies and procedures and oversee the implementation

v REXAREHEREREER  F2URIBRORRNEAREERERRAREERER &
Provide risk management suggestions on material decisions by reviewing and submitting risk
management reports and risk response; and

v BEANAIEERRBRERLNES

Oversees the cultivation of the Company’s general risk management culture
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Risk Management Coordinator

v HEZIMARERNRRBDMTEIE  ASERRERRSE  TRETRREEZES
Promote risk identification and evaluation on department level, formulate risk management reports and
submit them to the Risk Management Committee

\ BE HARREEZEGRSAEEEHAAEENRRETH - A IRHRFRERSE AR
% IR AR R
Coordinate the Risk Management Committee and senior management to conduct risk identification and
evaluation on the Company level, propose countermeasures to material risks

\ 8 - BEERREERTAERERNRAREE TEREHBAMAER
Assist and monitor the risk management executives to perform risk management work and review
relevant results

\ AERREEAEFNEN - S ZERRERME R KERE
Organise trainings and share knowledge and best practices about risk management

v EANRBHAMEREENMARRERERTEE TRARERZESREREES
Summarise the risk management results of both the Company level and business level and submit them
to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee

BRAEE EXREBEEA

Department Head/Business Process Principal

\/

e R ERMEREMBEBREABRRERNIE

Coordinate with risk management coordinator in performing risk management of their own businesses

E HASE R P 25 7 1 [ F s B

Regularly update the risk lists of their own businesses

AR REARNRIEB T ENREIREMAE @ 46 BB EBT I EH A M R b ES TS

Assess the impact and likelihood of the identified risks on the Company’s businesses along with
characteristics of specific businesses

HIEABEBOEBERREAS TR  WEREH TR BEABREREEEBNHENE
Prepare and implement risk responses for the relevant specific business risks; Take responsibility for
communicating and implementing the specific risk management measures

HAREBOZHERRETER  REMEREERRSE : &

Monitor and report various risks that specific businesses are facing with to the risk management
coordinator; and

FRERE R H AR T IE

Execute other work relevant to risk management



E S EENREF

ARRBEBEIBMAA ML ELBEH N ERZRETRH
A RHERES - iR ERERERE N MEREE S - &
—SRELLABHNERMBERENER - A2 7E(E
RERFMITERTRREERENFEBRE  SFEE
TRAREEMERFGETIE BRARGUENERERRRF
(BERARRER - 5 BEERBEEHSR)EERROEE
MEENLREEERERREE RS - ARRIRBERBRELD
AREMERARNAREBNZENREREETERET &
BRIBBEEERRBOKE FEUARTEREER - tIER
RE IR REREEERE  REFERBRFETE SR
R AN AR AR

NEBEE R R A

RN A A A B R G E R Committee of Sponsoring
Organization of the Treadway Commission 28 & A 25 &5
EERERE - ZRTEHIRE - BTG - EHE - 8
BB REEES A ANGEZEEREE - HRBEREY
AT B R - RN FERFE  REOE
E ARARET TESVES AL RER - WERERITHE
M LAE RN EREE IR RVE B MBI B AR -

ERZEEEFRAZFFNARE - HRBERNANIEE
BRK - RRIBERDANMEREEERMES BRI AERE -
MERBROBREFEFRFIEREGER LREETSE
TTRABMAT T °

Smit Holdings Limited @
Annual Report 2018

EREBRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management Process

The Company improves its management capability and
adaptability, and further ensures the realisation of the business
objectives and a sustainable growth through active and
systematic identification, assessment and response to risk
issues occurred in the operation process. The Company has
defined risk management process and evaluation criteria in
the Risk Management Manual. Risk evaluation is carried out
annually on the Company level to determine the nature and
extent of the risk and whether the existing control measures
are enough through systematic risk management procedures,
which are four steps including risk identification, evaluation,
mitigation and reporting. The Company prioritises risks based
on the likelihold and the impact on the Company's businesses,
and develops risk responses and control measures and report
annual risk assessment results, impact of material risks and
best practices of the industry to keep the risks at an acceptable
level.

Internal Control System

The Company’s internal control system was constructed based
on the internal control framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizsation of the Treadway Commission,
and considered the five components of internal control:
control environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring activities.
The Company designs control activities to address the risk of
each key business process, e.g. sales and receivables, purchase
and payables, inventory and research & development (R&D),
investment and acquisition etc., and monitors the operating
effectiveness of those controls to achieve the control objectives
of internal control system.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness and adequacy
of the system on an annual basis. If any deficiency of
internal control is identified, the Company addresses it by
communicating with the management internally and ordering
remediation to be taken. Any material deficiency identified in
the control procedures or polices will be reported to the Board
directly for communication and discussion.
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The Company's internal audit work is carried out by internal
audit team. Their responsibilities have been defined in the
Internal Audit Charter. In the year of 2018, our internal
audit personnel, together with members of an external
consulting firm appointed by the Company working as a team
to independently conduct the internal control reviews on
effectiveness of the key processes and reported directly to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then oversees the
effectiveness of the internal controls system by reviewing and
approving the internal audit assessment plan and reports.

Inside Information

For the management of inside information, the Company has
formulated Inside Information Disclosure Management Policy
to clarify the definition of such information and procedures to
handle and release them. The Company discloses information
to the public generally and non-exclusively through channels
including websites of its own and HK Exchange, aiming to
achieve fair and timely disclosure of information.

Review on the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems in 2018

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Board has finished reviewing
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
along with the Audit Committee and considered them to be
effective and adequate. The review has covered the financial
year of 2018 and all material controls, including, operational,
financial and compliance controls and considered the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks as well as the
Company's ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, the Board and Audit Committee
considered such systems are effective and adequate.

The Board and Audit Committee have also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of its accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions this year, and considered
adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric has served as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman of the Board, and the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary are determined by all the members
of the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of its committees in
developing meeting agendas, preparing meeting minutes in a
timely manner and sending them to the Directors and members
of the committees; for ensuring that all the Directors comply
with the Board'’s policies and procedures and all applicable
regulations and rules; and for ensuring accurate recording of
the meeting procedures, discussions and decisions of meetings
of the Board/its committees.

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric had received more than 15 hours of
professional training during the year in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biographical details are set out in
page 55 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
direct communication between shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries to the Board or
the management thereat, and the Chairman of the Board,
or in his absence, an executive Director, and chairmen of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
committees, will normally be present and available to answer
questions. Shareholders may also send their written enquiries
to the Company Secretary.
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The Company is committed to enhancing its communication
and relationship with its investors. To this end, the
Board endeavors to provide shareholders with clear and
comprehensive information on the Group through different
media and official website. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports dispatched to shareholders, they may
also visit the Group's website (www.smit.com.cn) for more
information.

Procedure for Making Proposals at Annual General
Meetings

Shareholders may make proposals or motions at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Company’s memorandum of
association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the relevant provisions.

Procedures for Requisitioning an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of submission of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may, by serving at any time a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for the handling of
the matters specified in the requisition.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
changes to the Company's constitutional documents.

By order of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2019
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We are a leading security devices provider for pay TV
broadcasting access worldwide and for mobile point-of-sale,
or mPOS, payment systems in China. We have also entered
into Rapid Verification System and Software business. Pursuant
to the relevant requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group will continue to disclose an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
on an annual basis. Set out below are the important contents
of such report closely related to the Group's business:

ENVIRONMENT

Emissions

The Group's policy is to ensure compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations and to reduce
environmental footprints through efficient use of resources and
application of environment-friendly technologies.

The Group is committed to promoting environmental
awareness among its employees. The Group believes that
raising environmental awareness is the key to environmental
protection and the promotion of public health.

In view of the nature of the Group's business, the Company
believes that the direct impact of its business operations on the
environment and natural resources is very insignificant.

Sewage Discharge

The Group has no industrial sewage discharge, and its
domestic water meeting relevant discharge standards is
discharged into a municipal pipeline through the pipe network
of the industrial zone, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions under the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, the Detailed Rules for the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
and the Measures on the Supervision of Sewage Treatment
Facilities for Environmental Protection. The Company operates
in accordance with the requirements on clean production and
in compliance with the relevant requirements under the Law of
the PRC on Promoting Clean Production.
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Noise Emissions

All departments have conscientiously implemented the noise
prevention measures and performed noise reduction processing
for noise-producing equipment without working at night,
which meets the relevant standards of the Emission Standard
for Industrial Plant Noise at Boundary and which, coupled
with the fact that there is no residential area in the proximity
of the Company, is in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.

Exhaust Emissions

As the Company is in a high-tech park in terms of ambient
air function zoning, the Company implements the medium-
level standards for environmental air quality as provided under
the Ambient Air Quality Standards (GB3095-96). Currently,
all our emission indicators meet the relevant requirements.
Our test and production process virtually produces no
exhaust gas, which is in compliance with the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and meets
the standards under the Integrated Emission Standards for
Air Pollutants. There is no leak of Freon generated from
air conditioning, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete
the Ozone Layer.

Hazardous Waste Management

Our operation does not produce any significant hazardous
waste. After self-inspections of all departments, it is confirmed
that the hazardous waste of each department, including
waste batteries, toner cartridges and ink cartridges, has
been classified and put into separate dustbins in a timely
manner, and all waste fluorescent lamps have to be returned
in exchange for new ones. All hazardous waste is collected
centrally for disposal. The production and domestic waste of
the Company has been timely disposed of as required, which is
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations such as the
Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution Caused by Solid Waste.
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Procurement, Transport, Storage and Preservation of
Hazardous Chemicals

Presently, the Group is not involved in any use and management
of chemicals.

In an effort to strictly follow the environmental protection
requirements, the Group regularly hands out labor protection
supplies to staff in positions with hidden danger, organises the
staff to take annual physical examination, and affords them
occupational disease detection. There is no environmental,
safety and occupational disease issue occurred during the
Company's operations.

Resource Utilisation

All the departments and entities of the Group have specific
control measures for consumption of domestic water, office
electricity and paper, which satisfy the relevant requirements
under the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. The Group
vigorously carries out an advice solicitation activity to
encourage employees to make reasonable advices on cost
reduction and efficiency improvement.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
consumed 365,667 kWh Electricity, 1036m?> Water and 38.9
tonnes Packaging materials (cartons).

Environment and Natural Resources

Since its inception, the Group has never compromised the
environment and natural resources in any way and always
strictly complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC.
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SOCIETY

Employment and Labor Practices

The Group’s success relies on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group generally is able to
attract and retain qualified personnel and maintain a stable
core management team. The Group is committed to the
training and development of its employees. The Group engages
its R&D center, research laboratories and project management
team in ensuring that each employee receives continuous
training on subjects from techniques, solutions and services
to the Group’s clients, the markets and industries where it
operates, so as to maintain the employees’ current skillsets.
The Group provides orientation training for all new employees,
and offers on-the-job training to continuously enhance the
technical, professional and managerial capabilities of its
employees.

The Group believes that the Group maintains a good working
relationship with its employees. Since its inception, the Group
has not embroiled in any significant labor dispute or any
dispute with the labor authorities of the Chinese government.
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FRAR RIEE D EE ABEHHMT by gender, employment type, age group and region is as follows:
EEAY ERAER =5
Total number of employees Employment type By gender
S 7t
Male Female
282 HER - RITSHER 192 90
Full time with a labor contract signed
BEAE (ZFEREHNED) EEAE (RHEES)
Numbers of Employee (By age group) Numbers of Employee (By region)
142
251
82
44
12 6 14 11
- 2 . , I , _——
T 1 FEAFE China  &#Hong Kong & Taiwan #5h Overseas
18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >61 Mainland
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's
employee turnover rates by gender, age group and region are
as follows:

REREAR RIE
By age group By region
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Aged

Aged Aged Aged 61and China
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25.53% 29.17% 17.78% 56.10%
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16.20% 4.55% 8.33% —  27.89% 16.67% 7.14%

Health and Safety

The Group is required to comply with the Safety Production
Law, the Labor Law of the PRC and other relevant Chinese
laws, administrative regulations, national standards and
industry standards, which stipulate the requirements on
maintaining a safe production environment and safeguarding
employees’ occupational health. In accordance with these
regulations, an entity with any facility or equipment failing to
guarantee safety production shall not engage in production
and business operations. Entities operating in China must
provide employees with safe production education and related
training programmes as well as a safe working environment.
The design, manufacturing, installation, use, inspection and
maintenance of production facilities and equipment must meet
applicable national or industry standards.

The Group has implemented safety measures within its
production facilities to ensure compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements and minimise the risk of injury to
employees. The Group regularly examines its operating facilities
to ensure that the Group’s production and operations are in
compliance with the existing laws and regulations. In addition,
the Group requires new employees to receive job safety
training.

In 2018, there was no work-related accident or injury occurred
thanks to the foregoing procedures and measures taken by the
Group. In addition, each new employee is required to provide a
qualified medical certificate, and the Company arranges health
examination for the employees each year.
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Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement of
the staff’'s quality and related professional skills, and develops
training programmes for them according to the business needs
of each position.

In 2018, all employees of the Group received two hours of
training on average, and the numbers of training sessions by
type of training are set out below.

SREERE -
hRER
£
Training
forsenior  RUFEHZI  MBEEI 0 EEEEIN HEIEI
and middle Technical Financial Production  Orientation
management training training training training
AR E 1 3 4 1 1
Number of training sessions
LT XA Labor Standards
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B DI IER R TR S DECRE - EE T A AR
BB BETHRRGIST - EMERBER -

BEEE
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NEE  RARARARBRHERRLRED  TERER
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R
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The Group generally recruits talent via recruitment websites,
and never employs child labor or forced labor. The Group also
follows the relevant national laws and regulations to rationalise
labor relations and division of labor by improving relevant
measures and mechanisms, to safeguard the legitimate rights
and interests of employees and to resist child labor or forced
labor, thus guaranteeing no irregularities.

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers include (a) manufacturers from which
the Group purchases components for its products and (b)
subcontractors undertaking certain production processes
for the Group’s products. In 2018, the Company’s qualified
suppliers were mainly based in Guangdong, Jiangsu, Xi‘an, and
Shanghai.
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The Group requires its suppliers to import QP-13 procurement
control procedures and QP-14 supplier evaluation and
management control procedures using the Company's 1SO
filing system. All suppliers have been implemented and
managed according to the system:

1. Access review: set up access requirements for suppliers
and maintain supplier profiles; and review each
supplier's operating conditions, production capacity,
quality assurance system, product quality, delivery
period and other related information to ensure that the
raw materials purchased meet the quality and safety
standards under the national laws, regulations and
standards.

2. Process review: set up procedures for reviewing raw
materials in the utilisation process and a traceability
mechanism to ensure consistent product quality during
the supply process; and review the purchase inspection,
for-production utilisation, examination results and
handling of substandard products with regard to the
suppliers’ products.

3. Evaluation management: establish an evaluation system
to conduct comprehensive evaluation of suppliers on
a reqular basis; evaluate the product quality, delivery
capacity, technical level and product qualification rate of
each supplier, and weed out or request improvements
from the unsatisfactory suppliers.

4. On-site review: conduct regular on-site reviews of key
raw material suppliers in terms of production capacity,
production process, quality control, etc.

Product Responsibility

In the case of product returns because the products do not
function normally due to any software issues or misuse of the
product, the Company may, if necessary, dispatch a technician
to clarify the causes for the customer face to face, and if
possible, to try and resolve the problem on the spot, otherwise
the Unqualified Product Control Procedures and the Control
Procedures for Corrective and Preventive Measures shall apply.
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The Group follows the Quality Control Procedures and applies
a product recall process to guarantee the specifications of all its
products.

In 2018, none of the products sold were returned to the Group
due to safety or health problems.

The Group strictly abides by the Law on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of Consumers to safeguard the rights and
interests of consumers and their privacy.

The Group shall agree on certain confidentiality clauses or
sign a confidentiality agreement with any entity which is
commissioned by, or works with, the Group to develop new
technologies or new products.

The Group also incorporates confidentiality clauses into labor
contracts and has signed a confidentiality agreement with
each employee to make it clear that the employees have the
obligation to keep the Company’s secrets. As for other relevant
intellectual property rights, the national intellectual property
protection standards are strictly followed.

Anti-corruption

The Group's employee handbook and cooperation agreements
with suppliers all have anti-corruption and bribery provisions,
and a whistle-blowing mailbox has been set up to strengthen
the Company'’s internal control mechanism, so as to safeguard
the Company'’s interests and prevent corruption and fraud.

In 2018, neither the Group nor its employees were involved in
any legal proceedings relating to corruption.

COMMUNITY

Community Investment

The Group has been actively living up to its responsibility to
promote harmonious development of society as an important
direction for its long-term development. Each year, the Group
sponsors physical examination for the employees, and organises
various group activities to entertain the employees. In addition,
the Group also pays urban maintenance and construction tax
for urban construction on an annual basis.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xueliang (22 R), aged 56, is the chairman,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and the Founder of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive officer
of our Company with effect from 20 September 2015. He
is also a director of SMIT Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of our Group. He has over 17 years
of management experience in the IC design industry.

From March 1989 to December 1991, Mr. Huang worked in
the China National Electronic Devices Corp., Shenzhen branch*
(FREFRMHELABRYIAQF), a company primarily engaged
in distributing and selling computer related components and
other electronic components. From January 1992 to February
1993, Mr. Huang worked as the vice manager in Shenzhen
Xianke Mechatronics Corporation* (&I CBHER E F 2
Al), a company engaged in the processing of various electronic
modules and components. Mr. Huang is the Board Chairman
of Shenzhen State Micro Science and Technology Co. Ltd.* (%
T ERHEBBR A F), a company engaged in the research
and development of integrated circuit design, since 1993. Mr.
Huang was appointed as non-independent director of Nationz
Technologies Inc. (BRI 5 B R A7), a leading provider
of secure IC products and services since May 2018. He has
served as the deputy director of China Semiconductor Industry
Association IC Design Branch* (B EEITEHEERE
R ET D &) since November 2005, and deputy director of
The Integrated Circuit Design Industry Technology Innovative

Alliance (55X FE 55 R HEE SR Bl A1 ¥ BRRS St L)

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor
from Xidian University (formerly known as North-western
Telecommunications Engineering School* (Fadt E & T2 £05%))
in July 1984 and a master’s degree in electrical engineering
from Southeast University in April 1989.

Mr. Shuai Hongyu (BP4L5), aged 58, is an executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Shuai joined the Group on October 2005,
and was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
23 March 2017.
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Mr. Shuai is the president and the chief operating officer of
our Company. He is primarily responsible for co-leading, with
Mr. Huang Xueliang, our business operation and overseeing
strategic technologies. Mr. Shuai is also a director of SMIT
Hong Kong and SMIT Shenzhen. Mr. Shuai has more than 20
years of industry experience related to image processing and
digital television technologies.

From 1987 to 1989, Mr. Shuai has been the engineer in the
computer department of the Sichuan Province Remote Sensing
Center* (FJI|& ERZRAHOFTEE). From 1989 to 2000, Mr.
Shuai was the vice president of the Southwest Branch of China
Council for the Promotion of Applied Technology Exchange
with Foreign Counties* (FF B 4hE AR RICE S
). From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Shuai worked as the vice
president of Beijing Zhongshilian Digital System Co., Ltd.*
(bR REEE T R B R A F]). Between March 2001 to
March 2004, Mr. Shuai was the general manager of DTVIA
Conditional Access System (CHINACRYPT) Co., Ltd.* (At 48
ISR RS AR A A, a conditional access joint-venture
between Philips Cryptoworks (China) Limited and China Digital
TV Holding Co., Ltd. Between July 2004 and October 2005,
Mr. Shuai worked as the general manager of Beijing Pu‘aode
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (At FUBREEHE M AR A R),
a company engaged in the design and development of digital
television system.

Mr. Shuai obtained a bachelor’s degree in wireless
communication in July 1982 and a master’'s degree in
engineering in January 1987 from Xindian University (formerly
known as North-western Telecommunications Engineering
School* (FaL B T2 E0r).

Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun (883X %), aged 64, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Loong joined the
Group on July 2013, and was appointed as an executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017.

Mr. Loong is the executive vice president and chief financial
officer of our Company. Mr. Loong is primarily responsible for
the management of the overall financial and accounting affairs
of our Group.
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Mr. Loong has extensive experience in accounting and related
financial management. Prior to 2006, Mr. Loong had extensive
experience working at Lucent Technologies (China) Co., Ltd..
Between April 2006 and July 2009, he served as the chief
financial officer and chief operating officer at UTStarcom
Telecom Co., Ltd., the subsidiary of UTStarcom Holdings Corp.
(NASDAQ: UTSI), a global telecom infrastructure provider,
focused on delivering innovative carrier-class broadband
transport and access (both Wi-Fi and fixed line) products and
solutions, optimised for mobile backhaul, metro aggregation,
broadband access and Wi-Fi data offloading. Between January
2010 to May 2012, Mr. Loong was the chief financial officer of
China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Ltd. (NYSE: MY), a wind
turbine manufacturer in China, listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, focusing on designing, manufacturing, selling and
servicing megawatt-class wind turbines.

Mr. Loong graduated from the University of Washington with
a Bachelor of Arts degree in business administration in June
1978 and was qualified as a certified public accountant in New
Jersey in the United States in February 1990.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Songtao (E#AE), aged 49, is a non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Gao joined the Group on 23
March 2017 when he was appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017.

Mr. Gao, graduated from the University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China with a bachelor degree in July 1991,
and he received a master’'s degree in economics from the
Renmin University of China in June 2006 and an IMBA degree
jointly from the Fudan University and the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Gao is currently the vice president of Sino-IC Capital
Ltd.* GERIREERBMREML AR, the general partner of
China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.*
(BIREKBHREZEREESRMHARAR) (“China IC Fund”).
China IC Fund indirectly holds the entire share capital of Xinxin
(Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited* (Z/N(EE)IREERAT),
one of our cornerstone investors during the global offering of
the Shares in 2016.
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Mr. Gao is currently a director of Beijing BDStar Navigation Co.,
Ltd. * b mdb 3 2 BEMIFMTAR DB R A F]), a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002151), Shenzhen
Goodix Techology Co.,Ltd. (RIITHETERZR G BRAR),
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603160), Rockchip Electronics Co.,Ltd BN E FRD AR A
7)), a solution provider and chip designer in mobile Internet.

Mr. Zeng Zhijie (& 2 #¢), aged 51, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Zeng joined our Group in September
2015 and was appointed as a non-executive Director of our
Company with effect from 20 September 2015. Mr. Zeng has
been a director of SMIT Corporation since February 2008.

Currently Mr. Zeng has been chairman, founder and partner of
Hongtai Fund, also founder and partner of Yuan He Hou Wang
Growth Fund. Mr. Zeng once served in CITIC Limited at Hong
Kong and Mitsubishi Corporation in Japan. Between January
2001 and December 2007, Mr. Zeng served as a managing
director of Walden International and mainly responsible for
venture investments in China and other Asian countries.
Between 2008 and 2017, Mr. Zeng was appointed as the
senior managing director of CITIC Capital Holdings Limited and
general manager of Kaixin Investment, responsible for venture
capital investment and business growth of CITIC capital.
Besides SMIT Holdings Limited, Mr. Zeng also served as director
or independent director of ChinaSoft International Limited
(HKSE: 354).

Mr. Zeng obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from
the University of Nagasaki, Japan in March 1996, a master of
science degree in management from Stanford University in
June 2001 and a doctor degree in economics from Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in 2017.

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen (BE3&), aged 61, is a
non- executive Director of our Company. Mr. Kwan joined
our Group in September 2015 and was appointed as a
non- executive Director of our Company with effect from
20 September 2015. Mr. Kwan has been a director of SMIT
Corporation since February 2008.
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He served as the regional vice president and managing
director of North Asia from July 2001 to January 2006 and
the vice president from January 2006 to April 2007 in Yahoo!
International. Mr. Kwan has been a venture partner of Oak
Management Corporation, a venture capital firm which is an
affiliate of Oak Investment Partners X, L.P., since April 2007.
He has served as a director since November 2008 and was a
member of the audit committee for NeoPhotonics Corporation
(NYSE: NPTN), a designer and manufacturer of photonic
integrated circuit based modules listed in the New York Stock
Exchange until November 2015.

Mr. Kwan obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of British Columbia in May
1982, a master of business administration degree from the
Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania in May 1987, and
a Master of Arts degree from the University of Pennsylvania in
May 1987.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junjie (3R ), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in the investment
banking industry. Mr. Zhang has served as the general manager
in the business department of the investment bank, Guosen
Securities Company Limited since February 2005.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in oil development and
drilling engineering from the Jianghan Petroleum University
(now known as Yangtze University) in June 1992. He received
a master’s degree in industrial economics from Wuhan
University of Technology in June 1999. Mr. Zhang also received
an executive master of business administration degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in October 2012.
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Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (# % #), aged 50, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Woo
joined the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Woo has over 20 years of experience in the accounting
and financial services industry. He began his career at Arthur
Andersen & Co where he qualified. From November 1997 to
March 2004, Mr. Woo served as a vice president of capital
markets advisory M&A execution, investment banking division
of ING Bank H.V.. From June 2006 to August 2006, Mr. Woo
served as managing director and head of finance corporate
at CITIC Securities (HK) Company Limited. From August 2007
to June 2010, Mr. Woo served as a director in the investment
banking department of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, a
leading financial services company. Mr. Woo joined IRC Limited
(HKSE: 1029), an industrial commodities producer listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange as an executive director
between June 2010 to March 2015 and he has since then
been re-designated as a non-executive director of IRC Limited.
Mr. Woo has served as an independent non-executive director
of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (HKSE: 2789), a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of curtain
walls listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
April 2011.

Mr. Woo received a bachelor’s degree of commerce in the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1992. Mr.
Woo became a certified practising accountant of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants in November 1996,
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in April 2005.

Mr. Jin Yufeng (£ £ %), aged 58, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Jin joined the Group
on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company with effect from 6 March
2016.
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Mr. Jin has over 20 years of research experience in the
electronic engineering industry. From April 1985 to March
1999, Mr. Jin worked as an engineer and senior engineer in
the 55th Research Institute of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation* (FBEFRIFEEBE QR ER TR
FT), which is specialised in the research and development on
electronic components. From April 1999 to February 2001,
Mr. Jin was a post-doctoral research fellow in the Institute of
Microelectronics, Peking University (b 5 K E 8 E 7 24 58ht).
November 2001 to October 2004, Mr. Jin served as a senior
research engineer of Singapore Institute of Manufacturing
Technology. He has been a professor in the School of
Electronics Engineering and Computer Science* ({5 BRI,
fir22B3) in Peking University since August 2006. Mr. Jin was a
consultant of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (&8 & A RHE AT 7E8 A BR
A A])from August 2007 to November 2007. Mr. Jin has served
as an independent director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd* (=

8B &R D AR AF]) (SHSE: 600171), an IC designer and
appllcatlon developer listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
since December 2013.

Mr. Jin received his bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering
and master’s degree in electronic engineering from Southeast
University (previously known as Nanjing Institute of Technology
(AR TEP7)) in July 1982 and July 1985 respectively. He
received his doctorate degree in physics and electronics from
Southeast University in March 1999.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric (#Bk#%), aged 35, is the company
secretary of our Company. Mr. Cheng has approximately
13 years of experience in accounting and related financial
management. Mr. Cheng worked in the audit department
of Kreston CAC CPA Limited (previously named as Chan and
Chan) from September 2006 and left the firm as an assistant
audit supervisor in May 2011. Between May 2011 and August
2012, he worked as a senior accountant and subsequently
as a finance manager in Icicle Production Company Limited.
Between October 2012 and March 2013, he served as an
audit manager of L & P CPA Limited. From May 2013 to July
2014, Mr. Cheng served as an assistant accounting manager
of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1803), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in July 2006. Mr. Cheng received a
master of professional accounting degree from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2012. He has been registered
as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2010.
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Directors are pleased to present their reports and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay TV broadcasting access and for mobile point-of-sales, or
mPOS, payment systems in China. The Group designs, develops
and markets security devices primarily for the pay TV industry
worldwide through sales of conditional access module, or
CAM, products which provide end users with access to pay TV
content. The Group also develops and markets mobile point-of-
sale, or mPOS devices for the hardware-based mobile payment
industry in China, which enable users to make credit and
debit card transactions with mobility using their smartphones
or tablets rather than a traditional stationary POS terminal. In
2018 the Group acquired S2C Tech Inc., a company engaged
in the development and sales of rapid verification system and
software.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the section head “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 5 to 21 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

For the details of the results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 and the financial condition of the Group at
that date, please refer to the consolidated financial statements
on page 94 to 255.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent (equivalent to approximately USDO.1cents) per share,
totaling USD402,964.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at 31
December 2018 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had of
USD31,295 (2017: Nil) to charitable organisations.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in the Company's share capital for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

To recognise and acknowledge the contributions made by
certain of its employees, directors and consultants to the
growth of SMIT Corporation, SMIT Corporation adopted a
share incentive plan on 21 February 2008 (the “2008 Share
Plan”). As part of the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company, the Company assumed the 2008
Share Plan as the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of the
sole shareholder passed on 15 September 2015, and assumed
all the rights and obligations under options granted by SMIT
Corporation under the 2008 Share Plan, and all share option
agreements entered into between SMIT Corporation and
the holders of such options, to the intent and effect that all
such share options granted under, and such share option
agreements entered, under the 2008 Share Plan will be valid,
binding and enforceable against the Company in accordance
with their terms, as if such options had been granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
have or may have made to the Company. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to offer selected persons an
opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the success
of the Company, or to increase such interest, by purchasing
Shares of the Company.

The eligible participants (collectively the “Eligible Participants”)
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme include any individual
who is (i) an employee of the Company, any of its parent
companies or any of its subsidiaries; (i) a member of the board
of directors of the Company who is not an employee of the
Company; or (iii) a consultant to the Company, any of its
parent companies or any of its subsidiaries.

Each share option agreement shall specify the date on
which all or any instalment of the option shall be granted to
each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
term of options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be specified in the share option
agreement and, in any case, shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. The exercise price of the options were
determined by the directors of SMIT Corporation.
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No further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme on or after the Listing Date.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as 31 December 2018:

“B-NE
-A-A EORARE  HZE-NE O RCE-NE RCRNF
RiERE MEFIRHE HRER HRER HREE  BECR-NF
BBRGEE Weighted i Frit s %k tZA=t-8
Number of average Exercised Cancelled Lapsed HAGE
Share underlying closing price during during during Outstanding
AEAER /48 the options HEA beforethe  thefinandal ~ thefinancal  the financial as of
Category/ granted as at RERH [k BREH Expiration exercise year year year 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2018 Dateof Grant ~ Exercise Price Vesting Date Date dates 2018 018 2018 018
i3
Directors
2ER 36904 ZTRNEZANA 001%T “T-FEZAAA “%-N\F=ANA 37537 36904 = = =
Huang Xueliang 09032008 Uspo.01 09032010 081032018 HK$3.75
73807 ERN\FZANA 00137 R-R5=ANR “E2-N\£zA)\H 35T 13807 - - -
09032008 Uspo.01 09032010 081032018 HK$3.75
590,454 ERN\F=ANA 00157 R-RF=ANR “E2-\£2ANH 35T 590454 - = -
09032008 Uspo.01 09032010 081032018 HK$3.75
1476134 ZZENFLAZTRA 00437 R-ZFEAZTRA “E2-\£2AN\R 3T5ET 1476,134 - - -
260072009 USD0.04 26072013 081032018 HK$3.75
1476,134 “E-Z£SRER 00427 “R-mF=f3A “E-AFRATEA 539 1476134 - - -
05032010 USD0.04 05032014 150052019 HK$5.39
4578278 “E-3FNA-A 05437 “R-mEnA-A 2-3FN\A=1T-B - - - - 4578278
01/0972010 USD0.54 01/092014 31082020
2,372,008 “2--%£Zj-H 106X “5-1=R-A “2_-%=h-H - a - - 2372,08
01/032011 US1.06 01/032015 01/032021
731,847 S 06251 Z2-7FnA=TR ZR-FMA-TEA = - - = 137,847
300092012 Ush0.62 301092016 250042022
738,067 “2-=§/\A-A 05637 “2-tF\A-A “RCFEA=T-B - - - = 738,067
01/082013 USD0.56 01/082017 31007203
gag0 3682 ZEENEAZTAR 00437 ZE-ZFEACTA ZE2-\£=A)\R 688 236,182 - - -
Kwan Allan Chung-yuen"” 260072009 USD0.04 260072013 081032018 HK$6.68
1,585,138 ZE-FENA-A 05457 “E-mENA-A E-FENA=T-R = = = = 1,585,138
01/092010 USD0.54 01/092014 31082020
285,787 “E-%£Zh-8 1.06%70 “5-1E=A-A ZEC-£2h-H = = = = 285,787
01/032011 USD1.06 01/032015 011032021
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“8-NE ki
-A-A BEMNE  R-B-NF WOR-NE HCR-NE e
RiERE ThmE HRER HRER HRER “8-NE
BBRGEE Weighted i Frit s % tZA=t-8
Number of average Exercised Cancelled Lapsed MR
Share underlying closing price during during during Outstanding
BEAEH /48 the options Ll beforethe  thefinandal ~  thefinancal  the financial as of
Category/ granted as at REAH i BRER Expiration exercise year year year  31December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2018 DateofGrant ~ Exercise Price Vesting Date Date dates 2018 018 018 018
B2k 36904 ZTRNEZANA 001%T “3-FEZAAA ZF-N\FZANA 43587 36904 = = =
Zenq Zhije 090372008 Uspo.01 090372010 081032018 HK$4.35
36,904 “RRN\F=ANA 0012 Z5-ZEZANR “%-N\F=A/\R 435 36,904 - - -
090372008 Uspo.01 090372012 081032018 HK$4.35
3618 ZEEAFLACTAR 00421 “R-ZFEAZRE “2-N\F=A/\R 5367 236,182 - - -
260072009 USD0.04 26072013 081032018 HK$5.36
484 “5-35-R%A 00421 “3-MmF=f3A “E-AFRATER - - - - 4484
05032010 USD0.04 05032014 150052019
73807 “5--%5-5-H 1.06%7 “5-RE=R-H “5C-5-h-H - - - - 73807
01/032011 USD1.06 01/032015 01/032021
kS 000 ZF-AELAZTAB 00437 E-ZFEACTRE ZE2-N\£2ANH - = = = 200,000
Shuai Hongyu 260072009 USD0.04 26072013 081032018
1182153 “2-25=RRA 00437 “E-MmF=f3A ZE-nEIATEA = = = = 1,182,153
05032010 USD0.04 05032014 150512019
1,800,633 ZE-3FNA-A 05457 “E-mEnA-A E-3FN\A=T-B = = = = 1,800,633
01/0972010 USD0.54 01/092014 31082020
679,022 “2-4£2j-8 006X “5-1=R-A “2--%R-A = = = = 679,022
01/032011 USD1.06 010032015 01/032021
730,120 i 06257 ZE-FRAZTR ZE-FMA-TEA = = = = 730,120
300092012 USD0.62 301092016 250042022
590454 “E2-ZE)\B-H 05657 “3-—F1-5-H ZEIZFEA=T-B = = = = 590454
01/082013 USD0.56 01Ma013 3107203
EX& 6,544,129 ZE2-ZE)\R-H 01457 I i S o = = = = 6,544,129
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun 01/082013 Usho.14 01M2013 31007203
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=t BY-3 il
-A-8 AANE  RSE-AE 0 RSENE RSR-NE BE
Rilhe FnR HHER HHER HREE = k3
HBRA%A Weighted ikin'd it f&¥ t2Azt-R
Number of average Exercised Cancelled Lapsed BRI
Share underlying closing price during during during Qutstanding
REAER/ 48 the options 348 before the the financial the financial the financial asof
Category/ granted as at RHRH ikl | E Expiration xercise year year year 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2018 Date of Grant Exercise Price Vesting Date Date dates 018 018 018 018
BEAL
Connected persons
AE 11810 RE)\EZR0E 00157 Z3-Z%=ANR Z2-)\$ZA/\R ST0AT 11810 - - -
Bai Yu 090312008 UsD0.1 090312012 08/0312018 HK$5.70
2953 IERELAZTAA 0MET ZE-SEEAZAA 2§58 15087 953 - - -
260712009 U5D0.04 26072013 08/0312018 HKS7.50
41332 R-REZf1R 0MET “5-mE=RAA “-hERATEA 1887 1332 - - -
0500312010 5D0.04 0500312014 15052019 HKS7.28
Ban ZR-REECA=-A 05k ZE-BETCAZT-A “RCRETCAHA = = = = 13401
31122010 30075 31122014 30122020
13807 i S 06257 “E-EAAZTR “ToCERAZTRA = = = = 13807
30092012 130062 30092016 5004201
13807 Z2-Z5)\A-B 056X “3-tE\A-R “BoZEEAS-A 12887 13807 - - -
01/082013 U3D056 011082017 3107203 HKS7.28
CporpLimied® 3904 “ER\EZRNA ES b S SN “2-\EZF)\R 668ET B - = -
090312008 U3D0.t 090312012 08/0312018 HKS6.68
g SERELAZTAR 00T i S Z2-)\$ZA1R 6687 s - - -
2600712009 5D0.04 26072013 08/0312018 HKS6.68
s “B-TECREA 0MET “3-TEZRER St = = = = U

0500312010 USD0.04 050032014 15/052019
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2\ g
-A-8 AANE  RSE-AE RSENE RSR-NE BE
RukR HmR HREE HRER HREE = k3
HBRA%A Weighted ikin'd it fixh  tzB=t-8
Number of average Exercised Cancelled Lapsed BRI
Share underlying dlosing price during during during Qutstanding
RRABH/%B the options 348 before the the financal the financil the financial asof
Category/ granted asat BA% fie# #RAS Expiration exercise year year year 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2018 Date of Grant Exercise Price Vesting Date Date dates 018 018 018 018
&8 553,553 ZTRN\E=ANA 00157 3-%25ZANA “2-)\$Z518 87257 479,785 = 13808 -

Employees 090312008 UsDo.t 09/0312010 08/0312018 HK$8.72
580273 ZTRN\E=ANA 00157 2-25ZA0A Z2-)\$z51\8 63457 506,466 = 13807 -

090312008 UsD0.1 09/0312010 08/0312018 HK$6.34
2188744 ZIRNELAZTAR 0MET i S Z2-)\$Z5/8 65657 1,621,666 = 561,078 -

260712009 5D0.04 26072013 08/0312018 HKS$6.56
1513051 “E-352R1A 0MET “3-mE=A1A “3-NFRATER 8357 61,999 = = 145109

0500312010 5D0.04 0500312014 15052019 HK$8.35
1521810 3-250A-H 05457 Z3-mENA-B Z3oRENAZT-A 13487 306,650 = = 1,221,160

(10972010 UsD0.54 01/09/2014 3110812020 HKS7.34
2040 3-3EF2A=1-A 055 ZR-BETCAZT-A “RCRERCACHA 1887 280230 = = 1967210

31122010 UsD0.75 311202014 30122020 HKS7.85
548781 2——5-A)\A 07557 “2-15-A\A “2-5-R)\R = = o = 548781

08012011 UsD0.75 0810112015 08/012021
548781 “2—%2h-A 05457 “5-1%25-A i S = = = = 548781
011032011 U3D0.54 010312015 011032021

2208910 “2—%2h-A 10657 Z%-7%=5-R “R--%2R-R 89557 79,034 = = 2,149,936

011032011 UsD1.06 0110312015 011032021 HK$8.95
2716103 Z3-ERAHA 08257 Z3-EAAZTR Z3oCEMAZTER 64257 59,046 = = 2657,057

30092012 UsD062 30092016 5004201 HK$6.42
213304 “2-Z5\B-A 05637 Z3-t%\A-B Z3oZEEAST-A 48657 1,000 = = 213,04

(1/082013 U3D0356 011082017 3107203 HK$4.86
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2\ g
-A-8 AANE  RSE-AE 0 RSENE RSR-NE BE
RufkR HmR HREE HRER HREE = k3
HBRA%A Weighted ikin'd it fixh  tzB=t-8
Number of average Exercised Cancelled Lapsed BRI
Share underlying closing price during during during Qutstanding
RRABH/%B the options 38R before the the financial the financil the financial asof
Category/ granted asat BA%H firid| #RAS Expiration exercise year year year 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2018 Date of Grant Exercise Price Vesting Date Date dates 018 018 018 018
Eftaiass 390 “RE\EANA Sy “2-RECAAR “§-)\EANR 165870 3690 = = =
(BRHRRRER) 09030008 Uspot 09032010 08032018 HKS7.65
Other eligihle partcipants 256,34 Z32)\52A08 00157 2-25ZANA Z5-)\5Z8\R 92957 2834 - - -
(including former employees 090032008 USDo.01 090032010 081032018 HK$9.29
and consultants) 1,180910 ZEENELACTHR 00457 “3-ZFtA1hR “2-)\EZA)\R 640%T JI¥ 0} - 738,068 -
260712009 5D0.04 26072013 08/0312018 HKS6.40
3,086,368 “E-352R1A 0MET “3-MEZARA “3-N5RATEA 15787 147614 = 10334 2928420
0500312010 5D0.04 0500312014 150572019 HK$2.57
834,567 “3-250A-H 05457 “3-mENA-B Z3oRENAZT-A = = = 14762 819,805
(1/0972010 U3D0.54 0110972014 3110812020
ELAT/ I (NEES 3 g oy i L = = = BRI 3%
31122010 UsD0.75 311202014 30122020
25201 “2—%2h-R 10657 “3-1%z5-A “R--%2R-R . - = man 73806
011032011 UsD1.06 010312015 011032021
204390 ZE-ZESR-H 1157 2-75Z5-H S 8007 1549% = = 11939
01032012 Usp1.1 0110312016 011032012 HK$8.00
154,9% Z3-ZERAZHA 0657 Z3-EARZTR 1) il = = = 132853 014
30092012 UsD062 30092016 5004201
204390 “E-Z52R-R 08257 3-t5Z5-A RCZESR-A = = = = 204390
011032013 130062 01032017 01103203
& 51,497,563 61587 9218331 = 1899938 40319288

Total HK$6.15
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(1) BEREERBEERIAMEEANERET SR L ATRERGH
BEREREAER  BEBINT  (\BEERNBEASHEEE
R4 ¢ K (ii) Cykorp Limited(BAEE£E2 B A A E]) 5 BEAKE -

(2)  Cykorp Limited HEAERCEZ A ©

RBEH  ARFARAEBEREFEATEERAREE
AR AR IE M 8174 359,278,337 IRIR1D - REEE X AR
ERIB AT EATE A A B iR ER6.1578

JG °©
RBEH - BIEBERRFEEABIREREZH -

RIREH » 581,899,938 B R AHEEMBRERES
IRAFESE BB AR MR R -

B EXATREEN NIBES  SEEMERARBENE
PRAETTIE ~ SIS KR -

REZB-N\F+_A=1+—0 " BEERAFZEEFBERE
SHEIR L BB FTS R Y B TTHE SN0 8 73 40,319,288
BERR 7 - ATHR N F IR A7 0.04% T = & R A7 1.06 5
THEBTEETE  HERARXAR_ZT-N\F+-A
=t BHEHTRALD12.75% °

Notes:

(1) Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen is interested in share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares
which are held as follows: (i) options held in Mr. Kwan's personal
capacity, and (i) options held by Cykorp Limited, a company wholly

owned by Mr. Kwan.
(2) Cykorp Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen.

During the Reporting Period, a total number of 9,278,337
Shares were issued by the Company upon exercise of Pre-IPO
Share Options by option holders of the Group. The weighted
average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date
on which the Pre-IPO Share Options were exercised is HK$6.15.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Pre-IPO Share Options
were cancelled.

During the Reporting Period, a total number of 1,899,938 Pre-
IPO Share Options had lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no other Pre-IPO Share options were
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Reporting Period.

The number of outstanding Shares subject to the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2018 was 40,319,288 Shares, exercisable at the
respective exercise price between US$0.04 per Share and
US$1.06 per Share, representing approximately 12.75% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the business results and financial position of
the Group for the past five years is set out in page 256.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and as of the date
of this Report, Directors are:

Executive Directors

Huang Xueliang (Chief Executive)
Shuai Hongyu
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

Non-executive Directors

Zeng Zhijie
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen
Gao Songtao

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Junjie
Jin Yufeng
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As of the date hereof, each of the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years unless and until it is terminated by not less than three
months’ notice served by the Company to the Director.

Pursuant to Articles 84 and 85 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, one-third of Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and offer themselves for re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company at least once every three
years.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with the Group or any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Directors’ and senior management's biographical details are set
out in pages 48 to 54.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year. The Company has taken out and maintained Directors'’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors of the Group.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2018 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2018, and no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted
as at 31 December 2018 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of the Directors and
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

AE
NI E Remuneration band No. of Individuals
100,000 & T8k LA T~ USD 100,000 or below 6
100,001 370 A _EZ 200,000 % 7T USD 100,001 to USD200,000 0
200,000 T + More than USD200,000 3

EEMEeNIK2EEERT  BAKKRAUARAEENEE
MEE ° o EFHMRARRANFHEZREETFRT -
EEHMOFBHNGRE M ERERMEEIS -

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration
is reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company
annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 38 of the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EEBN
Btk (%)

Fris iR 40 8L B W= Approximate

EsuR 13 Number of  percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares heldNete interest (%)

R W2

Huang Xueliangh°te2

2 2 s

Zeng Zhijiehete

B e

Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen™ote4
BT

Shuai HongyuMete®
UL

Loong, Manfred Man-tsunhete®
st

1. FRILKKREOFE -

ERnBAN REEEE R
Beneficial owner/interest
in controlled corporation
EmEAaA

Beneficial owner
E=AA

Beneficial owner
E=ABA

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Beneficial owner

Notes:

172,049,090 f& A% 17 (L) 54.40
172,049,090 Shares(L)

516,648 B A% 17 (L) 0.16
516,648 Shares(L)
2,992,311 B&A% 5 (L) 0.95
2,992,311 Shares(L)
6,356,853 & A%1% (L) 2.02
6,356,853 Shares(L)
6,544,129 B P&17 (L) 2.08

6,544,129 Shares(L)

The letter “L" denotes a long position.

2. RZZE-NF+ZR=+—H BRREERNS043,624F%EMH
HAEERD RN RES 426400 RBRMAERERE AR - =
5 4 INFA Green Flourish Limited #5748 100% # z + 7 Infortune
International Limited %% 100% ##& # & 7 Statemicroelectronics
International Co., Ltd.¥850% &z - At - RRE BT
BH - SmEAWR AR D BIH Green Flourish Limited ~ Infortune
International Limited } Statemicroelectronics International Co.,
Ltd. % B % 2 # 128,656,454 8% A% 17 - 13,965,149 % Ak 15 &
15,957,463 A h FE A 2 o

2. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Huang Xueliang was interested in
5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 8,426,400 Shares. Mr. Huang also held 100% interest in Green
Flourish Limited, 100% interest in Infortune International Limited
and a 50% interest in Statemicroelectronics International Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Huang was therefore also deemed to be interested in the
128,656,454 Shares, 13,965,149 Shares and 15,957,463 Shares
interested by Green Flourish Limited, Infortune International Limited
and Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. respectively as at
the Latest Practicable Date.
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3 REZB-NF+_A=+—H BZHEEENATRHES16,6480%
et EO B IR R A A

4. RZE—N\F+=ZA=+H BEREEN223,418KKHF
BEAEEZ BN RE2,313,766 RRM MW EREPHES = - B8
e HE IR A Cykorp Limited 89 2 SF 42 % - A It - BE S £ WA 1E
R 455,127 B B 9 % A 32 88 Cykorp Limited A H R A58
442,841 AR in MR REE T HE A HE A o

5. RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8 "' BAFHER1,174,471 R
R AR A RRES5,182,382 I RO AR B

P

6. RZF—N\F+-—A=+—8 EXEEENAREE6544,129
PR AR 15 Y BR8 AS o A E 2 o

BREXABREEN R-Z-N\F+-A=+—8 #HEE
ER/EARRAERITRABRRREZ S RBEGIE
352 R FHA R R B LM A LI BRIBEE ST NS AR
RAEIRBREBMZANARBREMBEEEE(ER R ES R
HIEWROISE XV 2B B fn - MR B P H A RN

KA e

3. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Zeng Zhijie was interested in share
options to subscribe for 516,648 Shares.

4. As at 30 December 2018, Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen was
interested in 223,418 Shares and was interest in share options to
subscribe for 2,313,766 Shares. Mr. Kwan also held 100% interest
in Cykorp Limited. Mr. Kwan is therefore deemed to be interested
in the 455,127 Shares and share options to subscribe for 442,841
Shares in by CyKorp Limited.

5. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Shuai Hongyu was interested in
1,174,471 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 5,182,382 Shares.

6. As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun was
interested in share options to subscribe for 6,544,129 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors and/or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors
of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders/other persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Baott
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

EHHAERERO
Number and
class of securities”

Statemicroelectronics Exn#EAA
International Co., Ltd.

Statemicroelectronics Beneficial owner
International Co., Ltd.

MEFELRED

Mr. Zhu Changhua®

Junjie International Co., Ltd.

REEEE R

E=EAA

Beneficial owner

BEEE® REZEE R

Mr. Gong Jun®
NEB)REBRAT

Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited

E(EBREARAR®

EmEAA
Beneficial owner
1A E R A

Xunxin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. @ Interest in a controlled corporation

BIREKBHRERIRE
EZRINABRAF®

China Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. @

RARRERZERABR LA

CMBC International Holdings Limited

PRERARITIROBIR AR

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

KL B S

R GDEE MR

Interest in controlled corporation

Interest in controlled corporation

Interest in a controlled corporation

AR o 7 R A 25 O A

Person having a security interest in shares

Interest in controlled corporation

15,957,463 R& A% 17 (L) 5.05%
15,957,463 Shares(L)
22,013,014 BZR%7 (L) 6.96%
22,013,014 Shares(L)
19,140,656 AZ A% {7 (L) 6.05%
19,140,656 Shares(L)
19,362,077 &A% 17 (L) 6.12%
19,362,077 Shares(L)
29,999,000R% A% {7 (L) 9.48%
29,999,000 Shares(L)
29,999,000 A% A%17 (L) 9.48%
29,999,000 Shares(L)
29,999,000 A% A% 17 (L) 9.48%
29,999,000 Shares(L)
142,621,603 B&A% 5 (L) 45.09%
142,621,603 Shares(L)
142,621,603 SRR (L) 45.09%

142,621,603 Shares(L)
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MEERER T — \F+_A=+—HBHHE TR 73,807 KA
R BERRHE o (R EZE LTS B Capital Tower Profits Limited
I Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd.# & 100% &
50% K o At MEELER T - N\F+=-A=+—H
#7158 A5 Capital Tower Profits Limited & Statemicroelectronics
International Co., Ltd. % 5l # A& #95,981,7448% & 7 &
15,957,463 AR A B e ©

BEREAEN-ZE-—N\F+-A=+—"BFEBEARE221,421K
B A5 B B B4 o =15 %5 4E IR Junjie International Limited3F4&
100% M#Ezs - AL BEAER =T —\F+_A=+—B#%
AR Junjie International Limited #5748 #19,140,656 A& A% {5 4 #
Bk e

BEEMA BREXNEREEREECROARAAFAELS
(EB)REARRAMNI00%#Es  BL(LEB)REBRAA
EMHEEL(BB)REAFRAAIMN100% e - Bl - R=F
—N\F+-A=+—0 BREXEREXREZSROERA
AEG(LE)REARARASEAREANEL(FE)REAR
ARIFTFEA R 29,999,000 IRAR D #E B #E s ©
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MARLEAR AR B R M HARER MNP HEEERIORR -

The letter “L" denotes a long position.

Mr. Zhu Changhua held share options to subscribe for 73,807
Shares as at 31 December 2018. Mr. Zhu Changhua also held a
100% interest in Capital Tower Profits Limited and a 50% interest
in Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhu Changhua
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 5,981,744 Shares
and 15,957,463 Shares held by Capital Tower Profits Limited and
Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. respectively as at 31
December 2018.

Mr. Gong Jun held share options to subscribe for 221,421 Shares as
at 31 December 2018. Mr. Gong Jun also held a 100% interest in
Junjie International Limited. Mr. Gong Jun was therefore deemed to
be interested in the 19,140,656 Shares held by Junjie International
Limited as at 31 December 2018.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. held a 100% interest in Xunxin
(Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. which in turn held a 100% interest
in Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited. Each of China Integrated
Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and Xunxin (Shanghai)
Investment Co., Ltd. is therefore deemed to be interested in the
29,999,000 Shares held by Xinxin (HongKong) Capital Co., Limited
as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no other
parties were recorded in the register of the Company required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having interests

or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are related party transactions set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements that constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this report:

A property leasing framework agreement dated 28 August
2015 (the “Property Leasing Framework Agreement”) was
entered into between State Micro Science and Technology
Co. Ltd. (“State Micro Science and Technology”) as landlord
and our Group company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Shenzhen State Micro Technology Co., Ltd (“SMIT
Shenzhen”), as tenant in respect of the premises located at 1-2F
SSMEC Building and Room A, 1F and 2F of the Annex Building
of SSMEC Building, 15, Gaoxinnan 1st Avenue, High-tech Park
South, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China (the “Premises”) with
an area of approximately 3,722 sg.m. (subject to adjustment
as required by the business needs of the Group). The lease
was for a term of three years commencing on 1 September
2015 and expiring on 31 August 2018 at a rent with reference
to the prevailing market rates for similar properties (e.g. with
respect to floor space and age of the building) in the vicinity
and the rent guidelines set out in the city housing tenancy
management department policy in Shenzhen, the PRC. The
Premises consist of the major operation site of SMIT Shenzhen.
Details of the Property Leasing Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company's prospectus dated 16 March 2016.
The annual cap of this transaction for the financial year ended
31 December 2018 is RMB2,251,750. Between 1 January 2018
and 31 March 2018, when the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement was replaced by the New Tenancy Agreement (as
defined below), the Group paid rents of RMB1,201,530 for the
Premises.
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State Micro Science and Technology is controlled as to
approximately 65.89% by Mr. Huang Xueliang, an executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and is therefore an associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The applicable percentage
ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules for the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement on an annual basis will
be less than 25% and the total consideration is less than
HK$10,000,000. Therefore, the continuing connected
transaction under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
is exempted from the circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements but is subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 26 March 2018, State Micro Science and Technology Co.
Ltd. and SMIT Shenzhen signed a new tenancy agreement
(the "New Tenancy Agreement”) for a term of three years
starting from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021 (both days
included). The New Tenancy Agreement replaced the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement. Details of the New Tenancy
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 March 2018. The annual caps of annual rents and
costs and fees relating to air-conditioning and public utilities
are RMB3,883,126.5 for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018, RMB5,177,502 for the financial year ending
31 December 2019, RMB5,177,502 for the financial year
ending 31 December 2020, and RMB1,294,375.5 for the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 March 2021. The terms of
the New Tenancy Agreement were determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties with reference to (i) the
historical amounts paid by the Group to State Micro Science
and Technology for rent and the costs and fees relating to air-
conditioning and public utilities, (ii) prevailing market rates for
similar properties (e.g. with respect to floor space and age of
the building) in the vicinity, (iii) the rent guidelines set out in
the city housing tenancy management department policy of
Shenzhen, the PRC, and (iv) the estimated area of the Premises.
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As all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
annual caps for the New Tenancy Agreement are more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the transaction contemplated under
the New Tenancy Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements, but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 14 December 2018, Shenzhen Digital TV entered into the
Tenancy Agreement for a term of 6 months starting from 15
December 2018 to 14 June 2019 (both days included) with
SMIT Shenzhen, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
On the same date, SMIT Shenzhen entered into a Property
Management Services Agreement for a term of 6 months
starting from 15 December 2018 to 14 June 2019 (both days
included) with Shenzhen Digital TV and Shenzhen Excellance
Property, an independent third party property management
company and not connected to the Company.

Shenzhen Digital TV is a connected person of the Company
as it is controlled as to 65.62% by Shenzhen Qianhai Guowei
Investment* CRIIFEBRIZE B R A F]), which in turn is
100% owned as to Mr. Huang Xueliang, an executive Director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement
and Property Management Services Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the New Tenancy Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 14 December 2018. During
15 December 2018 to 14 June 2019, the annual cap amount
for the Tenancy Agreement is RMB3,292,228. The annual
cap for the Tenancy Agreement above is determined based
on the actual rent payable under the Tenancy Agreement for
the relevant period. During 15 December 2018 to 14 June
2019, the annual cap amount for the Management Fees is at
RMB518,928. The annual cap amount for the Management
Fees is determined based on the actual fees payable together
with the Company’s estimate of miscellaneous property
maintenance fees to be incurred based on normal business
activity level during the term of the Property Management
Services Agreement.
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The terms of the Tenancy Agreement and the Property Services
Management Agreement have been determined after arm'’s
length negotiation between the parties with reference to(i)
prevailing market rates for similar properties (e.g. with respect
to floor space and age of the building) in the vicinity, (ii) the
rent guidelines set out in the city housing tenancy management
department policy of Shenzhen, the PRC, (iii) the estimated
area of the Premises and (iv) prevailing market rates of property
management service costs with reference to annual consumer
price index published by the PRC government and minimum
wage fluctuations affecting property management companies
in the vicinity.

As all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
annual caps for the New Tenancy Agreement are more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the transaction contemplated under
the New Tenancy Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements, but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction as defined and required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules, except for those described in this section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed such transaction has been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report as disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December
2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Set out below are the percentages of sales and purchases for
the year ended 31 December 2018 attributable to the Group's
major customers and suppliers:

Purchases

— The largest supplier 27.2%
— Five largest suppliers in aggregate 68.5%
Sales

— The largest customer 23.8%
— Five largest customers in aggregate 60.9%

Total sales of blockchain servers to one Shenzhen-based
technology company (the “Technology Company”), being the
Group's largest customer for the year ended 31 December
2018, which amounted to approximately USD9.6 million,
accounted for 23.8% of Group's total sales.
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Mr. Huang Xueliang, an executive Director who directly
and indirectly owns 54.40% of our issued share capital as
at 31 December 2018, holds a 5.31% equity interest in the
Technology Company. Furthermore, our excutive Director
Mr. Shuai Hongyu, also holds a 1.63% equity interest in the
Technology Company and acts as one of the technology
company'’s nine directors. However, Mr. Huang Xueliang and
Mr. Shuai Hongyu are not its employees, and are not involved
in the Technology Company'’s daily operation.

The total sales included the mPOS products sold to ShenZhen
iBOXPAY Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“iBoxpay
Shenzhen”), which amounted to approximately USD4.4 million
(representing approximately 10.7% of the total sales amount),
being one of the Group's five largest customer for the year.

Mr. Huang Xueliang, our executive Director who owns 54.40%
of the Company'’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2018,
holds a 0.67% indirect equity interest in iBoxpay International
Inc. (“iBoxpay”), which is the holding company of iBoxpay
Shenzhen, one of the five largest customers of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018. In addition, Mr. Huang
Xueliang and Pacven Walden, amongst others, collectively own
a 7.99% equity interest in iBoxpay through SMIT Investment
Limited (“SMIT Investment”). Mr. Huang Xueliang serves
as one of the six directors of iBoxpay by virtue of being the
director representative of SMIT Investment interest in iBoxpay.
However, Mr. Huang Xueliang is not an employee of iBoxpay,
and is not involved in its daily operations.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the major customers or suppliers noted above.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the standards set out in the Model
Code as a code of conduct for the trading in securities of
the Company by all Directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company confirmed that
the Directors have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

As Directors’ information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, our Independent Non-
executive Director Mr. Woo Kar Tung Raymond tendered his
resignation as an executive director and the chief financial
officer of TUS International Limited (HKSE: 872), an automotive
safety company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 7 June 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained during the
year the amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There are no important events after 31 December 2018 up to
the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has formulated certain policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, including: environmental impact
assessment on various raw materials or machinery before
making any purchasing decisions in the design, research
and development phase; improvement of environmental
awareness of all employees through environmental protection
activities, training courses and promotion; and the appropriate
responsibilities, scope, policies and guidelines developed
by the Group’s top management that played a central role
in establishing clearly defined environmental management
framework and system.

In day-to-day operations, the Group has been closely
monitoring the latest developments in domestic and
international environmental legislation to ensure that its
environmental policies are consistent with domestic and
international standards while ensuring consistency with global
peers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company’s business is principally carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China, the shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The establishment and operation of the Group
are subject to the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
China and respective places of incorporation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of
this report, so far as the Company is aware, the Group is not
involved in any material breach of or irregularity against the
applicable laws and regulations that have a material effect on
the Group's business and operations.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The success of the Group also relies on the support from
key stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group’s human resource management
is designed to reward and recognise excellent employees by
providing reasonable compensation and benefits. Details of
the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the paragraph
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policies” above in this
report. In addition, the Group develops appropriate training
programmes specific to different posts, duties and titles, and
provides certain opportunities and platforms to assist them in
developing their career and seek promotion within the Group.
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Customers

Our CAM customers consist mainly of CA providers,
broadcasting operators, TV manufacturers and distributors. To
a lesser extent, we sell to one-off customers including various
companies and individuals, as well as direct sales to end users
through third-party internet platforms. We currently sell mPOS
devices primarily to iBoxpay and to a much lesser extent, to
other hardware-based mobile payment service providers in
the PRC. The Group aims to provide customers with quality
products and services to seek sustained growth in sales revenue
and profitability. The Group has established various ways to
enhance communication between its customers and the Group,
in an effort to provide superior quality products and services to
increase market penetration and expand various businesses.

Suppliers

The Group maintains good relationship with its suppliers, a
crucial element in the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements, which can be cost-
effective and promote business interests in the long run. Major
suppliers include raw material suppliers, system and equipment
suppliers, external consultants providing professional services,
suppliers of office supplies or goods and other business
partners providing value-added services to the Group.

Regulators

The Company is listed in Hong Kong and is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the State Administration
of Work Safety, the General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of China and other
relevant authorities. The Group expects to keep up-to-date
and ensure compliance with the new rules and regulations.
To enhance corporate value for shareholders is one of the
Group’s corporate objectives. The Group promotes business
development to achieve sustainable earnings growth while
taking capital adequacy into account.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's business operations are affected by changes in
market conditions, the changing industry standards, industry
competition and the ever-changing customer demands. It is
essential that the Group responds in a timely manner to such
changes which may adversely affect the Group’s business and
financial results. The Group also faces other financial risks in
the ordinary course of business, such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. Details of financial risk management
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERNATIONAL SANCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
CAM sales to customers located in Russia, which accounted
for 7.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018, as well as sales to customers located in the
Balkans and Ukraine, which in aggregate accounted for 13.5%
of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2018. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had no sales to Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. The percentage
of revenue contribution from relevant customers located in
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions
in the year ended 31 December 2018 increased to 21.1%
from 5.8% during the year ended 31 December 2018, mainly
attributable to a substantial decrease in sales from customers
located in certain jurisdictions which recorded strong revenue
in the year ended 2017.

In the coming year, the Group is expected to continue its sales
to customers located in Russia, the Balkans and Ukraine and
does not expect any significant increase or decrease in the
Group's sales to customers located in those jurisdictions. The
Group also expects no sales or immaterial sales to customers
located in Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group did not, and has no present
or future intention to, enter into any transactions in the
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions or
with persons and entities which are listed on any international
sanctions list that the Group believes would put the Group
or its investors at risk of violating or becoming the target of
international sanctions.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2019
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To the Shareholders of SMIT Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SMIT Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 94 to 255, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Business combination

. Valuation of unlisted investments
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KEY AUDIT MATTER
KEY AUDIT MATTER
Business combination

Refer to note 4.7 and note 35 of the consolidated financial
statements.

On 29 November 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of S2C Tech Inc.. Management assessed the nature of the
acquisition by assessing if there are economic resources and
associated business processes. Management determined that
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed under the acquisition
constituted a business and therefore the transaction was
accounted for as a business combination.

Accounting for business combination requires the Group to
allocate the purchase price to the assets acquired, liabilities
assumed, and identified intangible assets based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.

The Group assessed the fair values of the assets acquired,
liabilities assumed and identified intangible assets based on
an independent valuation report prepared by an independent
external valuer. In aggregate, identified intangible assets of
license use rights and goodwill recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
USD4.6 million and USD15.9 million, respectively.

The fair values of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed
and identified intangible assets were determined by using
the discounted cash flow (“DCF"”) approach and various key
assumptions and estimates including revenue growth rate,
discount rate and terminal growth rate.

We focused on this area because the carrying values of the
identifiable intangible assets and the goodwill are significant
to the consolidated financial statements and the valuation
methodology and key assumptions require the use of significant
judgements and estimates. These estimations are also subject to
uncertainties.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

We discussed and inquired management on the basis in
determining the nature of the transaction to assess the
economic resources and business processes associated with
the acquisition and thus management’s assessment of the
acquisition being accounted for as a business combination.

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer by considering its qualification,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our discussion
with management and the independent external valuer to
understand and assess the appropriateness of the methodology
used and the assumptions and estimates applied.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rate by
considering the weighted average cost of capital and the risk
profile of the investee.

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions used
such as revenue growth rate and terminal growth rate by
comparing these assumptions against relevant market data and
industry research.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy on the calculation of the
fair values of identified net assets, goodwill and intangible
assets.

Based on the procedures described above, we considered the
methodology used and key assumptions and estimates applied
in the valuation of the Group’s business combination are
supportable by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER
Valuation of unlisted investments

Refer to note 4.6, note 3.3(a) and note 19 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Unlisted investments of the Group were recognised at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition and requires
subsequent re-measurement at fair value at each period end. The
Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the fair
value of these investments that are not quoted in active markets.
These valuation techniques require significant unobservable
inputs which involve significant management judgements and
assumptions and thus involved a higher degree of uncertainty in
the valuations.

Fair value of one of the unlisted investments was determined
by using DCF approach. The fair value of this unlisted
investment amounted to USD5.6 million as at 31 December
2018 was assessed based on independent valuation prepared
by an independent external valuer. The related fair value gain
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31 December 2018 in relation to this unlisted investment
amounted to USD3.8 million.

Key underlying assumptions and estimates of the valuation
include revenue growth rate, discount rate, terminal growth rate
and gross profit margin used in the business plan of the investee.

We focused on this area because the carrying values of the
unlisted investments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and significant judgements and estimates were used
in the valuation techniques. These estimations are also subject to
uncertainties.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of
independent external valuers by considering their qualification,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our discussion
with management and independent external valuers to
understand and assess the appropriateness of the methodology
used and the assumptions and estimates applied in DCF.

We obtained and assessed the business plan of the investee
that supports the cash flow projections used in DCF through
inquiry of management and obtaining supporting documents
including agreements and contracts to corroborate our
understanding of the business growth of the investee.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rate by
considering the investee’s weighted average cost of capital and
the risk profile of the investee.

We assessed the reasonableness of the revenue growth rate,
gross profit margin and terminal growth rate by comparing
these assumptions against relevant market data and historical
experience of the investee.

Based on the procedures described above, we considered
the key assumptions and estimates used in the valuation of
the Group's unlisted investment are supportable by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

91



92 o EMEIERERAT
FEHRE2018

B2 HE RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

s HEERARKELESHERNREUFELES R
BATEMNENRE  BEEEFEEFRALBRLE
MHBEATHEEN KM EEHE BEENFE
REENELBERRE - MRBPIRBFEERTHE
Tl AV EEREMRETIREERE LRGSR
MBEHRRPOBEEE - REFBOKETE - AR
PMEERRIFEREZR - HPINEHREERZHED
HER RGN ERSERE - AT - RRFEXBER
AR BRETRSELE -

s TESAUBHRRNERIHSA HBNAR 8
ERE  UWRGEEMBBRESTERRISHMER -

e H BEEEAERIEBEIINYBEHNERTRE
EMETRE  UEHHEEUBRRERER - BN
BE BEEEBFFOIE - BEBMNT - HAAE
BRAERIEME -

BREMEBEN  RARBZZESRB T AHEMEAHE
RREZ M - EXEFHRT - BERMERT P H A
22 1 BV (R R BN R B o

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Hiu Yam, Winnie.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-Z—\F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE+-A=t—BHLHEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-)N\F S
2018 2017
B =E ETT ZETT
Note UsD UsD
Was Revenue 5,6 41,318,578 91,780,923
$HE B AR Cost of sales 7 (27,641,807) (59,277,526)
EF Gross profit 13,676,771 32,503,397
Hilzs,/(KE18) - FH Other gains/(losses), net 6 3,967,391 (1,982,646)
H A Other income 6 1,013,346 1,045,476
e Research and development expenses 7 (7,799,119) (7,765,265)
SHE R DA Selling and distribution expenses 7 (2,663,959) (2,982,378)
— R ERITERAX General and administrative expenses 7 (8,862,635) (7,248,639)
SREEREFERE Net impairment losses on financial assets 7 (759,318) —
T (), wF Operating (loss)/profit (1,427,523) 13,569,945
BEWA - F5 Finance income, net 9 1,149,740 461,282
BRATEH A (B518) A (Loss)/profit before income tax (277,783) 14,031,227
FrisfiEe, (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 11 1,593,307 (2,932,359)
FRER Profit for the year 1,315,524 11,098,868
T & IEEMRRER Profit is attributable to:
VIN/NEIE Z DN Owners of the Company 1,317,734 11,098,868
FEPERR A 2 Non-controlling interests (2,210) —
1,315,524 11,098,868
ANEHEE ABEEMAF © Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company:
BREARN (FRZET) Basic earnings per share (USD per share) 12 0.004 0.037
BREERN(FRET) Diluted earnings per share (USD per share) 12 0.004 0.035
R & e 2 E B A BT BT 5 — B AE o The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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HE_T—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE+-A=t—BHLHEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ETT 2T
UsD Usb
FREF Profit for the year 1,315,524 11,098,868
Ht 2w (EE), Ik Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
BERGEEF 7 B2 18 am I E B Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
BEZHE Translation differences (3,807,022) 4,282,023
FRHEMEE(ER), RS Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
L net of tax (3,807,022) 4,282,023
EREE(ER) RS EE Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (2,491,498) 15,380,891
BUTS & T8 B4 Attributable to:
RARER A Owners of the Company (2,487,783) 15,380,891
FEFERR e =R Non-controlling interests (3,715) —
(2,491,498) 15,380,891
it ER A 2 s 7k E B R R M e — OF B GE - The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZ—/\F+ZA=1+—H Asat 31 December 2018

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F T+t
2018 2017
B =E ETT E
Note UsD UusD
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
M - HE REE Property, plant and equipment 14 1,735,894 2,006,053
H & E Other intangible assets 15 5,053,319 86,311
Bl Goodwill 24 22,151,954 6,570,079
B 5 I H eI & Trade and other receivables
B RIA and prepayments 18 41,750 545,554
FEiREERATEARDY Financial assets at fair value through
EREE profit or loss 19 18,246,807 3,808,986
FEIEFTISTEE Deferred income tax assets 23 2,770,689 1,022,564
50,000,413 14,039,547
RBEE Current assets
3 Inventories 16 9,981,613 16,727,865
B 5 I H h FE IR & Trade and other receivables
SELRE/ O and prepayments 18 20,836,355 13,291,275
AT e S Bt Income tax recoverable 138,006 —
RERRITER Short-term bank deposits 22 — 3,523,375
2R BRI TIF X Restricted bank deposit 20 5,000,000 —
RekREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21 54,962,324 84,100,969
90,918,298 117,643,484
BEE Total assets 140,918,711 131,683,031
EakEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Rz Equity
N Share capital 25 6,326 6,140
DR (E Share premium 25 100,982,947 98,362,681
A OtE Merger reserve 26 (48,810,141) (48,810,141)
VARE 15 B E 0 B 5 SR A 1 Share-based payment reserve 26 16,955,752 19,401,056
VEIE i Statutory reserve 26 4,913,464 4,913,464
REBEF Retained earnings 37,866,410 36,548,676
B Capital reserve 26 1,212,543 1,212,543
PE W Exchange reserve (1,108,347) 2,697,170
KAEHEA AEREARKEAE  Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company 112,018,954 114,331,589
FEFERR MR Non-controlling interests 240,480 —
wER Total equity 112,259,434 114,331,589
Lt ERE B RS AR 2% E ER R M e — OF B GE - The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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R-F—)\E+_FA=+—H Asat 31 December 2018

R+t=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—
2018 2017
B 5E E7T e
Note UsD usD
afE Liabilities
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
E th &~ 518 Other payable 28 1,507,404 —
EIEUA Deferred income 29 6,568,365 —
RIEFRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 23 692,730 —
8,768,499 —
REBEE Current liabilities
=) NS Trade payables 27 4,089,422 7,552,913
FERTE A R HALFE IE Accruals and other payables 28 5,048,584 7,670,160
EHEaRE Contract liabilities 740,720 —
RITER Bank borrowings 30 5,335,126 —
EE W Deferred income 29 4,669,282 969,746
FERTFT1S L Income tax payable 7,644 1,158,623
19,890,778 17,351,442
BEE Total liabilities 28,659,277 17,351,442
BEZRAE Total equity and liabilities 140,918,711 131,683,031
AR A BAFS AR R PR EARE T B R — HFBIAE - The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FIAESBEMGEMBRREN - NF_A=+TNBE The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 255 were
BEEgHAETRAERE - approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2019 and
were signed on its behalf.

FE BE
Huang Xueliang Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
Chairman Director

=HER BEXC B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_T—-N\F+_A=F+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

ARAERNER

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR A
i
BEGT]
B BROEE  AHEE  Shaebased  EEHEE W AAEE 0 ERRE  RERA R
Share Share Merger payment Statutory Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings equity
94 E9A £ T E9A E E E9A E9A
Uusp UsD usD Usp usb UsD usb Uusp Uusb
BE-S-tf For the year ended
tZR=t-ALEE 31 December 2017
RZZ—t5-F-AiEH Balance at 1 January 2017 6,037 97,421,918  (48810,141) 20,483,902 4,099,819 1212543 (1,584,853) 26,263,453 99,092,678
2EYE Comprehensive income
FREH Profit for the year — — — — — — — 11,098,868 11,098,868
HEER Translation differences = = — — — — 428,013 — 428,03
ERZEHEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = = = = — 4282023 11,098,868 15,380,891
BREANRS Transactions with owners
PARD BERE R EE Share-based compensation — — — 14,272 — — — — 14,272
ROEEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves — - - — 813,645 — —  (813,645) —
B8 TRIVUBEIETRN Issuance of shares under employee
share award scheme 20 302,563 — — — - — — 302,583
TEERE Exercise of share options 83 1,219,046 —  (1,097,118) — — — — 122,011
“E-tFRARNZZ—FHEBRE  Dividend relating to 2016
paid in May 2017 = (580,846) = = = = = = (580,846)
BEEANRS  ERERERED Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity 103 940,763 —  (1,082,846) 813,645 = = (813,645) (141,980)
RB-tE+-A=+-RAWE&ER Balance at 31 December 2017 6,140 98,362,681 (48,810,141) 19,401,056 4,913,464 1,212,543 2,697,170 36,548,676 114,331,589
B Representing:
v Capital 6,140 - - — — - - - 6,140
Gk Reserves — 97,560,148  (48,810,141) 19,401,056 4,913,464 1,212,543 2,697,170 36,548,676 113,522,916
Tt ERERMRS 2017 final dividend proposed — 802,533 — — — — — — 802,533
6,140 98,362,681 (48810,141) 19,401,056 4,913,464 1,212,543 2,697,170 36,548,676 114,331,589

bR & HE a5 B Bh 3} FE ELRE BT P AT — BFBOAE o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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HRHAA
BN FER
DEST s
RA RAEE  AKEE Shaebased EEHE  EARE  EXEE  REEA Non-  #iEH
Share Share Merger  payment  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
E £ £7 £7 £7 £7 £ £ E E E
Usp Usp usp Usp usp ush usb usb Usp Usp usp
B2-3-N% For the year ended 31 December 2018
TZR=t-BLER
R=F-\E-A-BMEH Balance at 1 January 2018 6,140 98,362,681 (48,810,141) 19401056 4913464 1212543 2,697,170 36,548,676 114,331,589 — 114,331,589
2 (F8) /i Comprehensive (loss)/income
EREH Proft for the year = = = = = = — 37 13 Q10) 131554
BEZE Translation differences = = = = = —  (3805517) — (3,805,517 (1,505)  (3,807,022)
ER2E(FR)/ hEE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year — - - - - —  (3805517) 1,317,734 (2,487,783) (3.715)  (2,491,498)
REBANRS Transactions with owners
WA RERR R E M Share-based compensation - - - 187 - - - - 187 - 187
friEERE Exercise of share options 186 3422799 — (2445491 - - - — 97749 — 97749
WEHEAA Acquisiion of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - — 4195 244195
ZT-N\ERRRM Dividend relating to 2017 paid in June 2018
“E-tERERE - (802533) = = = = = - (802,533) - (802,533)
REEANRS EEREREBZ  Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity 186 2,620,266 —  (2,445304) - = = = 175,148 244,195 419343
RZF-NE1ZA=+-BHER  Balance at 31 December 2018 6326 100,982,047 (48810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212503 (1,108347) 37866410 112018954 240480 112,259,434
B Representing:
EX Capital 6,326 = = = = = = = 6,326 = 6,326
i Reserves — 100579,983 (48,810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212503  (1,108,347) 37,866,410 111,609,664 — 111,609,664
iR Non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - — 240480 240480
ZE-\ERERERE 2018 final dividend proposed — 402964 - - - - - — 402,94 — 402964
6,326 100,982,947 (48,810,141) 16,955,752 4913464 1212543  (1,108347) 37,866,410 112,018,954 240,480 112,259,434

& ER B Y P 5k — D B RE o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-Z—\F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —E—t+F
2018 2017
B 5E ETT ZETT
Note Usb usbD
RETHMEBRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
KEFERe Cash generated from operations 32(a) 442,945 21,047,044
ERFE Interest paid (4,276) —
EETEHR Income tax paid (799,093) (1,217,937)
BB (FTA), /P15 E £ ¥ Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (360,424) 19,829,107
RETHMEBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
I B HT B A RIS AR - Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries,

TSRS net of cash acquired 35 (18,547,386) —
BEYE  BELER Purchases of property, plant and equipment (415,325) (818,410)
HEYE - HE &KRESFIE Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 32(b) 320 217,319
HHERITEROR S Decrease in short-term bank deposits 3,523,375 9,745,647
PR H SR T 7 B A0 Increase in restricted bank deposit (5,000,000) —
BTN Interest income received 1,129,014 437,841
BEHMEREE Purchases of other intangible assets (280,793) (62,654)
EBEFEBEIEAFEARAN  Purchase of financial assets at fair value

PRIEE through profit or loss (11,966,085) (3,467,702)

WEES(FTA), /P53 £ /F5 Net cash (used in)/generated from

investing activities (31,556,881) 6,052,041
MEITBMEBRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
SARE Payment for dividend (802,533) (580,846)
RITERPMERIR Proceeds from bank borrowings 32(c) 5,335,126 —
TR AR A Exercise of share options 977,494 122,011
BEEEFTES(FT A )IR4 %% Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities 5,510,087 (458,835)
HeERESEB/YORD), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

nFE cash equivalents (26,407,218) 25,422,313
FNHReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 84,100,969 56,409,071
ReRBEEESEMERE Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

2R and cash equivalents (2,731,427) 2,269,585
FREERBEELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 54,962,324 84,100,969
ARSI B R 2 2R e A BE MY BT 5T — OB - The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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—RER
BMEMERAR AR (ARE ) REKE QR (5HE
[ARE D ERRFHRARBRR(TRER]) RBEEHH
E#&3m ([mPOS D RFI S RIHE - H Al Bl RER KB
FARNBENBEEERNERBB NS - FA
AEEMNEHERIEER N MRS -

FA - ARRIBEBERFEEHSEMAINERRER
AT)S2C Tech Inc. ° S2C Tech Inc.EREMB AT E
ZREFABRIHERRBEBERS L -

RATAARRAEESEMKIREFEMOBER AR -
HRFHE B S/ it o = & & Maples Corporate
Services Limited * fiZ/APO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands » &%
I ARAME(HE L) E M9 E R BRY
Ml ESHEHEER RS E S8R AE o

AN BHARHHAERAFEIR L -

BIEREER  TAGESHBRRAZT(IETDE
5] o

GENERAL INFORMATION

SMIT Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development and sales of conditional
access modules (“CAM") and mobile point-of-sales
("mPOS") that enable secure distribution and delivery of
digital content to television and secure mobile payment
transactions respectively. The Group is also engaged in
the supply of blockchain chipsets and servers during the
year.

During the year, the Company acquired S2C Tech Inc.,
an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. S2C Tech Inc., together
with its subsidiaries, are principally engaged in the
development and sales of rapid verification system and
software.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office in the Cayman Islands is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
registered office in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") is SSMEC Building, Gao Xin Nan First Avenue,
High-Tech Park South, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, PRC.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“USD"), unless otherwise stated.
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EXRSTEERBE

REZEFRAMBRIAEANEES BRI
Tf’fﬁ%iEﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ BRIZZERERR 2R AEFE

2.1 REEE

AEBWGE P BHRERTRIBE B KR ELER
(IEFEHBREEA]) REE R RIEDI(F 622
BINRERE - SR A MBIMKRTIIRE LRAR
R BABBRREERATEARNEREER
A RE R THEREMERT

ERBEMBRSEANRRGAMBREFRM
RETEZEA  TRETEEERAASE
EEtERRABETEHHE - PRESREH
B EMERENERE B REMBEREME
BERHNBRREAOBIRERMES -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group has been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and contingent consideration payable, which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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STBCRBLE (&)

2.1 wmREE(E)

(a)

AR M RAN BT AR RTER

AEBEER_F—/\F—A—BRBANF
JE ¥R B B R E A TR R AERT -

BB GFHERFE 405 (1B5TA)
HKAS 40 (Amendment)

BB ELEAZE 2 5 (EFTA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

AP BREELE 45 (EFTA)

HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

BAMBHREERE IR

HKFRS 9
BAMBHRE LS 155
HKFRS 15

ARV BREERFE 155K (BETA)
HKFRS 15 (Amendment)

R (AR BHREREREE) —2EBE 2%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

FEBERE (BRIA)

Annual Improvements Project (Amendment)

RAME2 2 RENBT BV B REER
FIORRBAVBHREEF 1I5HRAE
BAZE HEFTBUR - MMEMIR] L
7T 22 I3 4% 4 AN BR e o AR AT s 1 BRI 22
EEMEATE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following
standards and amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2018:

REMFHENEE
Transfers of Investment Property
A h REBONRRZ M DB RGE
Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions
JE & BB 5 R 5 2RI 9 5%
eMIARK—(IERAEE
B HmERENE 4RRBED
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts
SRITA
Financial Instruments
HEP 2 ENE REENKRA
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BAPBHRELERIE 1552 BE
Clarifications to HKFRS 15
HNEERZ 5 R AR BT E R
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
FREBGE(ZZE—NFE_T— < FAH)
Annual Improvements 2014 — 2016 Cycle

The Group had to change its accounting
policies following the adoption of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15 which are disclosed in
Note 2.2. The adoption of other new
and amended standards did not have any
material impact on the current period or any
prior periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the
Group

The following new and amended standards
and new interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

RT5 B

ZEBER

BHEEEN

Effective for

accounting

year beginning

on or after

EEGEAFE19RUERIR)  FHEIERT - MRS —E-hF—HA—H
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019
BEGEUE28RUERIAR) REERAREECENRAER —E-NF—HA—H
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
BRMBHEEEIFRUERIAR) RARHENTBNFIAS T —E-NF—H—H
HKFRS 9 (Amendment) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
BBV EHRELDE 1658 HE —E-hF—-HRA—H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BEVERELDNE 175K Riga# —E-_—%—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
BB HELERE 1055 & HEERABENRRGEREZHE FEE

BB G ERIE 28R (BRI A)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEHLEIIE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

(Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture
B (BB E®RE NHETE FTIS B A R 18

REZEE) -REFS23%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
FEBERE (BFTA)

Annual Improvements Project

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FEME(CZE-—AFE_T—+FAH)

Annual Improvements 2015 — 2017 Cycle
(Amendment)

“E )\ FHBREHRESR

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

RIEFTA IS IREBSIER

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

To be determined
—E-NEF—H—H
1 January 2019

—E-hF—-HA—H
1 January 2019

—E_TF—-H—H
1 January 2020
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The Group will adopt the new and amended
standards when they become effective.
The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the related impact of
adopting the above new and amended
standards and new interpretations, none of
which is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out
below:

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.
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2.1

SETHEME )
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(b) REBERENNFTRSETENRR

B(E)

MR ERE 16 [ HE ()
e

RS EBEEAREBELEHE 2 25T
BRIE o RIREBH - AEBAETAHEEN
RBTRE &IE 2,587,721 F L (MsE34) o

HEMGREEIF 16 REAFHESFTER
BOFMRE  EFRTBANEAEARES
MBARRKRIMEREE - MSABEEED
ANEBEERERE)LERABER
MREE) O ARES BRI R A E
R ARTEANEHHEEREEESR
EREEHRPBTHRIEME - At - %
AR BHARE GRS MR R AR IETE
REMGEHE - ENEREEEREMN
HEARE RAKBESZAKRERA - EH
RfERT - BAKEHE N FHE & E#HRA
xKERD  MERBBEMELENERE
BENERNSRAHEEM -

AEEEHY  EARRTEHARE  KAE
BB HRELENE16FETETEAETRE
BEABEATE AFRHAHEESEAEN
BECAEIEERBERARGS MR
MRPER -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group's operating leases.
As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
UsD2,587,721 (Note 34).

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the
accounting treatment of leases which no
longer allows lessees to recognise leases
outside of the consolidated statement of
financial position. Instead, all leases must
be recognised in the form of assets (for the
right of use) and financial liabilities (for the
payment obligations) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Short-term
leases of less than twelve months and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from such
reporting obligation. The new standard
will therefore result in derecognition
of prepaid operating leases, increase in
right-of- use assets and increase in lease
liabilities in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. In the
Group's consolidated income statement,
the annual rental and amortisation expenses
of prepaid operating lease under otherwise
identical circumstances will decrease, while
depreciation of right of use of assets and
interest expense arising from the financial
liabilities will increase.

The Group does not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy would result in
a significant impact on the Group's results
and it is expected that right of use asset and
lease liabilities of these lease commitments
will be required to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the
Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from
its mandatory adoption date of 1 January
2019. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption. Right-of-use assets
for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always
been applied. All other right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability on adoption (adjusted for any
prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not
yet effective and that would be expected to
have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification
and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” from 1 January 2018 resulted
in changes in accounting policies. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.10
below.
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SREE

Financial assets

2 5 rEWGRIE

Trade receivables

SR E A fE YORRIE

Notes and other receivables

REIRITIER

Short-term bank deposits

ReERBEEEED

Cash and cash equivalents

FREREATEARNEREE

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

cRBeE

Financial liabilities

B S RENIE

Trade payables

FEETE A & H A FE 1 50E

Accruals and other payables

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changesin

accounting policies (Continued)

(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

(i)

REFBEEER
5539 SR 2R A

Measurement Category

under HKAS 39

BESHAK AR
Amortised cost
BHIERCAR
Amortised cost
B R
Amortised cost
ST IDWIN
Amortised cost
BRBEREAFEAR
Fair value through
profit or loss

b S [DIN
Amortised cost
BEIHRCAR

Amortised cost

Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial
assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into
the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
The main effects resulting from this
reclassification are as follows:

REBFBUBREER
ELE eVl
Measurement Category
under HKFRS 9

B AR
Amortised cost
BB
Amortised cost
B AR
Amortised cost
B AR
Amortised cost
BRERERATEAR
Fair value through
profit or loss

B SHA AR
Amortised cost
BIERCAR

Amortised cost
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s significant financial
assets which are subject to the new
expected credit loss model include
trade receivables and notes and other
receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

For notes and other receivables,
management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is zero.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected losses
for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The adoption
of the simplified expected loss
approach under HKFRS 9 has not
resulted in any additional impairment
loss for trade receivables as at 1
January 2018.

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customer”

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” from 1
January 2018 which resulted in changes
in accounting policies. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15,
comparative figures have not been restated.

(i) The impact on the Group's
consolidated financial position by the
application of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

The effects of the adoption of HKFRS
15 are related to presentation of
contract liabilities. Reclassifications
were made as at 1 January 2018 to be
consistent with the terminology used
under HKFRS 15:

o Contract liabilities for receipt in
advance from customers were
previously presented as accruals
and other payables.
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2 EXRETHEERBE@H) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 BIBERMEE (B) 2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) BEBVEBREEREISHIEEFZEN (b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

BAREENBAIE) Customer” (Continued)
() FBEBMBERELERE 155RE R () The impact on the Group's
SEZEREMBRR 2 ERNT ¢ consolidated financial position by the
(8) application of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

(Continued)

BIEME  RZZE—N\F—HA—HERE In summary, the following adjustments
AE B8R EWBIKARAERD S EEIE were made to the amounts recognised
AT AR in the consolidated statement of

financial position at the date of initial
application on 1 January 2018:

BE

EBEHER B 5 R 5 2E A
F18REHEE EFAE F15REREE
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amount Reclassification amount
R-B—-tF RZZB-N\&F
t=A=+-—H —H—H
as at as at

31 December 1 January
2017 2018

E Y E Y £

usbD usb usb

HAEBMBIRRNKR ()  Consolidated statement of

financial position (extract)
fEETE A R E M EMFRIE Accruals and other payables 7,670,160 (763,981) 6,906,179
BHAa%E Contract liabilities — 763,981 763,981
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customer” (Continued)

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to
contract liabilities

The Group receives payments from
certain customers in advance of the
performance under the contracts. The
following table shows how much of
the revenue recognised in the current
reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

BE-Z-N\F
+=A=t+-H
HEE

Year ended

31 December

2018
Ex
usbD
FARE DB EESND R U Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 258,438

(i) BRAERFEENREITEHN

AEECRBEE O EHRERER
HREMNEE TR ARBEEH
RE—FHZAT -

(i) Unsatisfied contracts related to sales
of goods

The Group has applied the practical
expedient to exempt the disclosure of
remaining performance obligations as
all related contracts have a duration
of one year or less.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Business combination (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the
Company who make strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements is
presented in USD, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
at foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the fair value gains or losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(9]

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
THEASK 5 F(AREHR A%)

Shorter of lease term or 5 years
3E5EF

3 -5 years

5Z 104

5 - 10 years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets, and are recognised
within ‘general and administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwiill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of computer
software and licence use rights. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any. Amortisation
is computed using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 15
years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(9]

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities
are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable assets controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete
the product so that it will be available
for use;

(i)~ management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

(iii)  there is an ability to use or sell the
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

(v)  adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the
product during its development can
be reliably measured.

125



126

® EMBMIZERARIA

FERE201

8

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

EX

2.8

2.9

SETHEME )

BREEE)

() FBEA(E)

BEXNERER—HONEREERARRE
EmAREERAREBHEEERNEE

BB e

RENERERENEBHAERASEE
ERERRFAN - BEERSFAXNAEE
RAL T ERERBMERSEE

FERMEERE

HEEFFRIBERNEE) - RBREEREEEK
EIF - AlE@FMHAFLITEXBIENEENRE
Bh - REBRREEREEBLEIRESE
MERER - JRESBREER FERFEEK
ARGFEHEBEMETNORSE - HAERETN
5 BRERUBUIMNRSRECRESELEN)
MRIEKFE AR - BREEN - BRRERIE
SREER SRS AR EN TEE -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

() Research and development costs
(Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised
as part of the product include the product
development employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or
amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies
its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI"”) or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, which
is the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(9]

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income
statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(9]

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on
a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1 (b)(ii) and Note 18
for further details.

For notes and other receivables, the
impairment provision is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit losses.

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a result,
the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group's previous accounting policy.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

- Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are
financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or
loss at inception that are not
classified as held for trading,
but are managed, and their
performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis. Assets in
this category are presented
as current assets if they are
expected to be settled within
twelve months after the end of
the reporting period; otherwise,
they are classified as non-
current assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification (Continued)
- Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the
amounts is expected in one
year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they
are classified as non-current
assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise trade
and other receivables, short-
term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statements of
financial position.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, i.e. the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “other gains/(losses),
net”.

Dividends on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in consolidated income
statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established. Interest
income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables calculated using the
effective interest method is included
in the consolidated income statement
within “finance income, net”.
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(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Details on how the fair value of
financial instruments is determined
are disclosed in Note 3.3.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses at each reporting
period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See Note 2.10 for
further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(b) for
a description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or
less.

Restricted bank deposit

Restricted bank deposit represent the amounts of
cash pledged as collateral to banks for the bank
facilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting date in the countries where the
Company and the Company's subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(0

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives

Companies within the Group may be
entitled to claim special tax deductions
for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax
credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees
payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post
retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administratered funds managed by the
provincial governments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.22 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments (share
options, restricted share units (“RSUs"”) and share
award) of the Group. Information relating to these
schemes is set out in Note 25(b) and Note 31.

(@) Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share units
is recognised as an employee benefits
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options and restricted share units
granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, the
Company's share price);
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme (Continued)

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period
of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options and restricted share units that
are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of share
options and restricted share units that
are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant
date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme (Continued)

Where there is modification of terms and
conditions which increase the fair value of
the equity instruments granted, the Group
includes the incremental fair value granted in
the measurement of the amount recognised
for the services received over the remainder
of the vesting period. The incremental fair
value is the difference between the fair
value of the modified equity instrument and
that of the original equity instrument, both
estimated as at the date of the modification.
An expense based on the incremental fair
value is recognised over the period from
the modification date to the date when
the modified equity instruments vest in
addition to any amount in respect of the
original instrument, which should continue
to be recognised over the remainder of the
original vesting period.

When the share options are exercised and
the restricted share units are granted, the
respective entities granting such share
options and restricted share units issue new
shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share award scheme

Under the employee share award scheme,
shares issued by the Company to employees
of the Group for no cash consideration vest
immediately on grant date. On this date,
the market value of the shares issued is
recognised as an employee benefits expense
with a corresponding increase in equity.

(c) Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of award shares
and options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, net of
rebates and discounts. Rebates and discounts
granted to customers are classified as a reduction
of revenue. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains/(losses)
on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
other income.
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2 EARSTTHEREE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 W (E) 2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) FRBWA(E)

HRBASEEENMHENEEREER
HBEF SWA 25 B BEWRA - EAEAM
M BHWAFTAEBRAR

MBRATBBKERNEEANERE
EAMREEE - HEERBBREERER
TREERN -REERESREEM
5 ERNXEAReREERIFEMK
NERE R E) -

2.25 BUF#EY

BT B IR R A IR 3 HEE S & W ER A B A AN R
7% 8 <7 P A BE P R (B - IR DT ERER o

EBRANBRR Y R G A R ER AR
HREIE LIS A K R AR

E{ o

HBYE  BELREERNBAMIRIERS A
BARNREERFMHE ENBHEEENTAERFR
NILBRET AGZAKRER

(b) Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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2.27
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.26

2.27

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Group as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group does
not use any derivative financial instruments to
hedge the risk exposures.

Financial risk management is carried out by the
finance department under the supervision of the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company.
The CEO provides principles for overall risk
management.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Europe, and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB")
and Euro (“EUR"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions or recognised financial
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2018, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax
profit and total equity would have
been approximately USD1,787,000
(2017: USD1,971,000) higher/
lower, respectively, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD
denominated receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in entities whose
functional currency is RMB.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by
5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, the post-
tax profit and total equity would
have been approximately USD87,000
(2017: USD171,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Euro denominated
receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no
significant assets and liabilities which
were interest-bearing at floating rates,
except for the deposits in banks,
details of which have been disclosed
in Notes 20 to 22. Bank borrowings
are interest bearing at fixed interest
rates and the resulting interest rate
risk is considered to be insignificant.

153



154

® EMBMIZERARIA

FEHRE2018

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

R REEE)
3.1 BIBEBEZE)

(a)

TSk (E)

(iii) 1B /E

7N 55 [ T e 0 AR BB 55 (B A LB 3R
BAKEMFREL NG P BN
MERADBEHEBBRBRIFEAR
MEREEME9) -

AEEFEBEHEZEERAES AR
i i R AT o] 48 & P RE i B 2R HL (B AR
[\ -

RZZE—NE+-A=+—8 "
EFAEEMEERENERTEBR
BREAFEARNEHEENE
MM A10% 0 Bl A& EEH
E-_ET—NF+_-_A=+—81t
F[E R B B & 0% A 2 R A
#91,828,000% (= T — £ F
381,00037T) °

HREIMDIREBEHARAR+ @A
BEGMERDNSERRETE -

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity
securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group
and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 19).

The Group manages its price risk by
regularly monitoring equity portfolio
to address any portfolio issues
promptly.

As at 31 December 2018, if the price
of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss had been 10%
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would have been approximately
UsD1,828,000 (2017: USD381,000)
higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on a reasonable
expectation of possible valuation
volatility over the next 12 months.



e MR RME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HRERERE®E

3.1 MBEREZEGE)

(b)

= ARk

ERRBRZEEEEER - AEEMNER
EREERERELASEFEN(TEETF
SBRE) RRITHERMNE H K H b fE YK
He BRERDBRFEREZSERAR
@i e

() mEBEE

RZZT—N\F+=ZA=+—0 " #
RekBAEFENTEEFER
&) RIOTFEFME - REAFAL
MRTHEERZF - NREBIL KA
ZEFTOTBEBEBETANEAR
MEAERNEE  BEREL A&
HIAR SR IR an e o

R-ZE—-NE+-A=+—0H &
EE-KRKBFEASEE SRR
HHS57% (T —+4F :64%) ° &
SEEHEZEREPRVRHASGER
B BREZERPHERT R
5% K JRE UK 187 S5 9 8 U R IE 9 U )RR
SRR - BIEE A A K B EWZ
LR 14 2R U B 8 U 3k IE 4 R AR
gIESAEARR -

Smit Holdings Limited @
Annual Report 2018

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash
on hand) and deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables. Management has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

()  Risk management

As at 31 December 2018, for cash
and cash equivalents (excluding cash
on hand), deposits with banks, they
are all deposited or traded with listed
banks. The Group has not incurred
significant loss from non-performance
by these parties in the past and
management does not expect so in
the future.

As at 31 December 2018, top 3
customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 57% (2017: 64%)
of the trade receivables of the Group.
The Group has set up long-term
cooperative relationship with these
customers. In view of the history of
business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history
of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is
no material credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with
the debtors. The Group's historical
experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.
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(Continued)
3.1 WBERAMEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) fERAREKGE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) 2EHEERE (i)  Impairment of financial assets

rEEEMBECREEZRMER
BRBRAPTARR

e EIHEUFUR:
s ERFHEMEBKFR

BERENBECEEYTAETE
B EREENEIFRREENR
BEERNREBRLTERX -

=Y. 1¢ ¢

AEBEEAEBVHREELF 95
WA EERERERX &
TEBAERSREHERABEH
MIBHIE IR B o

R ERHERERX BZRUK
HOREBEEFRBEME  #EEA
R B B EAR B $E o

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

. trade receivables;
. notes and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on the nature of
customer accounts, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 WERMBEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) ERARRE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Z/ZEREE) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
BSEWE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
B B2 2 TR (= Rk Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis
HLE S B AR R A s I Receivables relating to customers
O] fE Uk ZIE B B K RE B A FE UL 5K with known financial difficulties or
18 EAEITEBIFES - UFHRRE significant doubt on collection of
BE - R_TE—-NF+ZA=+— receivables are assessed individually
B - Bt % 85I AT (4 & B W RIE & for provision for impairment
BEEE$51,964,469% T (= F allowance. As at 31 December 2018,
—-4F :1,285,214%7T) ° the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed
receivables was US$1,964,469 (2017:
US$1,285,214).
TEREIWRZ=ZZ-—NFEF+=ZA The following table presents the
=t+—ARZZE-—NF—A—AK balances of gross carrying amounts
REREARLRBEENFENE S and the loss allowance in respect
FE W RIE /Y SR E of the individually assessed trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2018:
9 89 9 9 9
k] 1230% NE60F G1Z90%  91Z180K  180EML it
1-30days  31-60days 61-90days  91-180days  Over 180 days
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
£7 E7A £z £7 E7A £z £7
UsD Usp UsD UsD usp UsD UsD
“2-)\% 31 December 2018

+=A=t-8
REaE Gross carrying amount -

-B5RIGE trade receivables 392,239 - 51,354 51,354 154,063 1,315,459 1,964,469
AR Expected los rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
FREk Loss allowance (392,239) - (51,354) (51354) (154,063) (1,315,459) (1,964,469)
“2-N\5-A-H 1 January 2018
REAE Gross carmying amount -

- B HRIEE trade receivables - - - - - 1,285,214 1285214
ek g kS Expected loss rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
A Loss allowance - - - - - (1,285,214) (1,285.214)



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

R REEE)
3.1 BIBEBEZE)

(b)

ERRE(E)

(i) EHEZEREE)

EZEWME(E)
BRI EE BRI HRA

EHERERTEBRARERR
B i R R SR R MR E T A
Ko $4 Uk [B] 1) AT B 1 3 17 $E [ 7T £ 2K
(G R EFPHEE - HtBUE
RERERER)  WHBEHERER
ERAERERUGRIAREAE

EHRERERTREELERAEBRE
BE UKBABRURMEZERR
RBERYFIAE NN B ERE
ENERRATEEES -

3

Smit Holdings Limited @
Annual Report 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying
the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical
credit losses and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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3 H¥ERERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 WERMBEEE) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) =ARARE) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Z/ZEREE) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
BSEWE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
G H A H B 2 FE R 5 1R (1) Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)
TERE2IWRZ=ZZE-—NF+=ZA The following table presents the
=f+—AkRZZE-—N\F—HA—HK balances of gross carrying amounts
FHAEESREIRARTENES and the loss allowance in respect
FEWGRIE /Y SR RHE - of the collectively assessed trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2018:
fat:d et ki fat:d bt
k] 1230% 3NE60X H1Z0%  91E180% 180F ML
1-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-180days  Over 180 days &t
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
£7 E7A £z £7 £ £z £7
Usp UsD 1) ) UsD 1) Usp
—Z-N\% 31 December 2018
t=A=t-8
BHAE-ESEUGUE  Gross camying amount -
trade receivables 453112 3,604,930 618,670 143,212 1,256,936 1376045 11,531,075
R Bxpected loss rate 0.04% 0.04% 0.15% 030% 0.38% 0.56% 0.15%
FiRERE Loss allowance (1,760) (1338) (901) (430) (4,804) (1.739) (16,972)
—2-\%-A-8 1 January 2018
RESE- (Gross carrying amount -
BRRYHE trade receivables 8,493,118 1,879,831 186,668 110,102 15,555 3674 10,688,948
BHEER Expected loss rate 0.01% 0.01% 0.05% 0.09% 0.40% 0.44% 0.01%
BERRE Loss allowance (555) (57) (89) (99) (62) (16) (874)



e M BRRMHE

Smit Holdings Limited @

Annual Report 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HKEREE®

3.1 MBEREZEGE)
(b) FERARRE)

(i) EHEZEREE)

EZEWME(E)

B REFANREBRIIAEE
WARAIEBEEZREFER]
SRR o ER U E B EMERIATIE
#HAREE -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in
consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for
impairment of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of
trade receivables was assessed based
on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to
be uncollectible were written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly.
The other receivables were assessed
collectively to determine whether
there was objective evidence that an
impairment had incurred but not yet
been identified. For these receivables
the estimated impairment losses were
recognised in a separate provision for
impairment. The Group considered
that there was evidence of impairment
if any of the following indicators were
present:

o significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for
impairment of trade receivables
(Continued)

o probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; and

o default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised were written
off against the provision when there
was no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

Notes and other receivables

Management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected
credit loss which is zero.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9]

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks and the ability
to close out market position. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to
continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated statement of
financial position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table were the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balance within 12
months equal their carrying balances as
impact at discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

REBESRARK(E) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
1ERR 1828 #ast
Within Between 1
1 year and 2 years Total
Ex Ex ET
UsD UsD UsD
R-ZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018
+=HA=+—H
B SN FRIE Trade payables 4,089,422 — 4,089,422
FEETER R Accruals and other payables
FL A e S SRR 2,369,824 1,507,404 3,877,228
RITHE AR IEFFE  Bank borrowings and interest thereon 5,523,825 — 5,523,825
11,983,071 1,507,404 13,490,475
R-ZE—tF As at 31 December 2017
+=HA=+—8
Z ZENRIE Trade payables 7,552,913 — 7,552,913
FEETER R Accruals and other payables
o Ath BT FRIE 4,547,074 — 4,547,074
12,099,987 = 12,099,987
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. The ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
bank borrowings less short-term bank deposits,
restricted bank deposit and cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group was in a net cash position as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value

hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

14K $E24% £33/ st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S E E ES
UsD UsD UsD UsD
R-ZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018
t=A=+-8H
BE Assets
FHBEFIEATFEAIRA Financial assets at fair
SREE value through
profit or loss — — 18,246,807 18,246,807
=N Liability
FEfS B RE Contingent consideration
payable — — (1,507,404) (1,507,404)
RZZT—t4F As at 31 December
+=ZA=+—H 2017
BE Assets
BREREATE Financial assets at fair
AENEREE value through

profit or loss

— — 3,808,986 3,808,986

FAFIR F2REF3IFcEREER(=Z

—tFE) o

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year (2017: Nil).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation technigues maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If one or more
of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments carried at fair value
include:

o The fair values of investments in
unlisted equity securities made in
January 2018 and November 2018,
respectively, are determined using
comparable recent arm’s length
transactions.

° The Group has determined that
the reported net asset values of the
unlisted fund and other investments
in unlisted equity securities represent
their respective fair values at the end
of the reporting period.

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

169



170 o EMEIERERAT
FEHRE2018

e B R R M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 HHRERERE®E

3.3 AFEMRE)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)
BRAFEANE BARARE
HEmEE (M)
Financial assets Contingent
at fair value consideration
through profit payable
or loss (Note (i)
e 2T
UsD UusbD
R=Z—tF—HF—H#K  Opening balance at
FLEER 1 January 2017 — =
E NRE Additions for the year 3,467,702 —
REEE W mRERAUWE  Gains recognised in the consolidated
income statement 268,950 —
BmE xR Currency translation difference 72,334 —
R=—Z—tF+=A Closing balance at
=+ —HWERER 31 December 2017 3,808,986 —
¢ ARNE Additions for the year 11,966,085 (1,507,404)
PR E Wk IR Net gains recognised in the
W F 58 consolidated income statement 2,821,523 —
BEmE =R Currency translation difference (349,787) —
R-ZE-N\F Closing balance at 31 December
+=A=+—8 2018
B R A5 BR 18,246,807 (1,507,404)
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—®-N\F  —T—tF
2018 2017
=T ES
Usb usb
RERMFEEEETA Total gains for the year included in the
?v?/m\”ﬂl 7% [ HAth consolidated income statement for
=/ (FE) B8] assets held at the end of the year,
IETE’]EWLBZ ImAAEE under “other gains/(losses), net” 2,821,523 268,950
RERGTALZE BRmEH Changes in net unrealised gains,
FAREHR F M= net for the year included in the
) - FE consolidated income statement
at the end of the year 2,821,523 268,950
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(Continued)

3.3 AFEME)

(a) HE3IZMEBMTA(E)

G
()

AREWEAQEHEARS2C Tech
Inc. 2 B Fff B 2~ Al(£E 18 BlS2C&E
EDEMSKARENRFERBK
NEETHE  HEES2CE B E
RIS EE B IR REME o 5T E R
NEBTAHERBRBABERESRR
TEH R BEM A 85% °

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

Note:

@

The fair value of contingent consideration
payable related to the acquisition of S2C Tech
Inc. (a subsidiary of the Company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “S2C Group”) was
estimated by applying income approach which
considered the probability that S2C Group
could achieve the financial performance
target. The key unobservable assumption
in the calculation is the 85% probability to
achieve the performance target.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

Except for the measurement of the
contingent consideration payable which is
disclosed in Note (i) above, the following
table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value

measurements:
R=ZZB-—N\F
t=A=t—-8
ERid) WATE [{ESE
Fair value at
31 December
Description 2018 Valuation technique
E
uUsbD
RZZE—+FRH ARENIE ETRAES - AERFEME Q)
Unlisted equity security acquired in May 2017 Net asset value (Note (a))
FEMES 1,437,599 EEFE(KIE ()
Unlisted fund Net asset value (Note (a))
REZB-NF - ARBNIE ETRARES 2,914,091 ZERHFTLLE A TR S (M (b))
Unlisted equity security acquiredin February 2018 Reference to comparable
recent arm’s length
transactions (Note (b))
RZZ-NFN\RAKBENIE ETRAES 5,600,000 &z FE(FIFE(c)
Unlisted equity security acquired in August 2018 Net asset value (Note (c))
REB—N\F+— AREEIE LT RAES 8,295,117 ZBEEHFTLLE AT 5 (M (b))

Unlisted equity security acquired in November 2018

Reference to comparable
recent arm’s length
transactions (Note (b))

18,246,807
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)
Note:
(a) The Group has determined that the reported

net asset value approximates the fair value of
the unlisted fund investment and the unlisted
equity security acquired in May 2017 at the
end of the reporting period.

The Group has determined that prices in
comparable recent arm’s length transactions
the fair values of the unlisted equity securities
at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has determined that the reported
net asset value approximates fair value of the
investment at the end of the reporting period.
As at 31 December 2018, the underlying
assets of the investee company include an
investment in unlisted equity security which
is measured at fair value. The fair value
of the underlying unlisted equity security
was determined by using discounted cash
flow model with the major unobservable
inputs being pre-tax discount rate of 20%,
compound annual growth rate in revenue
of 47% and terminal growth rate of 5%. If
the discount rate shifted downward by 1%,
the post-tax loss would be approximately
USD326,000 lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate the lower the fair value and the
higher post-tax loss. If the compound annual
growth rate in revenue shifted downward by
3%, the post-tax loss would be approximately
UsSD1,548,000 higher. The higher the
compound annual growth rate in revenue, the
higher the fair value and the lower post-tax
loss.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised costs

The carrying amounts of the Group's current
financial assets, including trade and other
receivables, short-term bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposit, and current financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables and bank
borrowings approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities. The carrying
amount of non-current trade and other
receivables approximates its fair value which
is estimated based on the discounted cash
flows.

Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The Group has no financial assets and financial
liabilities, which is subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

4.1  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different from previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

4.2 Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

43

4.4

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The loss allowance for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
the tables in Note 3.

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Income taxes and deferred income tax
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.8 and 2.9.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations required the use of estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.6

Fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group that are not quoted or actively
traded in the market involves significant amounts
of accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions; and could affect the
carrying amount of these assets within the next
financial year. For the investments in unlisted
investee companies and the investment in an
unlisted fund where there are no active trade
markets, the Group estimates the fair value of
these investments with reference to the fair values
of the underlying investments held by the investee
companies, such as those provided by the financial
and market information. It also employs valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants
including those based on share of net asset value
of the investees, recent comparable arm’s length
transactions and discounted cash flow model.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.7 EBEG 4.7

Business combination
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Accounting for business combination requires
the Group to allocate the cost of acquisition to
specific assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their estimated fair values at the date of
acquisition. The Group has undertaken processes
to identify all assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, including acquired intangible assets.
Judgements made in identifying all acquired
assets, determining the estimated fair value
assigned to each class of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, as well as asset’s useful lives,
could materially impact the calculation of goodwill,
intangible assets and depreciation and amortisation
charges in subsequent periods. Estimated fair
values are based on information available near
the acquisition date and on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed reasonable
by management. Determining the estimated useful
lives of tangible and intangible assets acquired also
requires judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM that
are used to making strategic decisions. The CODM is
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CODM
assessed the performance of the Group by reviewing
the results of three reportable segments: CAM and
mPOS, blockchain servers and rapid verification system
and software, which is different from the segment
categorisation in the prior year in order to align
the segment review with the restructured internal
management and reporting structure. The segment
information of comparative period has been restated to
conform to the current period categorisation.

CAM and mPOS - development and sales of security
products (CAM and mPOS devices) that enable secure
distribution and delivery of digital content to television
and secure mobile payment transaction respectively.

Blockchain servers — development and sales of integrated
blockchain chipsets and servers.

Rapid verification system and software — development
and sales of rapid hardware-based verification systems
and softwares.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group on a
regular basis and reviews the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results. This
measurement basis includes gross profit of the operating
segments. Information relating to segment liabilities
is not disclosed as such information is not regularly
reported to the CODM. Other information provided to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in these consolidated financial statements.
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DEHER(#) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
REF E#f RIS =
K%mPOS PRI ARAERMG k]
Rapid
verification
CAM and  Blockchain system and
mPOS servers software Total
e S e E
UsD UsD UsD Usb
BE-Z-N\F For the year ended
+ZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2018
pan-iat g Segment revenue
ShEb U External revenue 30,877,174 9,648,836 792,568 41,318,578
DEPHELE Segment results 10,966,230 2,387,737 322,804 13,676,771
BE-Z—tF For the year ended
+TZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2017
(&RE5) (as restated)
7 P = Segment revenue
ShEB U External revenue 52,787,425 38,993,498 — 91,780,923
DESFEE Segment results 19,860,438 12,642,959 — 32,503,397
REF E#f R E
¥ mPOS HERIEEE ARAEEMG BE
Rapid
verification
CAM and  Blockchain system and
mPOS servers software Total
ES ESm e =0
UsD UsD UsD UsD
As at 31 December
R=ZF-NF+=A=+—H 2018
DEPEE Segment assets 26,194,164 1,990,991 23,632,678 51,817,833
R=-ZE—tF+=-HA=+-—H As at 31 December
(==%)) 2017 (as restated)
DEPEE Segment assets 25,302,514 9,874,663 — 35,177,177
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u\

DR E R ()

DHMEETZEREHE ﬁ{ﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁig e -E5
R E MW HIARIAN IR - ETBRBLEMSHE
= E BEERE TH&Z@FE SR RkBE
ZEY  BRBRTER  XBRHGRTER - EBER
BATEARNEREEARATARRDEEE

ARED MEERBRAETAT(EBE), 8 oA R AT
ENHEELEBEENERNT

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other
intangible assets, inventories, trade and other receivables
and prepayments but exclude deferred income tax assets,
property, plant and equipment, income tax recoverable,
cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits,
restricted bank deposit, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and corporate and unallocated
assets.

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to (loss)/
profit before income tax and reportable segment assets
to total assets is provided as follows:

BE+-A=t—BLHEE

Year ended 31 December

—ZE-N\F TE—F

2018 2017

ETT ZETT

UsbD Usb

(#&E2])

(as restated)

MEDEDEE Reporting segment results 13,676,771 32,503,397
HAb U A Other income 1,013,346 1,045,476
Hukzs (&18) - JF58 Other gains/(losses), net 3,967,391 (1,982,646)
AEWA - FHE Finance income, net 1,149,740 461,282
CREEZRBEFER Net impairment losses on financial assets (759,318) —
DR RARDEFAX Corporate and unallocated expenses (19,325,713) (17,996,282)

BRETBBLAT (B51E), BT

(Loss)/profit before income tax (277,783) 14,031,227
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TEER(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EF-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
ETT ZETT
UsD UsD
(#&E31])
(as restated)
RGeS HEE Reportable segment assets 51,817,833 35,177,177
BIEFMGHEE Deferred income tax assets 2,770,689 1,022,564
W - BB RFE Property, plant and equipment 1,735,894 2,006,053
FEiRBERAFEAR Financial assets at fair value
e R EE through profit or loss 18,246,807 3,808,986
AR B F 5 B Income tax recoverable 138,006 —
RekBReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 54,962,324 84,100,969
RMHIRITIE R Short-term bank deposits — 3,523,375
2R B ERITIF X Restricted bank deposit 5,000,000 —
RARARDBEEE Corporate and unallocated assets 6,247,158 2,043,907
KBRS M BARR T Total assets per consolidated
FrEREE statement of financial position 140,918,711 131,683,031
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6 WHm- HWARHEMKE (BE) - 6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
RE OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET
RERNBERHWE  ERAREME(EE) Revenue, other income and other gains/(losses), net
SRR ¢ recognised during the year is as follows:

BE+-HA=+—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
=7 ZETT
UsbD Usb
Wz Revenue
WER CAM 23,078,007 36,814,388
mPOS &1 mPOS devices 7,799,167 15,973,037
[ R S AR 75 2% Blockchain servers 9,648,836 38,993,498
PRIRGRTE R BB Rapid verification system and software 792,568 —
EmibE A Total sales of goods 41,318,578 91,780,923
A ONETE Timing of revenue recognition
X —RFBAHERR At a point in time 41,318,578 91,780,923
Higlr A Other income
BURT 48 B Government grants 862,539 1,030,008
Hit Others 150,807 15,468
1,013,346 1,045,476
Hpue st (EE) - B8 Other gains/(losses), net
& H et (E18) « JF5E Exchange gains/(losses), net 1,145,868 (2,251,596)
FHiREEEATEARN SR Net fair value gains on financial assets
BEMNTERZFE at fair value through profit or loss 2,821,523 268,950

3,967,391 (1,982,646)
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution

AITET expenses”, “general and administrative expenses” and
“net impairment losses on financial assets” are analysed
as follows:

BE+-HA=+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-N\F —T 45

2018 2017
ET i
UsD Usb

ZELAN BN & Auditors’ remuneration

— Z B8R - Audit services 456,643 390,188

— B RS - Non-audit services 697,098 200,393

HEME - WE RREEE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 34,295 28,644

EERA Advertising costs 527,330 810,464

EEFERA Cost of inventories sold 25,576,930 54,528,750

EERFAZ(BREESHE) Employee benefits expenses

(F1zE8) (including directors” emoluments) (Note 8) 11,590,023 10,113,954

FErEERE Royalty expenses 1,120,648 2,707,808

HES Freight charges 94,223 185,539

HA IR Other taxes 313,014 615,996

FERE (B (Reversal of provision for)/provision for

Bm), BiE impairment of inventories (320,473) 427,234

Y - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and

(M5t 14) equipment (Note 14) 685,213 676,040

HEfbEREEHE(ME15) Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note 15) 186,704 167,733

FERRBEEEHR Legal and professional fees 834,354 1,434,872

IR Consulting fee — 6,393

B 5 WG IR B Provision for impairment of trade receivables

(Mf3%18) (Note 18) 759,318 2,039

LEHENRK Operating lease payments 1,296,199 1,105,849

ZIR R BHRX Travelling and entertainment expenses 1,364,904 1,418,415

MAZERmER AR Office supplies and utilities 768,156 753,833

Hith Others 1,742,259 1,699,664

HEXAK - AERY - HER Total cost of sales, research and development

DA —MRITERAX expenses, selling and distribution expenses,

kemEE 2 REFEBE general and administrative expenses and

g8 (MaE) net impairment losses on financial assets (Note) 47,726,838 77,273,808
MiEE - Note:

MEFEBETGETERME - RE
ARBEEMRMARNRAY - BEBBEZE LA TFAME

2.8(c) B G HO B AN LAR2E -

ZERXEEZRE AU

Research and development expenses are not generally capitalised

as they are primary considered as expenditures to upgrade existing

technical knowhow, and do not fulfil the strict capitalisation criteria

as listed out in Note 2.8(c).
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8

Bl M AT AR A PR A =
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BEEEIRX(BREEEHNE) 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS)

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+tF

2018 2017

£ E

UsD UsD

TE - #HekEM=ERL Wages, salaries and other allowances 8,649,200 7,834,149
BIEIEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,815,138 1,062,219
LA BB A7) 7 EE 18t ) 357 A Share-based compensation 187 7,879
A& 17 2 B e S Share award expenses — 302,583
BIKEF] — R TG E Retirement benefit - defined contribution plans 1,125,498 907,124
11,590,023 10,113,954
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8 REEEINZ(EBEEEMS)®

(a)

RKBEF — SEMKE S

ARRRRAPEMNMMERF AT EERAMHETEE
EIRREMNEFTENKE - AEBERMBE AR
BHEET ALK MERFEHZRN
TEERINRASIERREENNE-—FR
£ BREENEARG BB ERMERKEES P
BiRAKRE e

AEBECREETERERE2MEHEREERS
(MBE2FE ) ZABRABIXTAETR
HWRERRETE - REBRERFE - AEE R
HEBRABBMELABEDIENEENEB WA
5% & A AE BIE L R - AEE REB #3%18
PA1,5008 704 ER - EEREL RO HRE B R
B o

AEBERGENMBRARCRIESES TRIK
ERGIRLRERRFE(TEFTE - B=
ETERFLA-HABRER - AEERAREST
rEBEENCFEBREEBAARPHNIER A%
6% - ZERBMAAEEE  EHRKSEN
A THEE o SR RUE SR AR B IR 3

Eo
NI

Bk L st BIESRSN - AR E W B EEARIKE
BHEME -

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a)

Retirement benefit — defined contribution
plans

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group contributes a certain percentage
of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ employees,
and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-
managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions were subject to a cap of HK$1,500
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce
contributions payable in the future.

The Group's subsidiary in Taiwan has established
a defined contribution plan (“Taiwan Plan”) under
the new “Labor Pension Act” of Taiwan with
effect from 1 July 2005. The Group contributes
6% of the employees’ monthly salaries to the
vested employees’ individual accounts, which are
administered by the Labor Insurance Bureau of
Taiwan. The accrued pension benefits are portable
when the employees leave the Group. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions
payable in the future.

The Group has no material obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond contributions to the
above schemes.
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8 EERMMX(BRES=#M)@®

(b)

hAEREHAL

FR - ARELRESFALEEEMNSRBRR
MMM =R(ZF—tF : =R)&
- RFABRNTHRTIMAE(ZFT—LF : WA)
ATHIBEL0T -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2017: three) directors whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2017:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

BE+-A=1+—BLEE

Year ended 31 December

—EB-)N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

Ex E

UsD UsD

HATE 2R EWEAR Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 156,033 118,653
BIBIEAT Discretionary bonuses 23,865 24,027
LARRAD A EEHi B £ 3R Share-based payments — 945
RIKEF — FEHKETE Retirement benefit- defined contribution plan 20,972 21,920
200,870 165,545

PR AN B S B B A B T SE FEMZEA
Tt(=—tF:E)-

No inducement fee nor compensation for loss of
office has paid to or receivable by any of these
individuals (2017: Nil).
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EERANMAX(BFEEEME) @) 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(INC

LUDING DIRECTORS'

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) ABEREHFALE) (b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
e R SEELT - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
BE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
[l Emolument bands
£ % 1,000,000 L (FHE R Nil to HK$1,000,000
T 128,149 7T) (equivalent to Nil to USD128,149) 2 2
1,000,001 & 7C= 1,500,000
BT (FBEMN128,150%7C  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
%£192,224%7T) (equivalent to USD 128,150 to USD192,224) — —
1,500,001 7T Z 2,000,000
BT (FHEM192,225%7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
% 250,299 T) (equivalent to USD192,225 to USD250,299) — —
2 2

BMEWA -

9 FINANCE INCOME, NET

BE+-A=t+t-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E
2018 2017
ES ES
UsD UsD
AMERA Finance income
SRITEZAFI B LA Interest income on bank deposits 1,079,527 437,841
ERBNE 5 MK Interest accretion on non-current
SRIBIEINF]E trade receivables 32,534 23,441
HAth Others 49,487 —
B A Finance income 1,161,548 461,282
AE A Finance cost
RITERF SR Interest expense on bank borrowings (11,808) —

BMEWA - FHE

Finance income, net

1,149,740 461,282
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10 MIEAF

AEER—E-NF+-A=T—BZEERBRA
o - BRIEX BRI
FAZEBRZBEARFAFERERSLIIFNAR
ARBZRERE - SR REMBERTRETEE

BAEHEAEREASE

10 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2018
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are
held by the Group, and the proportion of ownership

FihE o interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

BRITR
ARt R BREBRAFE
EEERER Particulars of EERHEEREE
ERER Place of incorporation TEBER issued and fully Direct and indirect
Name of entity and kind of legal entity  Principal activities paid share capital ownership
—E-N\F i 3
2018 2017
% %

Directly held:

EERE:

SMIT Holdings (HK) Hong Kong, Sales of CAM and other HK$150,010,000 100 100

Limited (“SMIT HK") limited liability company security products and
related materials
B (FE)BRRE  &E HERTRRAMZE 150,010,0007%7T
([EREE]) BEREERF E m AR B B
SMIT Digital GmbH Germany, Sales of CAM and mPOS EUR25,000 100 100
limited liability company devices and other security
products
SMIT Digital GmbH BB BREELF BEBZRREmPOSRE R 25,000 BIT
HthZ2Em
SMIT Systemic Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding UsD1 100 =
SMIT Systemic Limited ERELHE RAER 1%L
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10 MEAT @ 10 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BRTR
AR R BRBAFEE
EEERER Particulars of EERBEREE
BERER Place of incorporation TEER issued and fully Direct and indirect
Name of entity and kind of legal entity  Principal activities paid share capital ownership
—E-N\F “EtF
2018 2017
% %
Indirectly held:
MiERE
Shenzhen State Micro The PRC, Research and development RMB220,000,000 100 100
Technology Co., Ltd. limited liability company and sales of CAM, mPOS
("SMIT Shenzhen) devices and blockchain
servers
BHEE(RINERRE  HE - MERHERER - AR 220,000,000 70
(AU RIS AT BREMADA mPOS 1 1 (& 58
BRAE ) PR2s
(TSMITZRIN)
S2C Tech Inc. (“S2C") Cayman Islands, Investment holding UsD 200,517 94.97 =
limited liability company
$2C Tech Inc.([s2¢]) HEHE - REAER 200,517 %7T
BREMATA
$2C Taiwan Inc. Taiwan, Sales of rapid verification NTD47,000,000 94.97 —
limited liability company system and software
BRENMBERABRLT A2 FREARA HERERE 47,000,000
R R ek
$2C Shanghai Co., Ltd. The PRC, Research and development RMB1,150,000 94.97 —
("S2C Shanghai”) limited liability company and sales of rapid
verification system
and software
BRAL(LE)EERER R I REERRRE AR 1,150,000 70
BRAT BREMADA Zmg

([s2c £&1)
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10 MIBATR(E)

(a)

FEBER

R-E—NE+-_A=1+—8  NEEIFFERE
mABRE 240,480 XL (ZE—HF ) o R
E-NEFE+-A=+—8 KEBELKEAHALE
EmsBERNNIEERESAB A RN EER
B AEABERBRIEHRATEENALEEESEN
FEEMB AR o

X EF A AR s ) S2C SR B 5 B
TERENREEZMBEENER -

10 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2018, the total non-controlling
interests of the Group was USD240,480 (2017:
Nil). As at 31 December 2018, the Group re-
assessed whether the subsidiary with non-
controlling interests is considered material to the
Group based on its relative size in terms of total
assets, total liabilities and loss before income tax.

Set out below are the summarised unaudited
financial information of S2C Group since
completion of acquisition which has material non-
controlling interests.
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10 MEARE) 10 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) FEIEEWFER (&) (@) Non-controlling interests (Continued)
S2C
R=ZB—N\F
+=A=+—8
As at
Summarised consolidated 31 December
FEVBERRRPE statement of financial position 2018
ETT
UsD
MENEE Current assets 3,510,137
mEEE Current liabilities (3,698,270)
REBEERE Net current liabilities (188,133)
JEmBEE Non-current assets 5,661,779
EREBEE Non-current liabilities (692,730)
IRBEEFE Net non-current assets 4,969,049
EEFE Net assets 4,780,916
EE el g Accumulated non-controlling interests 240,480
S2C
Summarised consolidated statement of —E-N\#F
FEREEERERYE comprehensive income 2018
ETT
UsD
e Revenue 792,568
BN E1E Loss for the period (43,936)
Hi2mEEis Other comprehensive loss (29,923)
2HEBEARE Total comprehensive loss (73,859)

SBLF IR AE S A E B Loss allocated to non-controlling interests (3,715)
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10 MIBATR(E)

1"

(a) FREEMRHES (&)

10 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@ Non-controlling interests (Continued)

S2C
—2-N\&

FEHERERE Summarised consolidated cash flows 2018

=TT

UsD
LEFEEMBHeR=E Cash flows from operating activities (249,078)
KREZSAEHRSRE Cash flows from investing activities 203
BEFRBAERERE Cash flows from financing activities 333,636
RERBELEEYEMFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 84,761

FrE8i(Ke) Bx 11 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

AEEE BB AR SMITEIIKR S2C EED BIRE
COERE R EBKTY - BRSMITEINES2C EEE
EhEAREEHERERTATEEMERETR
ERSMBEMtE  BEHEER=_T—tFE=Z
—NE=ZFHEANAZEI15% AR ERESFH( D
¥MBHDEERE(SFEMEEEERTE]) - H
E_E-N\E+-_A=+—HILEFEERZXEWER
AN ERREFNEANCEMBRHEEAR15% (=
—+f :15%) o

SMIT Shenzhen and S2C Shanghai are the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group established in the Shenzhen
Special Economic Zone and Shanghai, respectively. As
a result of the approval obtained from the respective
in-charge tax authorities in the PRC as High/New
Technology Enterprises as defined under the New
Enterprise Income Tax Law, both SMIT Shenzhen and
S2C Shanghai are entitled to a reduced preferential
enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate at 15% (“HNTE
Preferential Tax Rate"”) for a 3-year period from 2017 to
2019. An EIT tax rate at 15% (2017: 15%) was applied
to the assessable profit of these subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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Fr8fi (&), Bz

BE-_T-N\E+_A=+—BULFE EREBEER
HEt R EFIZ16.5% (=T —+F : 16.5%)
KRR BN BREME - BINEFHOFRIBE I IRBAS
ERERERRNBAE 2R MABED - B
FRGBAERFEFN - REBEERBITOEAR R
BH5 o

11

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

BE+-HA=+t—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
=7 ES
UsD UsD
BNERRRT 1S Current income tax
— B ERSH - PRC corporate income tax — 933,612
—BINIR - Overseas tax 27,698 235,453
—BENEH - Hong Kong profits tax — 220,297
RIEFTS B (FFE23) Deferred income tax (Note 23)
s N - Current year (1,069,528) 1,287,442
BEFEE GBERE) BETRE  (Overyunder-provision in prior years
— ENERPR1S A - Current income tax (551,477) 303,282
—EEFTB R (FI7E23) - Deferred income tax (Note 23) — (47,727)
FrBB(ER) X Income tax (credit)/expense (1,593,307) 2,932,359
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11

Fr8fi (&), Bz

AEBBASHRAER), TEFOHIBRERET
R B E TR A T ER R AR EENE L EDE 8
BAMEAERE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(Continued)

The tax on the Group's (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the domestic tax rate applicable to profits of the

Group’s subsidiaries as follows:

BE+-A=+t—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\fF —T—tF
2018 2017
T 2T
UsD UspD
BrFT S B A (EE), &R (Loss)/profit before income tax (277,783) 14,031,227
ZEARSEERMELSFA  Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable
ARG E IR to profits in the respective countries (20,490) 2,275,457
BAMTBEUA Income not subject to tax (884,231) (66,967)
IRtk olba Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 363,229 275,406
TSR B =R — BrEEmn Income tax benefit — super deduction (604,968) (541,701)
W R RIRE T I & E R Tax losses for which no deferred tax
FiIE g8 asset was recognised 104,630 —
MBS (BB T2 (Over)under-provision in prior years (551,477) 255,555
EFFTERERIE — Re-measurement of deferred tax —
MEEH) change in the tax rate — 734,609
PrSE (%) /Fx Income tax (credit)/expense (1,593,307) 2,932,359

HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HIFE  SMITRIIE
RABBIRMEE AR _FT—tFE_F—N
FoFHRAZTERARMEEEERE - it 5
SMITARIIERIEZBNETCHARBETENTE -
RZZF-N\R_ZF-NHBEE  BHKTRLDHE
EHRBCEASIRMERERRELRI15% EHT

=
=

During the year ended 31 December 2017, as a result
of the approval obtained by SMIT Shenzhen as a High/
New Technology Enterprise with the entitlement to
HNTE Preferential Tax Rate for a 3-year period from
2017 to 2019, the deferred tax balances with respect
to the temporary differences of SMIT Shenzhen have
been re-measured. Deferred tax expected to be reversed
during the financial year of 2018 and 2019 had been re-
measured using the HNTE Preferential Tax Rate at 15%.
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Fr8fi (&), Bz

HE-_Z—N\F+_A=1t—HBItFENNEFLEE
AMEAET3%(ZZF—LF :16.2%) ° FIEIIERAE
AN REWBARNE B BRRBFIKFEES -

BRECPEARKMBEEEMRETOE) - R B
SNEREMINEIREE TR B BB 10% BN
B ZRMEB_TTNF-A-AEERWERN=
ZELF+T A=+ BERIEF o frrh B EIN
BB EEMBORIEERZZIRWIHE - MITRAR
EHBEHABRRE - ARAEEMNS - BARERS%
F10% - Bt - BRA—_ZEENF-A—HEMEL
BF - NREBARN B ZENE R R DK
R SR TRINEL  FHBRMEE 235 -

11

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
(Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was 7.3% (2017: 16.2%). The
decrease is caused by a change in the profitability of the
Company and its subsidiaries in the respective countries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Details are
disclosed in Note 23.
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12. BRER

12.1 74

BREARRMNEZARRHEE ABIEAREE RN R
AB BT E BRI T HEGETE -

12

EARNINGS PER SHARE

12.1 Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue.

BE+-A=1+—HBLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
ANEHER AN REF|(ZEIT)  Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (USD) 1,317,734 11,098,868
BETERRMNETFIIE  Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue 309,751,596 303,420,114
BREARAF(ZETT) Basic earnings per share (USD) 0.004 0.037

12.2 #58

RS B )88 S B BTSN B BN AE
BE - URERAAAEEEEIMENERERE
rEmmatE - BBRENS @ RREREET
E R E HITA A 2B HIRR LR TS 3R A
BAVEZBABFESRFAMEEE) I #T
MR mHEE - NABERITHRNEE - AmE
AREETITRBE AT BEE B
"/ UFTESEREERT -

12.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the
share options, the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options less the number of shares that could
have been issued at fair value (determined as the
average market price per share for the respective
year) for the same total proceeds is the number of
shares issued for no consideration. The resulting
number of shares issued for no consideration
is included in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.
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12. EREF (@)

12.2 #E(E)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

12.2 Diluted (Continued)

BE+-A=t—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
RAEHEB AEG Profit attributable to owners of the
wmA(FET) Company (USD) 1,317,734 11,098,868
BT TR Weighted average number of ordinary
it Bkt shares in issue 309,751,596 303,420,114
HE AR R Adjustments for share options 8,896,373 11,872,746
TREE BT AR Adjusted weighted average number
BRI T8 of ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share 318,647,969 315,292,860
SFREEAEF(ET) Diluted earnings per share (USD) 0.004 0.035

g2

13 DIVIDENDS

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
R B S8R 0.01 BT Proposed final dividend of HK$0.01
(FB&ER470.001 %7T) (equivalent to approximately USD0.001)
(ZE—+tF 00287 (2017: HK$0.02 (equivalent to approximately
(FBER#10.003%7T)) USDO0.003)) per share 402,964 802,533

HE-_Z—+tF+_A=1+t—"BLEENXRHEREA
802,533E JL(H % 0.02 B L (FHE M #0.003%7T))
ZZ—+%F 580,846 %L (B 0.015FL(FHER
#0.002%7))) ERZE—NEENH - EE_Z
—N\FE+ZA=+—BLEFENRPREAER0.01
BT (FHER#0.001E7T) - IR B 4R% A402,964 %
L BRARARNEEHNBRRBFAGIRE - It
BABMBREYARERZE—NF+_A=+—HHLK
BMBHREP R BEMRS

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to USD802,533 (HK$0.02 (equivalent to
approximately USD0.003) per share) (2017: USD580,846
(HK$0.015 (equivalent to approximately USD0.002) per
share)) was paid in 2018. A final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$0.01
(equivalent to approximately USD0.001) per share,
amounted to a total dividend of USD402,964, will be
proposed at the upcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. This proposed final dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2018.
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14 Y% BERRE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KA -
HENELE £ERRE "E by
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
e E En En
usp Usp usp usp
RZZE—X"E+ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2016
PR AR Cost 2,289,643 1,731,145 242,388 4,263,176
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (1,790,852) (388,135) (74.467) (2,253,454)
SR FE Net book amount 498,791 1,343,010 167,921 2,009,722
BE-Z—+tHF Year ended 31 December 2017
+T-—A=+—HILEE
FHEREFE Opening net book amount 498,791 1,343,010 167,921 2,009,722
AE Additions 64,543 631,477 122,390 818,410
HE Disposals (470) (229,735) (15,758) (245,963)
WE(ME7) Depreciation (Note 7) (219,474) (397,335) (59,231) (676,040)
B E =R Currency translation differences 23,677 71,369 4,878 99,924
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 367,067 1,418,786 220,200 2,006,053
R-ZE—tHF At 31 December 2017
+=A=+—8
PR A Cost 2,380,124 2,075,871 317,166 4,773,161
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (2,013,057 (657,085) (96,966) (2,767,108)
BREFE Net book amount 367,067 1,418,786 220,200 2,006,053
BE-Z—N\#&F Year ended 31 December 2018
+=-B=+—HLFE
FYIREFE Opening net book amount 367,067 1,418,786 220,200 2,006,053
UG BE BT B A &) (Fff 5 35) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) 25,276 70,043 — 95,319
RE Additions 241,003 174,322 — 415,325
k= Disposals (14,735) (19,880) — (34,615)
PrE(ME7) Depreciation (Note 7) (245,502) (379,125) (60,586) (685,213)
BE¥mE xR Currency translation differences (15,990) (40,306) (4,679) (60,975)
FAREREFEE Closing net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
M=Z— \F+=H=+1+— HAt 31 December 2018
PR AR Cost 2,651,553 3,134,470 327,51 6,113,534
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (2,294,434) (1,910,630) (172,576) (4,377,640)
BREEE Net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation included in “cost of sales”, “research
and development expenses”, “selling and distribution

expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”

are analysed as follows:

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—®-N\E  —Ttf&

2018 2017

ET ey

UsbD Usb

FHERA Cost of sales 100,749 73,653
HERE Research and development expenses 377,091 399,054
HERDHERAZ Selling and distribution expenses 24,901 32,202
—MRITHRAX General and administrative expenses 182,472 171,131
685,213 676,040
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15 HiELEE

15 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B E FFEIE AR st
Computer License use
software rights Total
E E e
UsDb UsD Usb
R=ZB—RF At 31 December 2016
+=ZA=+—H
[D#N Cost 3,477,772 = 3,477,772
2T E Accumulated depreciation (3,285,363) — (3,285,363)
REFE Net book amount 192,409 — 192,409
BE-Z—tF Year ended 31 December 2017
+TZA=t+—HLEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 192,409 — 192,409
NE Additions 62,654 = 62,654
B (MIsE7) Amortisation (Note 7) (167,733) — (167,733)
B E =5 Currency translation differences (1,019) — (1,019)
FREEEE Closing net book amount 86,311 — 86,311
R=-ZE—tHF At 31 December 2017
+=A=+—H
B Cost 3,527,871 — 3,527,871
ZEITE Accumulated depreciation (3,441,560) — (3,441,560)
REFE Net book amount 86,311 — 86,311
BE-Z—N\F Year ended 31 December 2018
+TZA=+—RALFE
FYREFE Opening net book amount 86,311 — 86,311
Uy B BT BB A m] (B sE 35) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) 221,087 4,644,000 4,865,087
= Additions 280,793 — 280,793
BiH(MEE7) Amortisation (Note 7) (160,904) (25,800) (186,704)
HEMmE 2R Currency translation differences 7,832 — 7,832
FARIREEE Closing net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
R-ZB—N\F At 31 December 2018
F=EHET—E
B AR Cost 3,684,820 4,644,000 8,328,820
ZFHTE Accumulated depreciation (3,249,701) (25,800) (3,275,501)
REFE Net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
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15 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”

are analysed as follows:

BE+-HA=+t—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —EF—tF
2018 2017
=7 ES
UsD UsD
SHER AR Cost of sales 94 —
R Research and development expenses 128,135 91,985
HE R HERAX Selling and distribution expenses 10,000 19,706
—BERITHRAX General and administrative expenses 48,475 56,042
186,704 167,733
ZE 16 INVENTORIES
WR+=—HA=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —EF—tF
2018 2017
E ES
UsD UsD
JRA R Raw materials 7,073,129 8,273,392
K o Work in progress 2,258,421 3,119,485
BURK G Finished goods 3,671,418 8,866,594
13,002,968 20,259,471
B FERERE Less: Provision for impairment of inventories (3,021,355) (3,531,606)
9,981,613 16,727,865

BHE T \F+-_A=1+—HIEE  HHERAH
T ETAHE KRN FE KA A25,576,9303% T
—ZT—+% :54,528,7503E7T) °

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to USD25,576,930
(2017: USD54,528,750) for the year ended 31 December

2018.
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17 BRERESHNEMIA 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
Rt+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E2-)N\F —+F
2018 2017
ET e
UsbD Usb
RBHREMBRRRNEE Assets as per consolidated statement
of financial position
REHA AT RN EREE Financial assets at amortised cost
— B Z WA - Trade receivables 11,514,103 10,688,074
—ZEREAEREIR - Notes and other receivables 992,101 1,798,283
— R HIRITIF 3K - Short-term bank deposits — 3,523,375
—ZBRFIBITFER - Restricted bank deposit 5,000,000 —
—HekBeEEY - Cash and cash equivalents 54,962,324 84,100,969
72,468,528 100,110,701
FiREmERA T EARD Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
SRIEE
—FERERRA FEARDY - Financial assets at fair value
EREE through profit or loss 18,246,807 3,808,986
90,715,335 103,919,687
RIBGREMBRARNEE Liabilities as per consolidated statement
of financial position
REERAT RN SR A E Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— B ZREMFRE - Trade payables 4,089,422 7,552,913
— et E A R E A EN A - Accruals and other payables 2,369,824 4,547,074
— RITIER - Bank borrowings 5,335,126 —
11,794,372 12,099,987
BREREATEARERDN Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
SRIBE
—FER S ARE - Contingent consideration payable 1,507,404 —
13,301,776 12,099,987
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18 EZEWRIE  AYREAREMGERRK

18 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

| RECEIVABLES
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
ih=s —E-N\F —T—+tF
Note 2018 2017
£ e
UsD UsD
F=HEHEWGIA Trade receivables from third parties (a) 8,609,948 11,840,686
B E 5 R IE Trade receivables from a related party
(HMtzE36(e)) (Note 36(e)) (@) 4,885,596 133,476
o B S EBGRIERERE  Less: Provision for impairment
of trade receivables (a) (1,981,441) (1,286,088)
E 5 W — F Trade receivables — net 11,514,103 10,688,074
FEfT3RIE Prepayments (b) 8,371,901 1,350,472
e Notes receivable (b) 66,190 1,633,905
FZhHRe MNEMERTIE  Deposits and other receivables
from third parties (b) 898,156 164,378
28 Bk 77 EL b FE WK IE Other receivables from a related party
(Pt 3% 36(f)) (Note 36()) (b) 27,755 —
9,364,002 3,148,755
o FERNHAEL Less: Non-current portion (41,750) (545,554)

20,836,355 13,291,275
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18 ESZREWAE - AAREREMENRR 18 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

() RECEIVABLES (Continued)
B3 Note:
(@) BSrElE (@)  Trade receivables
RZZF—N\F+ZA=+—H8 ERZEZAHNESEK As at 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade
KRR AOITAT - receivables based on invoice date is as follows:
R+=—HA=+—8
As at 31 December
—ZE-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
7 ET
uUsb usb
DLR30K Within 30 days 2,950,429 7,132,202
31 260K 31 to 60 days 563,046 2,185,283
61290k 61 to 90 days 2,600,183 356,603
91E 180K 91 to 180 days 154,937 170,461
181 = 365K 181 to 365 days 5,465,007 874,664
B 365K Over 365 days 1,761,942 1,254,949

13,495,544 11,974,162
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18 ESERFAIR ANREAREMBERR 18
5 (#8)

ffaE = ()

(a)

B SRR EE)

AEEE S RUGRERERBOESNT

TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of the
trade receivables are as follows:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
7 FET
uUsD Usb
n—A—AR As at 1 January 1,286,088 1,208,748
ERE Provision for impairment 759,318 2,039
EEmE =R Currency translation differences (63,965) 75,301
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 1,981,441 1,286,088

RAZEERBRMHASE S RUGKIRNREE - AEE L
ERZEERFTAEERRREMEEMRER -

55 0 5 R IR SRR A T AR - BT
EMEHA

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

R+=BA=+-—A8
As at 31 December

—E2-N\F —T—+F

2018 2017

=T 7

usD usDb

AR RMB 8,509,523 9,019,184
ES usD 2,693,399 1,380,830
EHAth Others 311,181 288,060
11,514,103 10,688,074
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18 EZEWRIE AEYREBEREMERSRK

IH (4)
i : (8
(b)  FNHE - AR A AR OB

RZT-N\E+=-A=+—0  BNHRELESHSEEEEX
AT A B K9 5,500,000 % (T —+H4 : &) -

AEEBNFR - BRERRE M EUGANRE(EREE
AFEEE - WEBATIIEREHE -

18 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

Prepayments, notes receivable and other receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of prepayments
includes an amount of USD5,500,000 (2017: Nil) in relation
to future research and development projects.

The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, notes
receivable and other receivables approximate their fair values
and are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
Ey ZET
UsD USD
=TT usD 5,653,546 420,928
AREE RMB 3,370,806 2,543,538
HAth Others 339,650 184,289
9,364,002 3,148,755

Hit BUCK BT U EBEEE - AEELERH
ERHER R RYER o

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.
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19 ZBRBHFBRAFEARNESHMEE

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R+=HB=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F T —tF
2018 2017
B 5E £ e
Note UsbD Usb
—E L FEBAKELT Unlisted equity security acquired
ARAS 32 in 2017 ) — 2,040,036
FLEMES Unlisted fund (b) 1,437,599 1,768,950
—E-N\FBANI LT Unlisted equity securities acquired
& AR 75 25 in 2018 (©), (d), (e) 16,809,208 —
18,246,807 3,808,986
B &E - Note:
(a) JFE LR ARBEEIRERBILRIEGEIDBRAT(TEL]) (@) The unlisted equity security investment represents 8.89%

(—RRPEFMEAIHRE - EBEFHEEEEL I
XEREETE)HS.89% I - MBI KERIZEZR
BEFALT - AIZRETERASEZNOREN EESF
8% MF B ARED WAk BHEE - R FEERAFESR
FIR/A(MF33) BE_T—N\F+_A=+—HLHF
B REEEIE1,942,243E (22—t F : BIREKE

RZT—tFWHANE - AKEFEBRE 15,000 RERE
B2EAERERON —RIFLTES(HRRASHSEM)
#% % 1,500,000 7T - AFEERTFESREIRAFIE
33) cBEZT—N\F+-_A=+—BHLEE 2FES
331,351 € L(ZF —+tF : #5268,950F L) RiFE

interest in Mainsweb Technology (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Mainsweb”), a company incorporated in the PRC
principally engaged in the operation of a one-stop cross-
border e-commerce platform in the PRC. The investment
is redeemable if Mainsweb is unable to be listed within 5
years from the date of investment at the consideration paid
by the Group plus an interest income of 8% per annum less
dividends received. The fair value is within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy (Note 3.3). During year ended 31 December
2018, a fair value loss of USD1,942,243 (2017: Nil) is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

On 6 April 2017, the Group made an investment of
USD1,500,000 in an unlisted fund by way of a subscription
for 15,000 non-voting participating redeemable shares, which
are registered in the Cayman Islands. The fair value is within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). During year
ended 31 December 2018, a fair value loss of USD331,351
(2017: gain of USD268,950) is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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19 EREZELATEARNEMEE®)

GEX

(&)

RZZE—N\FZ AREH I ETRAZEF BRI EFR
FREARABN(DRINEFT ) H43.4% #5 - ZA AR
PR - FEREMBEEETEN  HBE TR
BEBITENNREERLR - ZBREEARRIZENBEA
AIFRYIB MBI AR QR (TSMITRY BN EF T
(REBHFIPAEOTMIEEEET @ AHRAEER 8
REARB208ET(HEERA3,166,000%7T) il & EF
10% B F B AH A B AR S FUABEE o A FEERFE
EREIHZN(RMF33) - BE_ZE—NFF+_A=+—
HIEFE A TFEWEES) -

RZZE—NENA=+—H  KNAALLEHKE 1,800,000
ErnCREETE=A )KBRrRASESAMEIHA
A]SMIT Investment Limited([SMIT Investment]) &) £
8 5% R+ (B SMIT Investment£710.11% 4 #& ° SMIT
Investment & — IR EER AR EREZEMBARF
A IBOXPAY International Inc.([&FXF1)%78.37% Rt
HIRE - EFTXNRELENBH I NREREEIAEE
RERF - ARAHNTES  ERATERERRREZ
RSCHETMEE SMIT Investment IEE - AFEEAFES
WEIMA(HE3S) - BE_E—\F+=-A=1+—81t
FE - RFEHRE 3,800,000 ETTRERE s R AFER ©

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

()

The unlisted equity security acquired in February 2018
represents approximately 3.4% interest in StorArt Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“StorArt”), a company incorporated in
the PRC being principally engaged in development of flash
memory main controller integrated circuits which are mainly
supplied to the communications, consumer electronics and
data processing industries. The investment is redeemable
in the event of any of the prescribed conditions set out in
the investment agreement signed between Shenzhen State
Micro Technology Co., Ltd. (SMIT Shenzhen), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and StorArt at the
consideration of RMB 20 million (equivalent to approximately
USD3,166,000) paid by the Group plus an interest income
of 10% per annum less dividends received. The fair value
is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3).
There was no change in fair value during the year ended 31
December 2018.

On 31 August 2018, the Company has acquired unlisted
preference shares of SMIT Investment Limited (“SMIT
Investment”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
at a total consideration of USD1,800,000 from certain third
parties, representing approximately 10.11% interest in
SMIT Investment. SMIT Investment is an investment holding
company which holds, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
an investment in approximately 8.37% equity interest of
IBOXPAY International Inc. (“iBoxpay”). iBoxpay is leading
mobile payment services provider and an existing customer
of the Group. Mr Huang Xueliang, the executive director, the
CEO and controlling shareholder of the Company is also the
director of SMIT Investment. The fair value is within level 3
of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During year ended
31 December 2018, a fair value gain of USD3,800,000 is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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ERERRAFEARNERMEE®)

ffaE - ()

(e) RZZF—\F=ZANB ' AARZENRBARBEHIZER(F
) AR AR (TEHES ) RIZE H Sensel, Inc.([Sensel])
EEHEIN—INEBBEGZ)I((REEERZE)])
FERK T ¥ Sensel £92,000,000 € ;L1 & © Sensel & — R bA
FEAEMMBEBERMAR - EEBRNBEEEM - Z
BMERA NG AR - BE T ERNREIERE RBINEEE
Bl o MR B E - BB B D IRB(ERE B E N5
FKAREE T 2,000,000 3% 7T AT ##44 K Sensel & 5@ A% 3k B £ AR
BRI AL SRR ©

RZZE—N\FE+—ALB BEHEERBEREEERTE
([ERIBE ] - BBEE Sensel WESLR([REEE |)i#
—# 588 5,000,000 % T WX & A K+ M Sensel B 1T
RZZ—N\FZAHEMEHREN 2,000,000 7T 7T
R RN IR E B B ST A R AR R ER R Sensel VB 5t
B& - MRRERIGE - BEME B ET AT 8 AT R AR R &
THZ2ERIBE R F Sensel AREVEBLR - REBET
B8 - BIME A 1R 2 T B8 M A Sensel £99.22%

ﬁ]/io

@ﬂ?fﬁ&@?@%%&%ﬂ&mwﬁ?aa) BHE-_T—N\F
F+TZA=+—HILFE  AFEKE,295117 ETRER
B ERAER -

ZBRFIRIT K

RZE—NEFE+-_A=+—8 ZIRHFBITEX
5,000,000 (ZE—tF : EMEREBERITERF
BHEEARNEBRTRENERR -

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁf%’&%liﬂ% 3.13% BREXAI S o IR &)
TEROEEEEEAFERE - WAKTAHE -

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e) On 8 February 2018, SMIT Holdings (HK) Limited (“SMIT
HK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed
a USD2,000,000 investment in Sensel, Inc. (“Sensel”)
pursuant to a note purchase agreement entered into
between, among others, SMIT HK and Sensel (the “Note
Purchase Agreement”). Sensel is an advanced sensory
technology company based in the United States, which owns
the pressure grid technology that combines industry-leading
performance and the extra dimension of control in the form
of force sensitivity. Upon completion of the transaction, SMIT
HK subscribed for a USD2,000,000 promissory note which
may be converted into common or preferred shares of Sensel
pursuant to the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement.

On 9 November 2018, SMIT HK completed a further
USD5,000,000 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase (the “Stock Purchase”) pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”).
Simultaneously, the USD2,000,000 convertible promissory
note issued by Sensel and previously subscribed by SMIT HK
in February 2018 was deemed converted into preferred shares
in Sensel at completion of the Stock Purchase, and the entire
amount owed to SMIT HK under such convertible promissory
note was tendered to Sensel in exchange for preferred stock
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. Upon completion
of the Stock Purchase, SMIT HK held approximately 9.22%
interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see
Note 3.3). During year ended 31 December 2018, a fair value
gain of USD1,295,117 is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

20 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

As at 31 December 2018, restricted bank deposit
amounting to USD5,000,000 (2017: Nil), was held in
designated bank accounts as collateral for banking
facilities of the Group.

Restricted bank deposit earns interests at fixed rate of
3.13%. The carrying amount of restricted bank deposit
approximates its fair value and is denominated in USD.
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21 RERBRESEEY

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

KR+=—B=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
ET ET
UsD Usb
RITIE S Cash at banks 54,920,645 84,065,122
FHERS Cash on hand 41,679 35,847
54,962,324 84,100,969

RekReEEYNEREEREQFERSE  XLUT
FIEHEHE

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

WR+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
E ES
UsD Usb
ETT usD 33,197,678 62,723,694
AR RMB 16,767,839 14,939,866
BT EUR 1,226,072 3,210,044
BT HK$ 3,627,966 3,226,868
Eph Others 142,769 497
54,962,324 84,100,969

FEAEFNARBETEARLIBAEMER - KM

IR AR B A R AL F0 B 1 B B 19 ) K A B - S FE I

NEEERE)  NEE S RERELEFBRFARINE

E¥BMIRT BAREZIBAEMEY - BARNZE
REIMWEERECESEMHREER16,696,733%7T
—T—+% : 14,866,479 7T) °

R—ZZE—NE+_A=Z+—8B X£EEAEX
43,519,240 % 0(=ZF — % : 46,655,095 %) AR
S RIELZEEYN5,00000ET(—EE—+F: F)
(Bt &£ 20) &Y 52 PR $Il $R 17 77 30 177 IR AE A B 38 AR 1T BR
F - mBERESHMNESIINESH) o

RMB maintained in the PRC is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks
to conduct foreign exchange business in the PRC.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents to
which these restrictions apply is USD16,696,733 (2017:
UsD14,866,479).

As at 31 December 2018, cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit of the Group amounting
to USD43,519,240 (2017: USD46,655,095) and
UsSD5,000,000 (2017: Nil) (Note 20), respectively, were
deposited with banks in the PRC where the remittance
of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.
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22 HEHISRITER

22 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-N\F —F—tF
2018 2017
T e
UsbD Usb

FIFAABB =BT —FH Short-term bank deposits with maturities

REHEIRITIFE X over three months and less than one year — 3,523,375

AEEEHRTEFRNREEEEZ QA FERBE -
WIABTCEHE °

R-ZT—+FE+-_A=+—8 AEBEHREITER
MERFAEE139% BEZEFRANFHIEHA A
102K °

R-B—N\E+=A=+—B « AEELEEHRRT
Tk -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s short-term bank
deposits approximate their respective fair values and are
denominated in HK$S.

As at 31 December 2017, the effective interest rate on
the Group’s short-term bank deposits was 1.39% per
annum and these deposits had an average maturity of
102 days.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no short-term
bank deposits.
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23 REFEH 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
RERIBEERBEINAOT : The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as
follows:
R+=HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
ES E
UsD UsD
EEFTS A E ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
—BR12EARER - to be realised within 12 months 1,094,123 938,488
—BREBB 12 A BB - to be realised after more than 12 months 1,676,566 84,076
2,770,689 1,022,564
EEFTBSFIAME ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
—BR12EAREE - to be settled within 12 months (46,440) —
— B RBE 12 A B 18 4EE - to be settled after more than 12 months (646,290) —
(692,730) —

RIERIEE EFE Deferred tax assets, net 2,077,959 1,022,564
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23 EEMEBE) 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
RIEFTISTAR B MEE)FREM T ¢ The net movement on the deferred income tax account
is as follows:
R+=—HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
Ex E
UsD UsD
n—H—H At 1 January 1,022,564 2,180,722
U BE BT B8 2 B] (B9 E35) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) 52,227 —
STA(HBR B &R A B Credited/(charged) to consolidated profit or
(FFEE11) loss (Note 11) 1,069,528 (1,239,715)
EEmE =R Currency translation differences (66,360) 81,557

R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,077,959 1,022,564




216 o EMEIERERAT
FEHRE2018

e MR RME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 EEREB(E) 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
RIENIBEE R AERNEECRE BIEHER BB aDE Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
EEANER) T taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:
BIEFBHEE - .
Deferred income tax assets:
ERE
nE B BIEEE Hite gt
Accelerated
tax
depreciation ~ Provisions  Tax losses Other Total
E S ES E S ES ESn
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
R-T—+&F
—H—H At 1 January 2017 19,678 1,412,288 484,648 284,676 2,201,290
Nk aEm= Charged to profit or loss (10,817) (590,612) (484,648) (160,516)  (1,246,593)
EmE = Currency translation differences 869 68,251 — 12,437 81,557
RZE—tF
+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017 9,730 889,927 = 136,597 1,036,254
R=B-N\&F
—A—8 At 1 January 2018 9,730 889,927 - 136,597 1,036,254
WEEHT B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Pff5E35) (Note 35) = 357,200 400,480 457 758,137
(Hkg)/ (Charged)/credited to
STAGZEBE consolidated profit or loss (3,440) (144,110) 1,265,437 (58,000) 1,059,887
ERME Currency translation differences (345) (35,306) (26,166) (4,496) (66,313)
R=Z-N\F
+=HA=+-—-H At 31 December 2018 5,945 1,067,711 1,639,751 74,558 2,787,965
BREFEMEEDMAENTHIBEERER - MR8 Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
BRI ERT s N B IR AREAEERR o PR3t 4 carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
LA SE AR R E R U ARy E518 418,518 XL (=2 —+ the related benefit through future taxable profits is
F:E)NREEMSHEE104630ET(ZT—+ probable. Other than the deferred income tax assets of
F:BIINER=ZZE_=F@mn) RZT—N\Fk= USD104,630 (2017: Nil) in respect of losses amounting
T—+tF+-A=+—H AEETEEMERE to USD418,518 (2017: Nil) that can be carried forward
RELEMBHEE against future taxable income which will expire in 2023,

the Group did not have other material unrecognised
deferred income tax assets as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.
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ELEFTEH (&)

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

RIEFBHARE : Deferred income tax liabilities:
AERERE WEEVEE Hity st
Acquired
Decelerated tax intangible
depreciation assets Other Total
ET ET EYA EYA
Usb UsD UsD uUsD
R-ZZE—tF—H—-H At 1 January 2017 20,568 — — 20,568
FFAGZEERE Credited to consolidated profit or loss (6,878) — — (6,878)
RZE—tF
+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 13,690 = = 13,690
R=EB-N§—-HF—H At 1 January 2018 13,690 — — 13,690
WM B QA Acquisition of subsidiaries
(PBi#%E35) (Note 35) — 696,600 9,310 705,910
(GtA) /MR A (Credited)/charged to consolidated
RAEER profit or loss (10,005) (3.870) 4,234 (9,641)
EmE =R Currency translation differences — — 47 47
R=B-N\&F
+=HB=t+—-H At 31 December 2018 3,685 692,730 13,591 710,006

RZBE-—NE+-A=+—0 AEEFEMHBRA
i oK BE 2= 7R B0 45 A0 s AR ST 5 AR A B B4R B A ) (14
RETIREEMBHRABEREMBEL 1,601,000 T(=ZF
—+ 4 :2,039,000% 7T )) &) A A R % 203,447,000
TL(FHER#H32,013,000FET)(ZE—+F : ARK
282,669,000 7T (#8 & M 4740,771,0003% 7t )) » I8 &7
ZERAGEHPEMNBARREERRERR AR
BERELHEINESTROMGE - TR RRRE
HIEZINEIEES ©

As at 31 December 2018, the retained earnings of the
Group's PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
companies incorporated outside of the PRC, for
which deferred income tax liability of approximately
UsD1,601,000 (2017: USD2,039,000) had not been
provided, were approximately RMB203,447,000
(equivalent to approximately USD32,013,000) (2017:
RMB282,669,000 (equivalent to approximately
UsSD40,771,000)). Such earnings are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiary for reinvestment purposes
and would not be remitted to a foreign investor in the
foreseeable future based on management’s estimation
of overseas funding requirements.
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24 BHE 24 GOODWILL

1R E B 7F

REF RiEBMY
GEL0)) (B &E (ii)) et

Rapid

verification

system and

CAM software
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
#T #ET e
Usb UsD usb
R-ZZT—t&—H—H At 1 January 2017 6,188,584 — 6,188,584
ERpE =R Currency translation differences 381,495 — 381,495

R-ZE—tF+=-HA=+—HK At31December2017 and

—ZE2-N\F—HA—H 1 January 2018 6,570,079 — 6,570,079
W EEH B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 15,896,824 15,896,824
EiEsmE =g Currency translation differences (314,949) — (314,949)
R=-Z—N\F+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2018 6,255,130 15,896,824 22,151,954

B3
0)

AR#42,930,000 THEBREHAARR_SZTAFN
AWESMITRYIEAKBE A WHESERAIEAF
H - P E S EEE SMIT R I FTAR & RS A TEH R JRA B 7 25
B -R-T—/\E+-_A=1t—0 A4&EEEEBCY
BEREBNRSELEN([ReELBM ) ETRINK
ErEEEERE -

ReEABUMNAKESEDREBEEMREERFEEETE -
ZETEERARERB AN RERFRRNTBREN
BARE MBI K 20%(ZF—+4F : 20%)HBRE -
RAEMBREAHAMRRRRREREEEERNAR
B - BE_T-N\F+ZA=+—-BILFE - KAHK
GERESFERX(ADFHEANNESFERE)AR
0% (ZF—+tF :1%) - AFHRMUKNBSRE TR
0% (=F—+%F : 0%)HIEREEITHR - SHRMHE
AWERKAN T BHEE R - Wi RAABKANERT)
REBEBERANEREY M S ERNBARETME

HWEBE-T-N\F+-A=1t—RALEFENHHREXLT50
EER  AIRESFENSGEEEREE - R RFREH
AR EERRGFE TS0 EER - JRE SR
HBBHEREE -

Note:

Goodwill of RMB42,930,000 arose from the application of
acquisition accounting to the acquisition of SMIT Shenzhen
by the Company in April 2005 and has indefinite useful
lives. The goodwill amount relates to the value of expected
future economic benefits of the business operated by SMIT
Shenzhen. As at 31 December 2018, management of the
Group had conducted a review of the cash-generating unit
("CGU") of CAM business and determined that there is no
impairment of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate
of 20% (2017: 20%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks related to the relevant operation. The
revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual growth rate
over the five-year projection period) used is 0% (2017: 1%)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 0%
(2017: 0%). The volume of sales in each period is the main
driver for revenue and costs. The growth in revenue and the
relevant costs are estimated based on past performance and
management'’s expectations for the market development.

If the discount rate for the year ended 31 December 2018
had been increased by 50 basis points, the recoverable
amount would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth rate had been lowered by 50 basis
points for each year in the five-year projection period, the
recoverable amount would still exceed its carrying amount.
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24 BEG®B)

BaE

(i)

15,896,824 X LI B R A B M RS (BB BR A RI(E
RAMB AR R =T —N\F+— A s2Cc(MizE35) -
WHEEERAIEAFLY - §BESFES2CHEE XEBHNTR
HARRGEENRER ASEEEECHRERRERSA
BRSO © E A BAEITRE KRBT SR ERE -

REBFRSERMGEBREELEUNAIRESEIIR
HEEENAFERDEERA(AFERDERA])
E o MERRNEENTAIBEEGARRNHRERRFE
EHPHNE=F - ATEEEBUEREERELANRE
hEHENPBRENHRRSRETAR - RAKRRE
MEEAR17% R EHEE o RANRREATRIT X
RRREREEBEENARRR BE-T-N\F+=
R=+—RLFE FRANKRGEEREAFERX(AIRSF
TRRIERE S FIRRE) RB37.8% - AFHFENAENRER
EBTRA3% M MEFHERIETHR - SHHENHE
AT RKANEBHBE R - W RAAEKANIERT)
BREBEXRAREREY M S ERNBAIETHE

HBE—TE-—N\F+_A=+—HIFENTE LFA50
BEEE  ATRESFENEEEEREE - MR EFERH
AR a1 R R G4 TP 50 EEE - AR S
HRHREE -

24 GOODWILL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

Goodwill of USD15,896,824 arose from the acquisition
of S2C by SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, in November 2018 (Note 35) and has indefinite
useful lives. The goodwill amount relates to the value of
expected future economic benefits of the business operated
by S2C. Management of the Group had conducted a review
of the CGU of rapid verification system and software business
and determined that there is no impairment of the goodwill.

Recoverable amount of the rapid verification system and
software business CGU is determined using fair value less
cost of disposal ("FVLCOD") of the underlying assets. The
valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
due to unobservable inputs used in the valuation. The fair
value was determined by applying discounted cash flow
model on post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a discount rate of 17%. The discount rate used is post-
tax and reflects specific risks related to the relevant operation.
The revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual growth
rate over the five-year projection period) used is 37.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Cash flows beyond the
5-year period are extrapolated using a weighted average
growth rate of 3%. The volume of sales in each period is the
main driver for revenue and costs. The growth in revenue and
the relevant costs are estimated based on past performance

and management'’s expectations for the market development.

If the discount rate for the year ended 31 December 2018
had been increased by 50 basis points, the recoverable
amount would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth rate had been lowered by 50 basis
points for each year in the five-year projection period, the
recoverable amount would still exceed its carrying amount.
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25 RARKRMDEE

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ZEREE ZEREE B3 RE
Normal
No of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium
#ETT T
UsD UsD
VETE Authorised:
R_ZE—+F—H—H
—E—tEFRZT-N\F Ordinary share of USD0.00002 each
+=-—A=+—~H at 1 January 2017,
ERME(E0.00002E LHE @AY~ 31 December 2017 and 2018 2,500,000,000 50,000 —
BITRBR Issued and fully paid:
R-ZTE—+F—HA—H At 1 January 2017 301,856,379 6,037 97,421,918
R E 8 AR BB ET &I 31T Issuance of shares under the employee
f&fn (FisEb) share award scheme (Note b) 1,005,000 20 302,563
TERERE (Mitka) Exercise of share options (Note a) 4,154,009 83 1,219,046
RZZB—+Fh AIKRR Dividends relating to 2016 paid
—E-NEFRERE in May 2017 = = (580,846)
R=B—+tH+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017 307,015,388 6,140 98,362,681
TEERE (Hita) Exercise of share options (Note a) 9,278,337 186 3,422,799
R=Z2-NFERAIKM Dividends relating to 2017 paid in
TE—tFHERE June 2018 — — (802,533)
R=-Z—N\F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2018 316,293,725 6,326 100,982,947
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25 BARRGEE @)

BaE

(a)

TTILRBRRE

RBE-ZZT—N\F+-A=+—HILFE 9,278,337
BRE(ZT — L :4,154,0091) B R #E ) BITHEIAR
AR A9,278,337R(=ZF — £ 4F : 4,154,009 /% ) & i@
fg - RERI77,494FT(ZF—+4F : 122,011%7T) °
HA186% (=T —t4 : 83k )it ARKE » M
977,308 (=T — -+ : 121,928 X L) st ARG B E
B o FE UL - 2,445,491 & (=T —+4F : 1,097,1183%7T)
EEURNAERONREEEREROEER - N2
—N\FE+ZRA=+—H"  5#£40319,288(=F—+ & :
51,497,563 ) DR mARITE (FiEE31.1) ©

RIEE SR BB 8T

RZZT—tFXA=1+H  KAQF4 1,005,000 EH
RO ERDDHENEEE) ERTERERTETE
B URALRLBHEHEERENTR - ZZHERMD K
LEHRAFEAER23B T - BE-_T—+tF+=A
=+ —HIEFE  EEEAMX302,583F T IIRERAE M
BRENER HE-T—N\F+-_A=+—HLEE"
I 48 1R 1 B B IR 1D B D AT B B ATAR D o

25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
(Continued)

Note:

(a)

Exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 9,278,337
options were exercised (2017: 4,154,009 options) to
subscribe for 9,278,337 ordinary shares (2017: 4,154,009
shares) in the Company at a consideration of USD977,494
(2017: USD122,011) of which USD186 (2017: USD83) was
credited to share capital and the balance of USD977,308
(2017:US121,928) was credited to the share premium
account. An amount of USD2,445,491 (2017: USD1,097,118)
was therefore, as a result, transferred from the share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account. As at 31
December 2018, there were in total 40,319,288 options
(2017: 51,497,563) remained outstanding (Note 31.1).

Issuance of shares under employee share award scheme

On 30 June 2017, a total of 1,005,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (“Awarded Shares”), which were all vested
immediately, were granted to certain employees at no
consideration in recognition of, and as award for, the
contribution of such employees. The grant date fair value of
these Awarded Shares was HK$2.35 per share. Employee
benefits expenses of USD302,583 were recognised in the
consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31 December 2017. There is no issuance of shares under
employee share award scheme during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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26 f#E

(a)

EEEE

RIBAKEE TR BN E 27 ([ B S
REDNABERARNRE > FEMBRRE
FRABEEEMEHRRATES ARIEERE
U185 M HY 10 % B AEIE T Bk fi 488 (B IR s% TR I+
HEEZE B MKREMN50%) - HEERA
TRAI A BRI RS M BAE R B RE - 1ER
KRR RBRBRMME - RREBRINE D
Sh - ZERBIERELMRE  ARERER
AT REBERNBRAEG EERIEIN - TRAFIE
RIREBETADIK

EATHEGRBETEABRTENBRAGBASE
EREEEE  AFENEE ARERAER
B AT BHEEAALBERREIE - B
BARNEATRSBRHE  TERGRHERRMDE
BErEATEMBARMRAE  HEELERRAS
BBRFERIE VARAEMEETREGRE
ATERBEBOFREHTE O REMBRAD
25%) °

RIBRBERER  BEBLARSGFAEBEEE
FRERM 0% EREERE  EERBEHRE
NEGBAZEAIL -

26 RESERVES

(a)

Statutory reserve

According to the provisions of the articles of
association of the Group’s subsidiaries located in
the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries
shall first set aside 10% of the entity’s profit
attributable to owners after tax as indicated
in their statutory financial statements for the
statutory surplus reserve (except where the reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered share
capital) in each year. The PRC subsidiaries may also
make appropriations from its profit attributable
to shareholders to discretionary surplus reserve,
provided it is approved by a resolution passed in
a shareholders’ general meeting. These reserves
cannot be used for purposes other than those for
which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends without the prior approval obtained
from shareholders in a shareholders’ general
meeting under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not
sufficient to make good for any losses of the PRC
subsidiaries from previous years, the current year
profit attributable to owners shall be used to make
good the losses before any allocations are set aside
for the statutory surplus reserve. The statutory
surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve
and the share premium of the PRC subsidiaries
may be converted into share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution
passed in a shareholders’ general meeting and
meets other regulatory requirements with the
provision that the ending balance of the statutory
surplus reserve does not fall below 25% of the
registered share capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan,
Taiwan companies shall set aside 10% of their
statutory net income each year for legal reserve,
until the reserve balance has reached the paid-in
share capital amount.
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26 f#fE (®

(b)

()

R BERO ARG

RZZFEZENFEZR AEERM—BRMDET
E(=ZZZENF R M5 E ) kState Micro
Technology Corporation([SMIT Corporation )
(RZZE—HF+—At+=AKEAT=E
ADA - REBRANEKRERAR)FE
16,936,135 R E @R (LR AAE) - AREE
g7 - RZE—TFNA -EFE(EET))
HEBIT T N\ FERerEl - BHETHLR
A% 2B % 016,523,060 i = 33,459,195 ik & 3@
e RZF——F_f - EFSHRAEBIT=ZZEZ
NERMETE - BHFITH L BREE & — 1
hn6,160,000 J% % 39,619,195 A @A -

—E-RFAATEB  EAEAN—FH 0 &K
A FIMBE SMIT Corporation ) — ZZ )\ F & &t
SEERAAEENERESI(ERARAESE
ARSI - WHZEBREGERIEL S TE
HIE
NERSEEARMDAEROR S FBRME3
W% -

CENC

KBS B I E A G EE BB RO FEIM

26 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Share-based payment reserve

In February 2008, the Group adopted a share plan
(“2008 Share Plan”) and State Micro Technology
Corporation (“SMIT Corporation”), the ultimate
holding company of companies of the Group
before the completion of a reorganisation on 13
November 2015 (”“Reorganisation”), reserved
16,936,135 ordinary shares, split adjusted, for
issuance under the plan. In September 2010, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to increase
the number of ordinary shares for issuance by
16,523,060 to 33,459,195 ordinary shares.
In February 2011, the Board approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to further
increase the number of ordinary shares for
issuance by 6,160,000 to 39,619,195 ordinary
shares.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Plan”) as part of the Reorganisation with certain
modifications of the terms of such options.

Details of the equity settled share-based
transactions are disclosed in Note 31.
Capital reserve

Capital reserve as at each reporting date
represented the additional contributions received
from the shareholders.
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26

27

f#E (@

(d) AoHHE

AEBHAHHEREEEAMBANEB QTR
AR E 68,077,551 XL EEANKE A RH

ABHEREREEZFHERE -

26 RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount of
investment in subsidiaries of USD68,077,551
acquired as a result of the Reorganisation and
the carrying amount of combined capital of the

acquired subsidiaries.

B ZENIA 27 TRADE PAYABLES
R+=HB=+-—H
As at 31 December
—ZE-N\F T —tF
2018 2017
ES ES
UsD UsD
B 5 FE I8 Trade payables 4,089,422 7,552,913

RZZB-NF+-A=1+—B REEZAHHES

PN RIBIEH MR DTN

As at 31 December 2018, the ageing analysis of the

trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:
R+=—H=+-—H
As at 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

ET ZET

UsbD UusD

ENEIFPN Less than 30 days 2,000,216 4,868,765
31E90K 31 to 90 days 1,205,815 2,629,631
91 £ 180K 91 to 180 days 517,492 261
181 £ 365K 181 to 365 days 324,153 6,997
i 365K Over 365 days 41,746 47,259
4,089,422 7,552,913
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B EAFREE)

AEEESENFENRAEREEAFERE - LA

27 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables

THEHEEE approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:
R+=ZHA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
E7 ES
UsD UsD
AR RMB 2,044,541 6,099,187
ETT usb 1,952,887 1,453,726
EHith Others 91,994 —
4,089,422 7,552,913

FEst B A R AR IR

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

R+=H=+-—~H
As at 31 December
—E-N\E S
2018 2017
E7 ES
UsD UsD
FREAE Non-current liability
B S BREIEG)) Contingent consideration payable (Note (i) 1,507,404 —
REEE Current liabilities
fEEHEE R Accrued employee benefits expenses 2,566,963 2,032,129
TR RIA Receipt in advance — 763,981
FERTST TR E Accrued royalty fee 835,786 862,441
HAh FE B8 Other taxes payables 111,797 326,976
JE A< BA B 5 3} (BT 5 36(f)) Amount due to a related party (Note 36(f)) 50,754 —
Eh Others 1,483,284 3,684,633
5,048,584 7,670,160

6,555,988 7,670,160

225



226 O

B EERER AR

FEHRE2018

mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 ETERREMENSRE®S)

BT -

e AREREUEES2CERE (KFE35) - AEEBRE
BEEMHERENRS  UBEQCERRE_T-—AF+=
A=+ =Rt/ B AEF RS RETADRT - #RIRA
FEFENENHERE - BERERREE R R
BNEMREARERNNEREPROAFEENE - M
EAT R E ER R E BRI A IR R AR ©

AEERFERREMENFENEIEEE A FE

BE

C WA T EEEHE -

28 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

Note:

@

The contingent consideration payable arose from the
acquisition of S2C Group (Note 35). The Group has
recognised the contingent consideration payable at fair value
based upon the terms as stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreement with reference to the projected revenue and
profit before tax of S2C Group for the 18 months ending 31
December 2019. The contingent consideration payable shall
be re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period resulting from events or factors emerging after the
acquisition date, with any resulting gain or loss recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

The carrying amounts of the Group's accruals and
other payables approximate their fair values and are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\E —E—F
2018 2017
ES ZET
usb usb
AR RMB 2,413,487 5,670,755
ETT usb 2,843,225 964,573
Hith Others 1,299,276 1,034,832

6,555,988 7,670,160




Smit Holdings Limited @ 227
Annual Report 2018

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EZEWRA 29 DEFERRED INCOME
R+=—H=+-—H
As at 31 December
—B-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
=z ZET
UsbD Usb
iR AE TR T #66 Bh Deferred government grant 11,237,647 969,746
B IERENE S Less: Non-current portion (6,568,365) —
mENER D Current portion 4,669,282 969,746
REZZE-—NFF+ZA=+—H  &EHEEPEPRK As at 31 December 2018, the balance includes a
NABEREREEEABEMNREERFSHDARE deferred government grant of RMB75,000,000
75,000,000 7T (FHE 7249 11,000,000 E7T) © (equivalent to approximately USD11,000,000) from the

PRC Central Government for the implementation of a
national science and technology major project.

RIEW AR BREEUAREE - The carrying amount of deferred income is denominated
in RMB.
30 RITHEM 30 BANK BORROWINGS
Rt=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F T+t
2018 2017
T e
UsbD Usb
REEISRITIER - BER Short-term bank loans, secured 5,335,126 —
NR-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H NEENRTEREA As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
R FERNBHER - were wholly repayable within 1 year.
RZT—-—NF+ZA=+—8 - 175 5£5,000,000 As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of
EN(ZZE—tF: EIUAEEZRHBITER USD5,000,000 (2017: Nil) was secured by restricted bank
5,000,000 T (= —+4 : M) (M3 20)/EKR o deposit of the Group of USD5,000,000 (2017: Nil) (Note

20).
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30 SRITIEFK(E)

RZZB-—NF+-HA=+—H  AEEHNRITEZTA
AR R R AERELIR -

BRI ARE - RITEFNRAEEL QX FEAS

AEBRITIERNREETIA T EREETHE

30 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by the
Company.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
£ ZETT
usD usbD

ETT usb
=R Japanese Yen

5,000,000 =
335,126 =

5,335,126 =

R-ZE—N\FE+_F=+—H BRHETEINEE
FEFMENTF2.50% £3.91% °

RZZB-N\F+-_A=+—8B XEETHHRKE
BASRITERRMENT

The effective annual interest rates of short-term bank
loans as at 31 December 2018 ranges from 2.50% to
3.91%.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s available and
undrawn bank loan facilities were as follows:

R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—®-NF Tt
2018 2017
ES E
UsbD usb

AEARARRRANEE B

Total available and undrawn facilities 24,642,920 —
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31 UEREELURNAERNIRS 31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

31.1 BB AE 31.1 Share options

—EENF-_A - AEERNT T N\EFRMHD
HE AR _E—ZEFNAR_ZT——F_A
HEITIEET ©

ZE-RFNATHRAB - fEREHEMN—BH - K
A FBE SMIT Corporation 8] —ZZ )\ FE X H
RSB ARARBEESABRETS - iR AE
SMIT Corporation ¥ ZZZ NFRMD B RE
mME  BREEAAHBEERBRETENME
BREMNGHER-_ZTNEROTEAR -
& A ¥ SMIT Corporation BT/ IRl & ok A 4
ANARAIIREL o AR T (M BT AR (D 1
F SMIT Corporation 8% 15 % 28 & 48 A 7] 89 ik
7 - BREBRENIEINATEL1,573,000F T
(ME28EE) AEMEERE X MEEERE
IR o

ANA)T72,574,775EBBHERMETERZ
T—RNE=ZANATEK - EERITEBRED
FEBRBEERA LARABEAERETENRE TR
HEM % 558,470,406 10 - REBLE—Z—\F
F_E—+tF+_A=Z+—HIEFE  TERE
BIR AR ERIEARER B L BN ARE o

In February 2008, the Group adopted the 2008
Share Plan and subsequently amended on
September 2010 and February 2011.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as part of the
Reorganisation. In connection with the assumption
of the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation by
the Company, all options transferred to the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall carry the same
terms as the 2008 Share Plan, except that all
references therein to SMIT Corporation shall be
modified to be references to the Company. The
shares issued upon the exercise of options will
change from shares of SMIT Corporation to shares
of the Company. The incremental fair value of the
relevant options of approximately USD1,573,000
which are all fully vested, as a result of the
modification were charged to profit or loss on a
one-off basis.

On 6 March 2016, the capitalisation issue of
72,574,775 ordinary shares of the Company
was completed, upon which the number of
outstanding share options was adjusted to
58,470,406 pursuant to the anti-dilution
arrangement in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No additional options have been granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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31 UREREEURHAERNRE (&) 31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
31.1 BREE) 31.1 Share options (Continued)
BR AR EIRERT 8% A B AR 1B a0 The details of the options granted for Pre-IPO
™ Share Option Scheme are as follows:
REXAH
RTEER
L REKRHH

BREHE BEFEEN
No. of options BREHE

pertainingto  No. of options #T

employees and pertaining to BHHR #T

ER ) directors at advisors at 1@ Remaining 5B

RELAH Date of the date of the date of Exercise contractual Remaining
Original date of grant modification modification modification price life  vesting period
“ZZ)\§=RNA “Z-RENATRA 0.01%7T [E rEGEE
9 March 2008 15 September 2015 3,201,000 225,000 UsD0.01 Expired Fully vested
“ETNELA=TRHE ZZ-1FAAtEA 0.04%7 B gl
26 July 2009 15 September 2015 4,183,000 1,070,000 USD0.04 Expired Fully vested
“2-TF=HIA ik i 0.04%7 B THEE
5 March 2010 15 September 2015 3,051,000 600,000 UsD0.04 Expired Fully vested
“Z2-ZENA-R “Z-R¥NATHE 0.54%7 075 FEEE
1 September 2010 15 September 2015 7,940,065 162,000 UsD0.54 0.7 years Fully vested
ZE-2F+ZA=+t-B ZE-AENAt+AA 0.75%7 25 gl
31 December 2010 15 September 2015 1,734,500 = UsD0.75 2 years Fully vested
—Z——5-)\H “Z-RFNATER 0.75%7 23% THEE
8 January 2011 15 September 2015 371,769 = UsD0.75 2.3 years Fully vested
=2 —%=Hj-H “Z-RFNATHE 1.06%7 245 FEEE
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 5,125,850 20,000 UsD1.06 2.4 years Fully vested
—2-——%=j-H “Z-R¥NATHA 0.54%7T 255 gl
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 = 371,768 UsD0.54 2.5 years Fully vested
“2-Z%=f-H “Z-RFNATER 121%7 25% THERE
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 = 21,142 UsD1.21 2.5 years Fully vested
“Z-—f¥hA=1H “Z-RFNATHE 0.52%7T 355 FEEE
30 September 2012 15 September 2015 2,913,750 = UsD0.52 3.5 years Fully vested
“¥-=%=H-H ZZ-RFNATHR 0.62%TT 415 THURE
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 = 116,188 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
“2-=%/\A-H “Z-RFNATER 0.56 %7 45% TB5E

1 August 2013 15 September 2015 1,362,396 79,186 USD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested



Smit Holdings Limited @ 231
Annual Report 2018

e MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 UEREEURMAEBRNIRS (&) 31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.1 BREE)
ER AR RS AT IR S B I B R S 0

31.1 Share options (Continued)

The details of the options granted for Pre-IPO

T = (%) Share Option Scheme are as follows: (Continued)
REXAH
BFREER

BN REXAH

BREHA RFERAN

No. of options EREZA

pertaining to No. of options 8#T

employees and pertaining to BHER BT
ER L directors at advisors at 1@ Remaining HRH
RELAH Date of the date of the date of Exercise contractual Remaining
Original date of grant modification modification modification price life  vesting period
—Z-=%)\A-H ZZ-RENATRA 0.56 7T 49% ot
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 734,616 = UsD0.56 4.9 years Fully vested
—“2-=%)\R-H —Z2-RENRTRA 0.14%7T 495 THEE
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 4,433,290 = UsD0.14 4.9 years Fully vested
—Z-m¥=A-H “Z-R¥NATER 0.39%7 5.5% THEE
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 = 81,340 UsD0.39 5.5 years Fully vested
“E-—%5=H-H ZZ-RENATRA 1.22%7L 255 ot
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 = 14,742 UsD1.22 2.5 years Fully vested
“E-ZEAA=TH “Z2-RENRTRA 0.62%7T 354 THEE
30 September 2012 15 September 2015 416,250 = UsD0.62 3.5 years Fully vested
“Z-=§¥=j-H ZZ-RFNATILE 0.62%71 415 THEE
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 = 69,696 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
—Z-=%£)/\A-H ZZ-RENATRA 0.56 7T 455 ot
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 892,604 120,814 UsD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested
—2-mE=A-A “Z2-RENRTRA 0.41%T 556 THEE
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 = 104,544 USD0.41 5.5 years Fully vested
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31 UERSEURGH/ERNIRS (@)

31.1 BREE)

SR 1T G S B 8 R A R AR AT (1
mT

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.1 Share options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average

exercise prices are as follows:

R+=—HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
=B-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
ik hnE
BRERE FHTERE BEREZE THTRE
Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average
of Share Exercise of Share Exercise
Options Price Options Price
ET ET
usD Usb
REF R4S R Balance as at beginning
of the year 51,497,563 0.52 55,766,713 0.45
BXAFZEERIMDETE] Pre-IPO Share Plan
BRI T SHEE AR Share options
forfeited/cancelled (1,899,938) 0.18 (115,141) 0.67
B 1T{F A RE Share options exercised (9,278,337) 0.10 (4,154,009) 0.03
RERR A Balance as at year end 40,319,288 0.63 51,497,563 0.52

40,319,288 (=ZF — 4 : 51,497,563 1% ) 14
RITHEBEREF - 40,319,288 ( T —+4F :
51,480,398 ) R #E AR F11F - RZZT—N
FITENBERBEEBUZ NEFIIESR0.10E
T(ZZT—+ 4% :0033%70)3779,278,337 K&
(ZZF—+t%F 4,154,009 %) I8 13 - 1T{FE R A48
BMEFEHREAZREMN0.80ETL(ZE—+
F: BERRH0.453TT) °

Out of the 40,319,288 outstanding options
(2017: 51,497,563), 40,319,288 options (2017:
51,480,398) were exercisable. Options exercised
in 2018 resulted in 9,278,337 (2017:4,154,009)
shares being issued at a weighted average price
of USDO0.10 (2017: USD0.03) each. The related
weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was USD0.80 (2017: USD0.45 per share).
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31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.1 Share options (Continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year

T have the following expiry date and exercise prices:
R+t=A=+—-8”
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
SHERE BihkEkE
EnfTRfE BREXE EUITRE  BREHE
Exercise price Exercise price
in USD per Number of in USD per Number of
&% B 8 Expiry date share option share options  share option  share options
BRAFRESRRM T E Pre-IPO Share Plan
—T-\F=ANH 8 March 2018 = = 0.01 2,252,741
—ZT-N\F=AN\H 8 March 2018 = = 0.04 5,790,516
—E-NFRA+EHA 15 May 2019 0.04 2,536,734 0.04 4,116,199
—EZTFENA=TH 30 August 2020 0.54 11,505,483 0.54 11,959,747
“E-TF+-AZ+NH 29 December 2020 0.75 2,030,683 0.75 2,321,247
—T-—F—AH 6 January 2021 0.75 548,781 0.75 548,781
e = 27 February 2021 1.07 274,390 1.07 274,390
—ZT-—%-A=-++H 27 February 2021 0.54 7,776,567 0.54 7,870,363
—E-_#-A-+)\H 28 February 2022 1.22 348,197 1.22 348,197
—EZZFAAZTAIE 29 September 2022 0.62 4,147,732 0.62 4,502,006
—E-=F-A=-+/\B 28 February 2023 0.62 274,390 0.62 274,390
—“Z-=fF+HB=+—H  31July2023 0.56 1,084,394 0.56 1,084,394
ZE-=Ft+A=1+—H 31 July 2023 0.14 9,517,547 0.14 9,880,202
—ZT-mME=-A=+N\H 28 February 2024 0.41 274,390 0.41 274,390
40,319,288 51,497,563
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31 URREEURGAERNRS (4 31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.2 ZRFIRMDEN 31.2 Restricted share units
RZB-NFEFTA=+H  S2C(X QAN —K On 30 October 2018, S2C, an indirectly held
MEFENHEBAR)ERT1,481,092 ES2C subsidiary of the Company, has granted 1,481,092
K2R HIARD BRI T 21 BAEE A (B A S2CHIE RSUs of S2C to 21 grantees who are all employees
B) - XRFI/RMEMAEBZER_ZE—NF+A of S2C. The RSU scheme will be valid and effective
—THRERT —EEREE_T-_NFLA from 30 October 2018 until 30 July 2028.
=t+8-

EARTTE AR R BIR D BRI A2 B ZEhan T Movement in the number of outstanding RSUs is
as follows:
4 R 1T S2C
5 PR i A% 12
BENHEE
Number of
outstanding
RSU of S2C
RZZE—+F—HA—H At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017
k=F—+F+=-A=+—H —
B Granted 1,481,092
RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 1,481,092
RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H Shares vested but not transferred to

EEBEMAEETERANRD  the grantees as at 31 December 2018 1,132,903
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31 UEREEURGAERERNRS ©®)

31.2 IRFRDEM(E)

BE S2CIR AR EEE TS ZRHIRMEMNS
BE - IR FIARD B A —ARER B 2R A SR HIAR
PEMN25% E100% BREL BHEE - m
BTHBNBREEBRENISEARNEE R
T ZREIRMD TR TR E R S EM
FoRBE_E—\F+_A=1+—"HLFEH
BB R HZRERDEMETE - REEZ
T NF+_A=+BLFEEHEREEEFR
SEER AEBEGEKERTERRZ R
BOBMN(ZZT—LF : ) o

XRHBDEMOAFEDNR-"F-NFT+A
=+ HARE B HS2C WARR BRI A FER
% o

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

31.2 Restricted share units (Continued)

Although S2C determines the vesting period of
each RSU on a case-by-case basis, the general
vesting period for the RSUs is that 25% - 100%
of the RSUs shall vest on the grant date with the
remaining portion vesting over the next 48 months
from the grant date, subject to the occurrence
of liquidity event as defined in the RSU scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, none
of the above granted RSUs were exercised. There
was no employee benefit expense arising from
the RSUs recognised in the consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The fair value of RSUs was calculated based on the
fair value of underlying ordinary shares of S2C as

at the grant date on 30 October 2018.
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income

tax to cash generated from operations

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
B 5E ET ZETT
Note usD Usb
KrETSFiAT (B518) #F  (Loss)/profit before income tax (277,783) 14,031,227
FATIER (EH A Adjustments for:
FEUWAFEE Interest income, net 9 (1,149,740) (437,841)
LARG (7 BT 5 3R Share-based payment 8 187 14,272
B&AD BN 2 Share award expenses — 302,583
Provision for impairment of
B 5 RBGRIE R E RS trade receivables 7 759,318 2,039
FERE (BEEE) (Reversal of provision for)/provision
B for impairment of inventories 7 (320,473) 427,234
LEWE - BE REE Loss on disposals of property,
E5tE plant and equipment 7 34,295 28,644
ME - BEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 14 685,213 676,040
Hh R & Amortisation of other intangible assets 15 186,704 167,733
FBEBRIEATFEARS  Fair value gains on financial assets at
TREENAFEKZE fair value through profit or loss 6 (2,821,523) (268,950)
(2,903,802) 14,942,981
EEEGH Changes in working capital:
—-FE - Inventories 8,538,192 (9,610,292)
— B 5 R H M EWGRIA - Trade and other receivables
INSELRE/ O and prepayments (7,017,665) 10,245,981
— 8B 5 RAEMERNIA - Trade and other payables (8,870,048) 5,994,113
—&HBE - Contract liabilities 399,233 —
— IR - Deferred income 10,297,035 (525,739)
KEFRBRSE Cash generated from operations 442,945 21,047,044
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32 REREER (&) 32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) MEBHETRERANEEYE  BERRZ (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
BERERIEERE proceeds from disposals of property, plant

and equipment comprise:

BE+-HA=+t—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —ET—+F
2018 2017
ET ET
UsD UsD
FREDHE (FIFE14) Net book amount (Note 14) 34,615 245,963
HEME - BE R Loss on disposals of property,
518 plant and equipment (34,295) (28,644)
HEWE - BERRE Proceeds from disposals of property,
8 FIE plant and equipment 320 217,319
() EBFHELHEK (0  Net debt reconciliation
RENF TIPS RN ESFERER FRE D This section sets out an analysis of net debt and
BT the movements in net debt for each of the periods
presented.
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
ET T
UsbD UsD
Re/ (EH) Cash/(debt)
Re MRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 54,962,324 84,100,969
BS54 — 253K - ZBRR—%F MW Gross debt-Borrowings repayable within
B8 BRETFIEGT A one year and with fixed interest rates (5,335,126) —

R& T8 Net cash 49,627,198 84,100,969
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32 REREEH (&) 32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) EBEXRFHEEIRE) () Net debt reconciliation (Continued)
RERMETE
HttEE Wa &
HeER —FREH
REEEY RN et
Liabilities
from
financing
Other asset activities
Cash Borrowings
and cash due within
equivalents 1 year Total
Ein E E
UsD UusD UusD
R-ZTB—t&—H—H Net cash as at 1 January 2017 56,409,071 — 56,409,071
IR FE
RenE Cash flows 25,422,313 — 25,422,313
SMNE SR B Foreign exchange adjustments 2,269,585 — 2,269,585
R=ZF—tHE+=HA=1+— Netcash as at
BR=Z—N\E—H—H 31December 2017
WREFE and 1 January 2018 84,100,969 — 84,100,969
BemE Cash flows (26,407,218) (5,335,126) (31,742,344)
HNEE FHEE Foreign exchange adjustments (2,731,427) — (2,731,427)
RZZE—N\E+ZH=1— Net cash/(debt) as at
AMERELFHE(EK) 31 December 2018 54,962,324 (5,335,126) 49,627,198
33 HAAE 33 CONTINGENCIES
RZZE—N\F+ZA=1+—08 ' xEBRAARWEE The Group and the Company did not have any material

EASAEE (ZE—+F | o contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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(a)

(b)

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
34 COMMITMENTS
KREHERE (@) Operating lease commitments
AEERBIIAECEHERRZHEZ@ANRA The Group leases various offices and warehouses
EREE  HENKME=F - KEHERHRE under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
TARREEBE S FRAZEMT ¢ with lease terms between two to three years. The
future aggregate minimum lease payments under
the operating lease agreement are as follows:
R+=—H=+-—A8
As at 31 December
—E-NF T tF
2018 2017
ET #ET
UsD UsD
TEM1F Within one year 1,621,166 944,100
BR1E R TBRSF Later than one year and not
later than five years 966,555 188,421
2,587,721 1,132,521
BRI (b) Capital commitments
RZE—NFT+ZA=1T—8  REEWELEM The Group did not have any material capital

BERENEE (ZZ—FF : F) o commitments as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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EBEH

RERSHAE-ZFT—\F+A=THNRMDEE Hz
RBEE-_ZT—NhE+_A=+—HBHI18EARFE
WSACKEMMARBRBAENAE THBEEE
=1 » SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited(ZAN 2 & &) 2 & M
BRE)REEES2CHN94.97% ki BeEA
19,000,000 2 7t K& 3% #A 1+ 5% 42,000,000 % T ° S2C
SEHFXrZETMNRERERBRIRFAETMFEL - I
BS2CKEEAASBFBESRRIERNT — 3708
BEHEKRH D EBEAEEEB LT ERBITE
WHEFAREBOBARR - WER=_ZT—N\F+—A
ZTNhBEZEK - RIER  AEBBBEES2CESE
WA EFY S2C/TEIEHIRE -

() TRBIBNKE RO [ REREE O E
*

35 BUSINESS COMBINATION

Pursuant to a share purchase agreement dated 30
October 2018, SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, agreed to purchase
94.97% equity interest of S2C, with cash consideration
of USD19,000,000 and contingent payment of
USD2,000,000 upon achievement of certain financial
performance targets on the revenues and profit
before tax of S2C Group for the 18 months ending 31
December 2019. S2C Group is principally engaged in
the business of rapid verification system and software
primarily in Asia. The acquisition of S2C Group added
a new and strategically important component to
the Group’s ongoing development and will diversify
the Group’s business into the verification industry
and broaden the revenue stream of the Group. The
acquisition was completed on 29 November 2018. Upon
acquisition, the Group exercises control over S2C by
appointment of all directors into the board of S2C.

(i) The following table summarises the consideration
paid and payable at the acquisition date and the
calculation of the goodwill:

ET
UsD
BENRE Purchase consideration
—Be - Cash 19,000,000
—ARE - Contingent consideration 1,507,404
BwEEBNRE Total purchase consideration 20,507,404
W FTEEEFENATE Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (Note 35 (ii)) (4,610,580)
(B 35(ii)
= Goodwill 15,896,824

EERNUWEREE15896824F TTEHERER
S2CHYIRRER B R A S TS AR EE A P
REY 5 [ERE -

The goodwill of USD15,896,824 arising from
the acquisition is attributable to synergies from
combining the rapid verification system and
software business of S2C with the Group.
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35 ¥KE0t (&)

(i)

P EEFE

P s & 2 R P B ER s B Bley R a1
T

35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(ii)  Net assets acquired

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as at the acquisition date are as follows:

ET

UsD

M - BB KRR (HiRE14) Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 95,319
FRIEAE (BEEREE) License use rights (included in intangible assets) (Note 15) 4,644,000

(PI=E15)

HEmErEE (ME15) Other intangible assets (Note 15) 221,087
BEMSHEE (FiFE23) Deferred income tax assets (Note 23) 748,827
FE Inventories 1,966,668
ReERRSFEY Cash and cash equivalents 452,614
Himeh&E Other current assets 937,412
Hinme B & Other current liabilities (3,514,552)
FEFTSHEE (MizE23) Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 23) (696,600)
Pk g vl 25 Bl B B FE A RER)AFE  Fair value of total identifiable net assets acquired 4,854,775
SRR A Non-controlling interests (244,195)
4,610,580

AEBCUBHNETLEET PR —IAKE M S2C
Inc.(S2CREMRBRRFBANATETHNET
BRATFF A O RER) o

AR EIZ S2C R E M FRIE B MR AR (S S2CREA
BBl B B FE AR RRAR L I FERR S2C SR B B FEF2 )
TERESR ©

The Group's acquired intangible assets mainly
relates to a right to use certain technology licenses
as granted by S2C Inc., a company held by the
original shareholders of S2C Group.

The Group recognises S2C Group's non-controlling
interests at their proportionate share of S2C
Group's fair value of total identifiable net assets.
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35 X(KE6t (8)

(i)

(iii)

35 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

FrikiE & =R E (8) (i)  Net assets acquired (Continued)
REEFAGZEWRERN—MRITBAZHWE The acquisition-related costs included in general
KA A 576,777 ETT © and administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement for the year amounted to
UsSD576,777.
S2CEEB = \F+—AZThBEHAL The revenue included in the consolidated income
AU R A A 792,568 T ° S2CEE IR statement since 29 November 2018 contributed
FIEAE B8 43,936 57T © by S2C Group was USD792,568. S2C Group also
contributed loss of USD43,936 over the same
period.
WMS2CEEBE = — \F— A —RREERS - Had S2C Group been consolidated from 1 January
ARG B E RV REE K 46,281,812E T 2018, the consolidated income statement would
K E#8 5,203,203 3% T ° show pro-forma revenue of USD46,281,812 and
loss of USD5,203,203.
IR &M FEE (iii) Net cash outflow from the acquisition
ETT
UsD
FrURRE R 2 BENIRE - Cash paid for acquired business, net of cash acquired
HBRFTUEIR &
—BeRE - Cash consideration (19,000,000)
— AT B AR 2R e - Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired 452,614
LA EEBY
WEEIR & mA Cash outflow on acquisition (18,547,386)

243



244

® EMBMIZERARIA

FEHRE2018

e MR RME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 BAEARS

(a)

FFRAE - THEARRAARBE-T—N\F

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BT+ E+=A=t+—BILEERAEET

R 5 RaRE

MBS B8

Name of the related parties

FREHREH

Principal business activities

(a)

The directors are of the view that the following
individuals and companies are related parties who
had transactions with the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017:

HEASENEEZR
Relationship with the Group

BINERAE

Mr. Gao Songtao
FESES

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen
Gz

Mr. Zeng Zhijie

=ER t4

Mr. Huang Xueliang

BEX R AE
Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

EVALF 4
Mr. Shuai Hongyu

Elck v

Mr. Jin Yufeng

AR K&

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

REGERE

Mr. Zhang Junjie

ARYITE R A R AR R

Shenzhen State Micro Science
and Technology Co. Ltd.

NiE
N/A
NiE
N/A
e
N/A
TER
N/A

A
N/A

NiiE
N/A

TEA

N/A

TEA

N/A

NiE A

N/A

KB R R AT

Research and development of
integrated circuit design

RRRFEHITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RRRFHITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RNATBERITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RRFTEE - HRPITE RIERRE

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company

RABMITEEREEMBE

Executive director and the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company

RRAATEERERFEER

Executive director and the Chief Operating Officer
of the Company

BUES

Independent Director

BIEE

Independent Director

BYES

Independent Director

HARAPITESE - BENTE LIEBAR RIS

Controlled by executive director, the CEO and
controlling shareholder of the Company
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36 BEARS (&)

(a)

BERR MIMEARRBARBREE—Z—/\F

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

BT+ F+-A=t+— AL FERAEEE

EXSmEH - (B

BB IS A8

Name of the related parties

FEXKEH

Principal business activities

(a)

The directors are of the view that the following
individuals and companies are related parties who
had transactions with the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017: (Continued)

BEASENER
Relationship with the Group

RNBFERARTIEERE
R&in B R AT
(RYBFER])

Shenzhen Digital TV National
Engineering Laboratory
Co., Ltd. ("Shenzhen
Digital TV")

SMIT Investment Limited

SMIT Investment Limited

A2 FEEFHRERAR

ShenZhen iBOXPAY Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

BFERBEEROIE -
HENMEE

Research, development,
production and sales of
products related to
digital TV

REER

Investment holding

BEx RS HER

Mobile payment service
provider

ARRMITESR  BRATERERBERASZA
AER

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the director
of this company

RARHATES  BRATERERBRRESZ A

AIESE

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the director of
this company

RARBITEE  BEFATERERBRRERZA

AES

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company being the director of
this company
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36 RAEEARS (&) 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(b) EEEEEEMIRZ (b) Transaction with related parties
REEHEBER T ETATRS : The following transactions were undertaken by the

Group with related parties:

BE+-A=1+—HBLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
E ZETT
UsbD UsbD
ERY B EHEBRAFA  Operating lease payments and the costs
YEBBNSEHENR and fees relating to air-conditioning
RBEMZERARALEED and public utilities in respect of properties
A RER of Shenzhen State Micro Science
and Technology Co. Ltd. (726,036) (560,479)
R BT ERMAMESERMA  Operating lease payments and the costs
LEHENRRBEZEAR and fees relating to air-conditioning
NEZENKRARER and public utilities in respect of
properties of Shenzhen Digital TV (52,615) =
MRS TEEREER AR  Sales of mPOS devices to
HEMPOSER & Shenzhen iBOXPAY Information
Technology Co., Ltd. 4,419,080 7,991,135
ZER G IR A RS TR E E B RIRFE These transactions are conducted at prices and
1T ° terms mutually agreed by the relevant parties.
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36 BEEARSE (&)

() FEEEREFHMN

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(0)

ZEREBEATRIFNTES - CIERM
TREEENEBRGHMIIRAT

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive). The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

WR+=—HA=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —EF—tF
2018 2017
Ey ES
UsD UsD
HEAF S  EZBEREMEF Basic salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 1,545,824 1,446,158
BIETEAT Discretionary bonuses 372,635 372,309
RIREF — B HREHE Retirement benefit — defined
contribution plans 66,840 46,619
LARG 7 BT 3R Share-based payments 151 6,355
1,985,450 1,871,441
(d) R—BEBAINESE (d) Investment in a related party
R+=—HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
Ex ES
UsD UsD
FASMIT InvestmentHI 1% & Investment in SMIT Investment
(M¥EE19(d) (Note 19(d)) 5,600,000 —
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36 BEEARSE (&)

(e)

(f)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

REHEEEMZFRER (e) Year-end balances arising from sales of goods
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —F—tF
2018 2017
ET E
UsbD UusD
YRS T2 2R Receivable from ShenZhen
BRATHFIE (H7E18) iIBOXPAY Information Technology
Co., Ltd. (Note 18) 4,885,596 133,476

EURRIZ FEERRBRARMNKBIERS
HERS  URHEEBRHEARER (ZZ2—+
F:—EA) 28 - ZFRUBENEE REE
BEAEHE o BiE R UL BRRE I3 &Y FOR M
w(—E—tF 8\ -

The receivable from ShenZhen iBOXPAY
Information Technology Co., Ltd. arise mainly from
sale transactions and are due six months (2017:
one month) after the date of sales. The receivables
are unsecured in nature and bear no interest. No
provisions are held against receivables from related
parties (2017: Nil).

BRI I IE S 5 8 (f)  Non-trade balances with related parties
R+=—B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
E ZET
UsD UuspD
FEUZ SMIT Investment Limited Receivable from SMIT Investment
KRIB(MIFE18) Limited (Note 18) 27,755 —
FERY T ER IR
(B3 28) Payable to Shenzhen Digital TV (Note 28) (50,754) —

JEUZ SMIT Investment Limited FXI8 K 8 <% 31| 81
FEEZTENEREEEQNTERE LS RIRE
TR ARED|E - EUFERIHE 5 3RIB A E K
Tt B BAREREE -

The carrying amounts of amount due from SMIT
Investment Limited and amount due to Shenzhen
Digital TV approximate their fair values and are
denominated in USD and RMB, respectively.
The amounts due from/to related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.
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37 ERTFMBRRERREEEE 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
R+=HB=+—H
As at 31 December
B &E —E-N\F —T—+tF
Note 2018 2017
ES ES
UsD UsD
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
RSB REIRIRE Investment in subsidiaries 70,108,560 70,108,372
BREBERIEATFEARK Financial assets at fair value
HEREE through profit or loss 5,600,000 —
75,708,560 70,108,372
REEE Current assets
JE Lk BB 1 B SR IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 38,285,624 16,344,484
SEANECE] Prepayments 18,703 —
ReRASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,817,290 24,931,146
41,121,617 41,275,630

HWEE Total assets 116,830,177 111,384,002
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37 ARQRHMBERREREFEEE (&) 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Rt+t=A=+—H
As at 31 December
s —E2-)\F —E—+tF
Note 2018 2017
=T ZETT
UsD UsD
EERAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EATEE AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
A& 2R Share capital 6,326 6,140
I& 5 m(E Share premium (a) 100,982,947 98,362,681
LARSAD B ERE RS SR8 Share-based payment reserve (a) 1,728,425 1,728,238
RBBF (2FHEE) Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) (a) 593,452 (2,314,719)
RS Total equity 103,311,150 97,782,340
=L Liabilities
pit-h=i Current liabilities
FERT B A R E A FES 5RIB Accruals and other payables 538,974 621,609
B —RMBREIRIE Amount due to a subsidiary 12,980,053 12,980,053
BEE Total liabilities 13,519,027 13,601,662
HEaREE Total equity and liabilities 116,830,177 111,384,002
ARRBMBRARTIREFTER T NE_A=-FTN The statement of financial position of the Company was
HEET R REE - approved by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2019
and were signed on its behalf.
FE = Huang Xueliang Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

HER BESCER Chairman Director
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37 ARQRHMBERREKREFEEE (&) 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) ARAHEEE (@) Reserve movement of the Company

DRGORER (REEE)
B4 58 MR REEF

(Accumulated

Share-based losses)/
Share payment retained
premium reserve earnings
ET ETT ETT
usb usb usb

R=Z—tF—-A—H At 1 January 2017 97,421,918 1,713,966 (1,164,617)
FREE Loss for the year — — (1,150,102)
1R4%E B TR BT 81317 Issuance of shares under the

e employee share award scheme 302,563 — —
TT{h AR Exercise of share options 1,219,046 — —
VARR R A B o 7 A Share-based compensation — 14,272 —
ZE—tFRARN Dividends relating to

“T-REREERE 2016 paid in May 2017 (580,846) = =
R=ZB—tF+=A=+—H At31December 2017 98,362,681 1,728,238 (2,314,719)
Bp - Representing:
& Reserves 97,560,148 1,728,238 (2,314,719)
—EtFEERIRE 2017 final dividend proposed 802,533 — —

98,362,681 1,728,238 (2,314,719)

RZE-N\E—A—H At 1 January 2018 98,362,681 1,728,238 (2,314,719)
FAEE Profit for the year — — 2,908,171
TR Exercise of share options 3,422,799 — —
PARR A7 A 2 e e 5 Bl Share-based compensation — 187 —
ZE-N\FERRAIRN Dividends relating to

“E—FRERE 2017 paid in June 2018 (802,533) = —
R-ZB-NF+=ZA=+—H At31December 2018 100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
Bp - Representing:
3 Reserves 100,579,983 1,728,425 593,452
ZE-N\FEERPIRE 2018 final dividend proposed 402,964 — —

100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
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38 EEFEZNER (FE (27MH%H) 38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
(56622FE) %3831% - (A7 (HKEE DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
ERZER) RA) (5$622GE) RE BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
B LEHmRARENHE) COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)

AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) EERSREIEEEH (@) Directors’ and senior management'’s
emoluments
AATEEHMEFINT : The remuneration of the directors of the Company

is set out below:

BE-E-NEtop-t-ALEE
Year ended 31 December 2018

REB4AT

FEHELT

oAt £HmRES

SHEE GEEESEE  AfRECH B4R
i3] fig ] AL HERY (Wia) BHERYEN  ABRGEN Fxtix it

Emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of director's

Remuneration ~ other services in

paidor  connection with

Estimated ~ receivablein  the management

money value respectof  of the affars Employer's
of other accepting ~ ofthecompany  contribution
Discretionary Housing benefits office ~orits subsidiary  to aretirement
Name Fees Salaries honuses allowance (Note (a)) as director undertaking  benefit scheme Total
F 7 i # £ i # i i
Usp sp sp sp sp sp sp sp sp
#figz Executive director
EERAE (i) i Huang Xueliang (Note (5) 2,000 38752 128149 - [} - - 4683 54436
PMIFRE M. Shuai Hongyu 24,000 350320 108,195 = 5 - — 13471 496,217
Ey VL M Loong, Manfred Marvisun 24,000 339,081 9,12 - - - - 463 463,806
FHEE Non-executive directors
EohfE M. Zeng Zhije 24,000 - - - - - - - 24,00
EE il M Kwan, Alln Chungyyuen 24,000 - - - - - - - 2,00
RilERE M. Gao Songtao - - - - - - - - -
BIufEs Independent non-executive directors
FikRRE . Zhang Junje 2,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
HRkiE i Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 24,000 - - - - - - - 2,000
Fibit-y M. Jin Yufeng 2,00 - - - - - - - 24,000
192,000 1076,923 33245 = %1 - = 0,103 1,624,349
(a) HiER eEA H R RERE - (@) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.
(b)y FZESBMALRRAERENITE UERERHTEH (b)  The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
B /EH BB E o separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of

the CEO has been made.
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38 EEFlmkER (8 (DK
(5£622%F) £383f% - (RF (HWEE
SNZER) KA ($6226E) RE
BLTRARENNE) (&

(a) ESREREERHME)

38

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

BECS-tETCAST-ALER
Year ended 31 December 2017

RER
R
£
A bt e 3]
ftit EE HESEA i
SHEE RLE] el Bt
iz B ) Bfsta [ (i FUER AR B &
Emoluments paid
or feceliable
inrespect
of directors
Remuneration ~ other senvicesin
paidor— connecton vith
Estimated receivablein  the management
money value respect o of the affars Employer's
of otfer accepting — of the company contrbution
Disretonary Housing henefit offie  oritssubsidiay  toaretiement
Name Fegs Salaries honuses alowance (Note 3)) asdirector undertaking ~ benefit scheme Total
Fon AT AT Fon E T Fon Fon E
U [ s s U 5D sp s 5D
#iEs Executive director
EERAE (i) i Huang Xueliang (Note 5) 24000 369,099 128,159 - 1751 - - 230 525316
HIFEE Mr. huaiHongyy 18000 3638 107,985 = 3081 - - 9238 a4
EVESi . Loong, Merfred Man-tun 18000 0% %120 = = = = 2301 1393
bty £ Non-executiv directors
pd53 M Zeng Zhie 2400 - - - - - - - 24000
EE il M Kwan, Alln Chungyyuen 2400 - - - - - - - 24000
BilERE . Gao Songtzo - - - - - - - - -
BUufEs Independent non-executive directors
v i Zhang Junje 24000 - - - - - - - 24000
fiFthis i Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 4000 - - - - - - - 24000
Fat i M. Jin Yofeng 200 = = = = = = - 200
180,000 1,024,699 332,264 = 5032 = = 13852 155,847

(@) EHBENEBEEFHRIBRRE -

() HEFTAAARERHNITE  LERAEFATEH

BEL BB -

(@) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.
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38 EEMmkER (T8 (REHEH)

(56622%F) 5£383fk - (7 (HKE
ENmER) RAD (56226E)

A

iy
&

BETRAURENKE) &)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

EEREAEEBEM(E)

HE-_Z-N\F+A=1+—HILFE ' #EE
MEENREMHFH (ZF—LF: &) -

ESRNKEFN

BESEMNESERNEMRE ARSI
BURIKER] (ZF—t5F - &) -

ESEREA

RBE-ZT—/\F+_A=+—HILFE #iE
R LZEMX N TFTESEMNMHEE (ZF
—tFE) -

RERHESREMAE TE=FRE

HE-Z—N\E+-A=+—BILFE ' KAF
YERNEREEESREMIAREFEAE=S
(ZZ2—+tF : 8| -

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)

AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were waived by any directors
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking (2017:
Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’ services
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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38 EEMmkER (T8 (REHEH)

(%6622E) 263831k -
ERZER) A
BLEMRARENHE)

(e)

(f)

(27 (BT
(58622GE) &k
(%)

A

FARERES ZESEHNEAEERRK
HESETHENERBNEN BUERR
HtxZWER

RERZBE_T-N\F+_A=1T—BLFE
ERARELEFEENES  XEEEHEA
ERELEEEAEENERNER  BUERK
HipR 5 (ZF—LF: \) o

EEAERS  ZHASHNTNERES

RERKBE_FT—/\F+_A=+—HLLFE
EARELTEFERARMERITNGT BEAR
RIEERETEEABEREEAEMEARR
AEBERNERR S KA (ZF—t
FE)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
made available in favour of directors, body
corporates controlled by and connected entities
with such directors subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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BEt-A=1t-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-N\E —E—+tF —E-RF —ZT—hF —E-F

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

ETT ES ES ZETT ES

Usb Usb Usb UsD Usp

g Revenue 41,318,578 91,780,923 59,053,896 65,141,051 56,006,825

35 E AR Cost of sales (27,641,807) (59,277,526)  (35,596,258)  (41,016,720)  (33,250,459)

EF Gross profit 13,676,771 32,503,397 23,457,638 24,124,331 22,756,366

FiSHiAI (E518) & H (Loss) Profit before income tax (277,783) 14,031,227 7,379,349 4,140,582 5,730,671

FiEHiE%,/(F%)  Income tax credit/(expense) 1,593,307 (2,932,359) 121,237 (817,878) (270,847)

FN=H Profit for the year 1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704 5,459,824

rN/NGIE PPN ) Profit is attributable to

el owners of the Company 1,317,734 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704 5,459,824

FEERR AR Non-controlling interests (2,210 — — — —

1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704 5,459,824

R+=B=+-H
As at 31 December

—E-N\E —E—+F —E-RF —ZT—AF —E-F

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

ETT ZET E e ET

Usb Usb Usb Usp Usp

HWEE Total assets 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711 78,937,477 121,779,110
RRABHEB AEL Equity attributable to owners

Em of the Company 112,018,954 114,331,589 99,092,678 62,176,860 64,886,252

IR RS Non-controlling interests 240,480 — — — —

B Total equity 112,259,434 114,331,589 99,092,678 62,176,860 64,886,252

HWE R Total liabilities 28,659,277 17,351,442 10,339,033 16,760,617 56,892,858

BERKEE Total equity and liabilities 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711 78,937,477 121,779,110
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